




SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

For the year ended December 31

Dollars in Thousands Exce Dl Per Share Amounts

OPERATING DATA
Total operating revenue

Total operating expenses

Other expense

Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Net income

Dividends attributable to preferred stock

Dividends attributable to senior common stock

Net loss income available to common stockholders

SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA
Loss earnings per weighted average common share

basic diluted

Loss income from continuing operations

net of dividends attributable to preferred stock

Discontinued operations

Net loss income avalable to common stockholders

Weighted average common shares outstandingbasic

Weighted average common shares outstandingdiluted
Cash dividends declared per common share

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA
Net loss income available to common stockholders

Real estate depreciation and amortization including

discontinued operations

Less Gain on sale of real estate net of taxes paid

Funds from operations available to common stockholderst1

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Real estate before accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Mortgage notes payable term loan term preferred stock

and borrowings under the line of credit

Total stockholders equity

Total common shares outstanding

$533753 $442521

564779 453147

$401017 $390754 $390562

410609 416865 429099

Cash Distributions

Per Share of

Common Stock

in dollas

1.50 1.50 11.50 1.50 1.5O

Total Assets

dollars in millions

564.8

2008 2001 2010 201 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2009 2009 2010 2011 2012

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

51270 43976 41928 42609 40807

24895 21270 23414 20541 19364
22614 16992 13586 17668 16570

3761 5714 4928 4400 4873

203 40

3761 5714 4928 4603 4913

4093 4094 4094 4094 4094
113 62 20

445 1558 814 509 819

0.04 0.15 0.09 0.04 0.09

0.02 0.01

0.04 0.15 0.09 0.06 0.10

10953325 10236859 8576303 8563264 8565149

10953325 10288711 8601153 8563264 8565149

1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50

445 1558 814 509 819

16831 14149 13264 13172 12705

160

16386 15707 14078 13521 13524

422685 304050 286595 285962 286611

122365 135314 111375 118451 130495

10953325 10945379 8724613 8563264 8565149

Funds from Operations or FF0 was developed by The National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts or NAREIL as relative non-Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles in the United States or GAAP supplemental measure of operating performance of an equity REIT in order to recognize that income-producing real estate

historically
has not depreciated on the basis determined under GAAP For reconciliation of FF0 to net income see the enclosed Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December .31 2012

Funds from

Operations

dollars in millions

14
13.5 13.5

164
15.7

429.1 453.1

416.9 4106
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON D.C 20549

FORM 10-K

Mark One
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 FOR

THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 312012
OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM _______TO_______

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER 001-33097

GLADSTONE COMMERCIAL CORPORATION
Exact name of registrant as spec/ied in its charter

MARYLAND 02-0681276

State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization I.R.S Employer Ident/Ication ISEC

1521 WESTBRANCH DRIVE SUITE 200 MaIl Processing
MCLEAN VIRGINIA 22102

Address ofprincipal executive offices

703 287-5800

Regis trant telephone number including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Washinqton DC
Title of Each Class Name of each exchange on whi istered

Common Stock par value $0.00 per share NASDAQ Global Select

7.75% Series Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock par value $0.00 per share NASDAQ Global Select Market

7.5O% Series Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock par value $0.00 per share NASDAQ Global Select Market

7.125% Series Cumulative Term Preferred Stock par value $0.00l per-share NASDAQ Global Select Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12g of the Act None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d of the Act Yes Nol

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports

and has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days Yes lJ NoD

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site if any every

Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months or

for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files Yesl NoD

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and will not

be contained to the best of registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III

of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or smaller

reporting company See the definitions of large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 2b-2

of the Exchange Act Check one Large Accelerated Filer Accelerated Filer Non-Accelerated Filer Smaller Reporting

Company Do not check if smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule l2b-2 of the Act Yes No

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant on June 29 2012 based on the closing price on

that date of $16.66 on the NASDAQ Global Select Market was $173739693 For the purposes of calculating this amount only all

directors and executive officers of the registrant have been deemed to be affiliates

The number of shares of the registrants Common Stock $0001 par value outstanding as of February 19 2013 was 11226502

Documents Incorporated by Reference Portions of the registrants Proxy Statement relating to the Registrants 2013 Annual Meeting

of Stockholders are incorporated by reference into Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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Forward-Looking Statements

Our disclosure and analysis in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or Form 10-K and the documents that are

incorporated by reference herein contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27i\

of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended or Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 as amended or Exchange Act Forward-looking statements provide our current expectations

or forecasts of future events and are not statements of historical fact These forward-looking statements

include information about possible or assumed future events including among other things discussion and

analysis of our future financial condition results of operations and funds from operations or FF0 our

strategic plans and objectives cost management occupancy and leasing rates and trends liquidity and

ability to refinance our indebtedness as it matures anticipated capital expenditures and access to capital

required to complete projects amounts of anticipated cash distributions to our stockholders in the future

and other matters Words such as anticipates expects intends plans believes seeks
estimates and variations of these words and similarexpressions are intended to identify forward-looking

statements These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks uncertainties

and other factors some of which are beyond our control are difficult to predict and could cause actual

results to differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking statements

Statements regarding the following subjects among others are forward-looking by their nature

our business and financing strategy

our ability to implement our business plan

pending transactions

our projected operating results

our ability to obtain future financing arrangements

estimates relating to our future distributions

our understanding of our competition and our ability to compete effectively

market and industry trends

interest and insurance rates

estimates of our future operating expenses including payments to our Adviser as defined

herein under the terms of our Advisory Agreement as defined herein

projected capital expenditures and

use of the proceeds of our Line of Credit as defined herein mortgage notes payable future

stock offerings and other future capital resources if any

Forward-looking statements involve inherent uncertainty and may ultimately prove to be incorrect or false

You are cautioned to not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements Except as otherwise may be

required by law we undertake no obligation to update or revise forward-looking statements to reflect

changed assumptions the occurrence of unanticipated events or actual operating results Our actual results

could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as result of various

factors including but not limited to

general volatility of the capital markets and the market price of our common and preferred

stock



failure to qualify as real estate investment trust or REIT and risks of changes in laws that

affect REITs

risks associated with negotiation and consummation of pending and future transactions

changes in our business strategy

the adequacy of our cash reserves and working capital

our failure to successfully integrate and operate acquired properties and operations

defaults upon or non-renewal of leases by tenants

decreased rental rates or increased vacancy rates

the degree and nature of our competition including with other real estate investment

companies

availability terms and deployment of capita including the ability to maintain and borrow

under our Line of Credit arrange for long-term mortgages on our properties secure one or

more additional long-term lines of credit and raise equity capital

our Advisers ability to identify hire and retain highly-qualified personnel in the future

changes in our industry or the general economy

changes in real estate and zoning laws and increases in real property tax rates

changes in governmental regulations tax rates and similarmatters

environmental uncertainties and risks related to natural disasters and

the loss of any of our key officers such as Mr David Gladstone our Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer Mr Terry Lee Brubaker our Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer

or Mr Robert Cutup our President

This list of risks and uncertainties however is only summary of some of the most important factors to us

and is not intended to he exhaustive You should carefully review the risks set forth herein under the

caption Item IA Risk Factors New factors may also emerge from time to time that could materially and

adversely affect us

Item Business

Overview

Gladstone Commercial Corporation which we refer to as we us or the Company is REIT that

was incorporated under the General Corporation Laws of the State of Maryland on February 14 2003

primarily for the purpose of investing in and owning net leased industrial commercial and retail real

property and selectively making long-term industrial and commercial mortgage loans Our portfolio of real

estate is leased to wide cross section of tenants ranging from small businesses to large public companies

many of which are corporations that do not have publicly rated debt We have in the past entered into and

intend in the future to enter into purchase agreements for real estate ha ing triple net leases with terms of

approximately 10 to years and built-in rental increases Under triple net lease the tenant is required to



pay all operating maintenance and insurance costs and real estate taxes with respect to the leased property

As of February 19 2013 we owned total of 80 properties

We conduct substantially all of our activities including the ownership of all of our properties through

Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership Delaware limited partnership which we refer to as our

Operating Partnership We control our Operating Partnership through our ownership of GCLP Business

Trust II Massachusetts business trust which is the general partner of our Operating Partnership and of

GCLP Business Trust Massachusetts business trust which currently holds all of the limited partnership

units of our Operating Partnership Our Operating Partnership may issue limited partnership units from

time to time in exchange for industrial and commercial real property Limited partners who hold limited

partnership units in our Operating Partnership will generally be entitled to redeem these units for cash or at

our election shares of our common stock on one-for-one basis

Our Operating Partnership is also the sole member of Gladstone Commercial Lending LLC which we

refer to as Gladstone Commercial Lending Gladstone Commercial Lending is Delaware limited liability

company that was formed to hold any real estate mortgage loans

Our business is managed by our external adviser Gladstone Management Corporation or our Adviser

Our Investment Objectives and Our Strategy

Our principal investment objectives are to generate income from rental properties and to much lesser

extent mortgage loans which we use to fund our continuing operations and to pay out monthly cash

distributions to our stockholders We intend to grow the distribution to stockholders over time and to

increase the value of our common stock Our primary strategy to achieve our investment objectives is to

invest in and own diversified portfolio of leased industrial commercial and retail real estate that we

believe will produce stable cash flow and increase in value We may sell some of our real estate assets from

time to time when our Adviser determines that doing so would be advantageous to us and our stockholders

We also expect to occasionally make mortgage loans secured by income-producing commercial or

industrial real estate which loans may have some form of equity participation We currently have no

investments in mortgage loans

We use leverage to make more investments than would otherwise be possible in order to maximize

potential returns to stockholders We are not limited with respect to the amount of leverage that we may
use for the acquisition of any specific property although we have certain portfolio-level leverage covenants

we must comply with under the terms of our revolving line of credit or the Line of Credit We intend to

use non-recourse mortgage financing that will allow us to limit our loss exposure on any property to the

amount of equity invested in such property The market for long-term mortgages has been limited for some

time however we have recently seen mid-to-long-term to 10 year mortgages become much more

obtainable The collateralized mortgage backed securities or CMBS market has made comeback in the

past year but it is more conservative and restrictive than it was prior to the recession that began in late

2007 Consequently we continue to look to regional banks insurance companies and other non-bank

lenders in addition to the CMBS market to issue mortgages to finance our real estate activities

In addition to leverage we were active in the equity markets during 2012 and we issued 138205 common

shares for gross proceeds of $2.5 million through our At the Market or ATM program and 115405 senior

common shares for gross proceeds of $1.7 million In addition in January 2012 we issued $38.5 million of

7.125% Series Cumulative Term Preferred Stock or Term Preferred Stock which is mandatorily

redeemable five years from issuance We also assumed or issued $124.4 million in mortgages during 2012

to finance our new and existing properties



Investment Policies

Types of Investments

Overview

We intend that substantially all of our investments will be generated from the ownership of income-

producing real
property or to much lesser extent mortgage loans secured by real property We expect

that the vast majority of our investments will be structured as net leases but if net lease would have an

adverse impact on potential tenant or would otherwise be inappropriate for us we may structure our

investment as either gross lease or mortgage loan Investments are not restricted to geographical areas

but we expect that most of our investments in real estate will be made within the continental United States

Some of our investments may also be made through joint ventures that would permit us to own interests in

large properties without restricting the diversity of our portfolio Our stockholders are not afforded the

opportunity to evaluate the economic merits of our investments or the terms of
any dispositions of

properties and instead rely on the advice of our Adviser See Risk Factors- Our success depends on the

perjbrmance of our Adviser and i/our Adviser makes inadvisable investment or /nanaçenient decisions our

operations could be materially adversely impacted

We anticipate that we will make substantially all of our investments through our Operating Partnership and

Gladstone Commercial Lending Our Operating Partnership and Gladstone Commercial Lending may

acquire interests in real property or mortgage loans in exchange for the issuance of limited partnership

units for cash or through combination of both Units issued by our Operating Partnership generally will

be redeemable for cash or at our election shares of our common stock on one-for-one basis However

we may in the future also conduct some of our business and hold some of our interests in real properties or

mortgage loans through one or more wholly-owned subsidiaries that are not owned directly or indirectly

through our Operating Partnership or Gladstone Commercial Lending We have not issued any limited

partnership units to date

Properly Acquisitions and Net Leasing

To date we have purchased majority of our properties from owners that have leased their properties to

non-affiliated tenants and while we have engaged in some transactions with tenants who have

consummated sale-leaseback transactions these transactions do not comprise the dominant portion of our

portfolio We expect that some of our sale-leaseback transactions will be in conjunction with acquisitions

recapitalizations or other corporate transactions affecting our tenants In these transactions we may act as

one of several sources of financing for these transactions by purchasing one or more properties from the

tenant and by net leasing it to the tenant or its successor in interest For discussion of the risks associated

with leasing property to leveraged tenants see Risk FactorsHighlv leveraged tenants and borrowers

may he unable to pay rent or make mortgage payments which could adversely afflct our cash available to

make distributions to our stockholders

In limited circumstances we have granted tenants an option to purchase the leased property and we

anticipate granting these options to select tenants in the future In these cases we generally seek to fix the

option purchase price at the greater of our purchase price for the property and the fair market value of the

property at the time the option is exercised

Our portfolio consists primarily of single-tenant commercial and industrial real property however we also

own and consider for ownership multi-tenant commercial and industrial properties as well as retail and

medical properties Generally we lease properties to tenants that our Adviser deems creditworthy under

leases that will be full recourse obligations of our tenants or their affiliates In most cases our leases will be

triple net leases that require the tenant to pay all the operating costs costs of maintenance insurance and

real estate taxes on the property We seek to obtain lease terms of approximately 10 to 15 years with built

in rental increases



Investments in Mortgage Loans

Although we expect to make investments in mortgage loans sparingly we may elect to structure our

investment in particular property as mortgage loan secured by the property in situations where

standard net lease transaction would have an adverse tax impact on the seller of property or would

otherwise be inappropriate for us We anticipate that most of our lending transactions will be loans secured

by industrial or commercial property Our Adviser will attempt to structure mortgage loans in manner that

would provide us with current income substantially similar to that which we could expect to receive had the

investment been structured as net lease transaction

To the extent that we invest in mortgage loans we will generally originate those loans However we may
also purchase mortgage loans from banks CMBS pools or other lenders if such transactions are consistent

with our investment objectives Our Adviser will service the mortgage loans in our portfolio by monitoring

the collection of monthly principal and interest payments on our behalf There were no mortgage loans

outstanding as of December 31 2012

Underwriting Criteria Due Diligence Process and Negotiating Lease Provisions

We consider underwriting of the real estate and the tenant for the property or the borrower in the case of

mortgage loan to be the most important aspects of making an investment Evaluating the creditworthiness

of the tenant or borrower and its ability to generate sufficient cash flow to make payments to us pursuant to

the lease or the mortgage loan is the most important aspect of our underwriting procedures In analyzing

potential acquisitions of properties and leases our Adviser reviews all aspects of the potential transaction

including tenant and real estate fundamentals to determine whether potential acquisitions and leases can be

structured to satisfy our acquisition criteria The criteria listed below provide general guideposts that our

Adviser may consider when underwriting leases and mortgage loans

Credit Evaluation Our Adviser evaluates each potential tenant for its creditworthiness

considering factors such as the rating by national credit rating agency if any management

experience industry position and fundamentals operating history and capital structure

Currently 66.0% of our tenants are rated by national credit rating agency prospective tenant

that is deemed creditworthy does not necessarily mean that we will consider the tenants property

to be investment grade Our Adviser seeks tenants that
range

from small businesses many of

which do not have publicly rated debt to large public companies Our Advisers investment

professionals have substantial experience in locating and financing these
types

of companies By

leasing properties to these tenants we believe that we will generally be able to charge rent that is

higher than the rent charged to tenants with unleveraged balance sheets and recognized credit

thereby enhancing current return from these properties as compared with properties leased to

companies whose credit potential has already been recognized by the market Furthermore if

tenants credit improves the value of our lease or investment will likely increase if all other

factors affecting value remain unchanged In evaluating possible investment we believe that

the creditworthiness of prospective tenant is normally more significant factor than the

unleased value of the property itself While our Adviser selects tenants it believes to be

creditworthy tenants are not required to meet any minimum rating established by an independent

credit rating agency Our Advisers standards for determining whether particular tenant is

creditworthy vary in accordance with variety of factors relating to specific prospective tenants

The creditworthiness of tenant is determined on tenant-by-tenant and case-by-case basis

Therefore general standards for creditworthiness cannot be applied

Leases with Increasing Rent Our Adviser seeks to include clause in each lease that provides

for annual rent escalations over the term of the lease These increases will generally be fixed

however certain of our leases are tied to increases in indices such as the consumer price index

Diversification Our Adviser attempts to diversify our portfolio to avoid dependence on any one

particular tenant facility type geographic location or tenant industry By diversifying our



portfolio our Adviser intends to reduce the adverse effect of single under-performing

investment or downturn in any particular industry or geographic region Please see Item of

this Form 10-K for summary of our portfolio by industry and geographic location

Properly Valuation The business prospects and the financial strength of the tenant are important

aspects of the evaluation of any sale and leaseback of property or acquisition of property subject

to net lease particularly property that is specifically suited to the needs of the tenant We

generally require quarterly unaudited and annual audited financial statements of the tenant in

order to continuously monitor the financial performance of the tenant Our Adviser evaluates the

financial capability of the tenant and its ability to perform per
the terms of the lease including

obtaining certificates of insurance and verifying payment of real estate taxes on an annual basis

Our Adviser may also examine the available operating results of prospective investment

properties to determine whether or not projected rental levels are likely to be met Our Adviser

then computes the value of the property based on historical and projected operating results In

addition each property that we propose to purchase is appraised by an independent appraiser

These appraisals may take into consideration among other things the terms and conditions of

the particular lease transaction and the conditions of the credit markets at the time the purchase is

negotiated We generally limit our property acquisition cost to less than 10% of our consolidated

total assets

Properties Important to Tenant Operations Our Adviser generally seeks to acquire investment

properties that are essential or important to the ongoing operations of the prospective tenant We

believe that these investment properties provide better protection in the event tenant becomes

bankrupt as leases on properties essential or important to the operations of bankrupt tenant are

typically less likely to be rejected in bankruptcy or otherwise terminated

Lease Provisions that Enhance and Protect Value When appropriate our Adviser attempts to

include provisions in our leases that require our consent to specified tenant activity or require the

tenant to satisfy specific operating tests These provisions may include for example operational

or financial covenants of the tenant as well as indemnification of us by the tenant against

environmental and other contingent liabilities We believe that these provisions serve to protect

our investments from changes in the operating and financial characteristics of tenant that may

impact its ability to satisfy its obligations to us or that could reduce the value of our properties

Our Adviser generally also seeks covenants requiring tenants to receive our consent prior to any

change in control of the tenant

Credit Enhancement Our Adviser may also seek to enhance the likelihood of tenants lease

obligations being satisfied through cross-default with other tenant obligations letter of credit

or guaranty of lease obligations from each tenants corporate parent We believe that this type

of credit enhancement if obtained provides us with additional financial security



Underwriting of the Real Estate and Due Diligence Process

In addition to underwriting the tenant or borrower our Adviser also underwrites the real estate to be

acquired or secured by one of our mortgages On our behalf our Adviser performs due diligence review

with respect to each property such as evaluating the physical condition of
property zoning and site

requirements to ensure the property is in compliance with all zoning regulations as well as an

environmental site assessment in an attempt to determine potential environmental liabilities associated

with property prior to its acquisition although there can be no assurance that hazardous substances or

wastes as defined by present or future federal or state laws or regulations will not be discovered on the

property after we acquire it We could incur significant costs related to government regulation and private

litigation over environmental matters See Risk Factors We could be exposed to liability and remedial

costs related to environmental matters

Our Adviser also reviews the structural soundness of the improvements on the property and may engage

structural engineer to review all aspects of the structures in order to determine the longevity of each

building on the property This review normally also includes the components of each building such as the

roof the structure and configuration the electrical wiring the heating and air-conditioning system the

plumbing parking lot and various other aspects such as compliance with state and federal building codes

Our Adviser also physically inspects the real estate and surrounding real estate as part of determining the

value of the real estate All of our Advisers due diligence is aimed at arriving at valuation of the real

estate under the assumption that it was not rented to the tenant that we are considering As part of this

process our Adviser may consider one or more of the following items

The comparable value of similar real estate in the same general area of the prospective

property In this regard comparable property is difficult to define because each piece of

real estate has its own distinct characteristics But to the extent possible comparable

property in the area that has sold or is for sale will be used to determine if the price to be

paid for the property is reasonable The question of comparable properties sale prices is

particularly relevant if property might be sold by us at later date

An assessment of the relative flexibility of the building configuration and its ability to be

re-leased to other users

The comparable real estate rental rates for similar properties in the same area of the

prospective property

Alternative property uses that may offer higher value

The cost of replacing the property if it were to be sold

The assessed value as determined by the local real estate taxing authority

In addition our Adviser supplements its valuation with real estate appraisal in connection with each

investment that we consider When appropriate our Adviser may engage experts to undertake some or all

of the due diligence efforts described above

Use of Leverage

Non-recourse Financing

We use long-term mortgage borrowings as financing mechanism in amounts that we believe will

maximize the return to our stockholders Currently the majority of our long-term mortgage borrowings are

structured as non-recourse to us and we intend to structure any medium-term mortgages in the same



manner with limited exceptions that would trigger recourse to us only upon the occurrence of certain fraud

misconduct environmental or bankruptcy events The use of non-recourse financing allows us to limit our

exposure to the amount of equity invested in the properties pledged as collateral for our borrowings Non-

recourse financing generally restricts lenders claim on the assets of the borrower and as result the

lender generally may look only to the property securing the debt for satisfaction of the debt We believe

that this financing strategy to the extent available protects our other assets However we can provide no

assurance that non-recourse financing will be available on terms acceptable to us or at all and there may
be circumstances where lenders have recourse to our other assets There is no limitation on the amount we

may borrow against any single investment property

We believe that by operating on leveraged basis we will have more funds available and therefore will

make more investments than would otherwise be possible if we operated on non-leveraged basis We
believe that this creates more diversified portfolio and maximizes potential returns to our stockholders

We may refinance properties during the term of loan when we believe it is advantageous

Recourse Financing

To much lesser extent we use recourse financing Of the $359.2 million in long-term mortgages

outstanding only $2.0 million is recourse to the Company In addition borrowings under our $75.0 million

Line of Credit which is secured by those properties pledged to the borrowing base under the Line of

Credit is considered recourse financing which means that our Line of Credit lenders have claim against

our pledged assets We intend to use our existing Line of Credit as warehouse line of credit whereby we

borrow on short-term basis until long-term financing can be arranged

Conflict of Interest Policy

We have adopted policies to reduce potential conflicts of interest In addition our directors are subject to

certain provisions of Maryland law that are designed to minimize conflicts However we cannot assure you

that these policies or provisions of law will reduce or eliminate the influence of these conflicts

Under our current conflict of interest policy without the approval of majority of our independent

directors we will not

acquire froni or sell to any of our officers directors or our Advisers employees or any entity in

which any of our officers directors or Advisers employees has an interest of more than 5% any

assets or other property

borrow from any of our directors officers or our Advisers employees or any entity in which any

of our officers directors or our Advisers employees has an interest of more than 5% or

engage in any other transaction with any of our directors officers or our Advisers employees or

any entity in which any of our directors officers or our Advisers employees has an interest of more

than 5% except that our Adviser may lease office
space

in building that we own provided that

the rental rate under the lease is determined by our independent directors to be at fair market rate

Cur policy also prohibits us from purchasing any real property owned by or co-investing with our Adviser

any of its affiliates or any business in which our Adviser or any of its subsidiaries have invested except

that we may lease property to existing and prospective portfolio companies of current or fumre affiliates

such as Gladstone Capital Corporation or Gladstone Investment Corporation and other entities advised by

our Adviser so long as that entity does not control the portfolio company and the transaction is approved

by both companies Board of Directors If we decide to change this policy on co-investments with our

Adviser or its affiliates we will seek our stockholders approval
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Future Revisions in Policies and Strategies

Our independent directors periodically review our investment policies to evaluate whether they are in the

best interests of us and our stockholders Our investment procedures objectives and policies may vary as

new investment techniques are developed or as regulatory requirements change and except as otherwise

provided in our charter or bylaws may be altered by majority of our directors including majority of our

independent directors without the approval of our stockholders to the extent that our Board of Directors

determines that such modification is in the best interest of our stockholders Among other factors

developments in the market which affect the policies and strategies described in this report or which change

our assessment of the market may cause our Board of Directors to revise our investment policies and

strategies

Code of Ethics

The Company and its affiliates Gladstone Capital Corporation Gladstone Investment Corporation

Gladstone Land Corporation Gladstone Management Corporation Gladstone Administration LLC and

Gladstone Securities LLC have adopted code of ethics and business conduct applicable to all personnel

of such companies that complies with the guidelines set forth in Item 406 of Regulation S-K of the

Securities Act of 1933 This code establishes procedures for personal investments restricts certain

transactions by such personnel and requires the reporting of certain transactions and holdings by such

personnel copy of this code is available for review free of charge at our website at

www.GladstoneCommercial.com We intend to provide any required disclosure of any amendments to or

waivers of the provisions of this code by posting information regarding any such amendment or waiver to

our website within four days of its effectiveness

Our Adviser and Administrator

Our business is managed by Gladstone Management Corporation or our Adviser The officers directors

and employees of our Adviser have significant experience in making investments in and lending to

businesses of all sizes including investing in real estate and making mortgage loans We have entered into

an Investment Advisory Agreement with our Adviser or the Advisory Agreement under which our

Adviser is responsible for managing our assets and liabilities for operating our business on day-to-day

basis and for identifying evaluating negotiating and consummating investment transactions consistent with

our investment policies as determined by our Board of Directors from time to time Gladstone

Administrations LLC or our Administrator employs our chief financial officer and treasurer chief

compliance officer internal counsel and their respective staffs

David Gladstone our chairman and chief executive officer is also the chairman chief executive officer and

the controlling stockholder of our Adviser Terry Lee Brubaker our vice chairman and chief operating

officer and member of our Board of Directors also serves in the same capacities for our Adviser

Our Adviser maintains an investment committee that approves each of our investments This investment

committee is currently comprised of Messrs Gladstone and Brubaker We believe that the review process

of our Advisers investment committee gives us unique competitive advantage over other REITs because

of the substantial experience that the members possess and their unique perspective in evaluating the blend

of corporate credit real estate and lease terms that collectively provide an acceptable risk for our

investments

Our Advisers board of directors has empowered its investment committee to authorize and
approve our

investments subject to the terms of the Advisory Agreement Before we acquire any property the

transaction is reviewed by our Advisers investment committee to ensure that in its view the proposed

transaction satisfies our investment criteria and is within our investment policies Approval by our

Advisers investment committee is generally the final step in the property acquisition approval process

although the separate approval of our Board of Directors is required in certain circumstances described
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below For further detail on this process please see Investment Policies and Policies with Respect to

Certain Activities Underwriting Criteria Due Diligence Process and Negotiating Lease Provisions

Our Adviser is headquartered in McLean Virginia suburb of Washington D.C and also has offices in

several other states

investment Advisory and Administration Agreements

Many of the services performed by our Adviser and Administrator in managing our day-to-day activities

are summarized below This summary is provided to illustrate the material functions which our Adviser and

Administrator perform for us pursuant to the terms of the Advisory and Administration Agreements

respectively

Investment Advisory Agreement

Under the terms of the Advisory Agreement we are responsible for all expenses incurred for our direct

benefit Examples of these expenses include legal accounting interest on short-term debt and mortgages

tax preparation directors and officers insurance stock transfer services stockholder-related fees

consulting and related fees In addition we are also responsible for all fees charged by third parties that are

directly related to our business which include real estate brokerage fees mortgage placement fees lease-up

fees and transaction structuring fees although we may be able to pass some or all of such fees on to our

tenants and borrowers

Management Services and Fees under the Advisory Agreement

The Advisory Agreement provides for an annual base management fee equal to 2.0% of our total

stockholders equity less the recorded value of any preferred stock and an incentive fee based on FF0

Our Adviser does not charge acquisition or disposition fees when we acquire or dispose of properties as is

common in other externally managed REITs Furthermore there are no fees charged when our Adviser

secures long or short-term credit or arranges mortgage loans on our properties however our Adviser may

earn fee income from our borrowers tenants or other sources This fee income earned by our Adviser or

portion thereof may at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors be credited against our base

management fee as rebate to the base management fee

For purposes of calculating the incentive fee FF0 includes any realized capital gains and capital losses

less any distributions paid on preferred stock and senior common stock but FF0 does not include any

unrealized capital gains or losses The incentive fee would reward our Adviser if our quarterly FF0 before

giving effect to any incentive fee or pre-incentive fee FF0 exceeds 1.75% or the hurdle rate of total

stockholders equity less the recorded value of any preferred stock We pay our Adviser an incentive fee

with respect to our pre-incentive fee FF0 quarterly as follows

no incentive fee in any calendar quarter in which our pre-incentive fee FF0 does not exceed the

hurdle rate of .75% 7% annualized

100% of the amount of the pre-incentive fee FF0 that exceeds the hurdle rate but is less than

2.1875% in any calendar quarter 8.75% annualized and

20% of the amount of our pre-incentive fee FF0 that exceeds 2.1875% in any calendar quarter

8.75% annualized
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Quarterly Incentive Fee Based on FF0

Pre-incentive fee FF0

expressed as percentage of total common stockholders equity

1.75% 2.1875%

Percentage of pre-incentive fee FF0 allocated to incentive fee

The incentive fee may be reduced because of our Line of Credit covenant which limits distributions to our

stockholders to 95% of FF0 with acquisition-related costs that are required to be expensed under

Accounting Standards Codification or ASC 805 Business Combinations added back to FF0

Administration Agreement

Under the terms of the Administration Agreement we pay separately for our allocable portion of our

Administrators overhead expenses in performing its obligations to us including but not limited to rent and

our allocable portion of the salaries and benefits expenses of our Administrators employees including but

not limited to our chief financial officer and treasurer chief compliance officer internal counsel and their

respective staffs Our allocable portion of
expenses

is derived by multiplying our Administrators total

expenses by the percentage of our total assets at the beginning of each quarter in comparison to the total

assets of all companies managed by our Adviser under similaragreements

Adviser Duties and Authority under the Advisory Agreement

Under the terms of the Advisory Agreement our Adviser is required to use its best efforts to present to us

investment opportunities consistent with our investment policies and objectives as adopted by our Board of

Directors In performing its duties our Adviser either directly or indirectly by engaging an affiliate

finds evaluates and enters into contracts to purchase real estate and make mortgage loans on our

behalf in compliance with our investment procedures objectives and policies subject to approval of

our Board of Directors where required

provides advice to us and acts on our behalf with respect to the negotiation acquisition financing

refinancing holding leasing and disposition of real estate investments

takes the actions and obtains the services
necessary to effect the negotiation acquisition financing

refinancing holding leasing and disposition of real estate investments and

provides day-to-day management of our business activities and other administrative services for us

as requested by our Board of Directors

Our Board of Directors has authorized our Adviser to make investments in any property on our behalf

without the prior approval of our Board of Directors if the following conditions are satisfied

our Adviser has obtained an independent appraisal for the property indicating that the total cost of

the property does not exceed its appraised value and

our Adviser has concluded that the property in conjunction with our other investments and

proposed investments is reasonably expected to fulfill our investment objectives and policies as

established by our Board of Directors then in effect
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The actual terms and conditions of transactions involving investments in properties and mortgage loans are

determined at the sole discretion of our Adviser subject at all times to compliance with the foregoing

requirements Some types
of transactions however require the prior approval of our Board of Directors

including majority of our independent directors including the following

loans not secured or otherwise supported by real property

any acquisition or mortgage loan which at the time of investment would have cost exceeding 20%

of our total assets

transactions that involve conflicts of interest with our Adiser other than reimbursement

expenses
in accordance with the Advisory Agreement and

the lease of assets to our Adviser its affiliates or any of our officers or directors

Our Adviser and Administrator also engage in other business ventures and as result their resources are

not dedicated exclusively to our business For example our Adviser and Administrator also serve as the

external adviser to Gladstone Capital Corporation and Gladstone Investment Corporation both publicly

traded business development companies affiliated with us and Gladstone Land Corporation publicly

traded agricultural real estate company However under the Advisory Agreement our Adviser is required

to devote sufficient resources to the administration of our affairs to discharge its obligations under the

agreement The Advisory Agreement is not assignable or transferable by either us or our Adviser without

the consent of the other party except that our Adviser may assign the Advisory Agreement to an affiliate

for whom our Adviser agrees to guarantee its obligations to us Either we or our Adviser may assign or

transfer the Advisory Agreement to successor entity

Dealer Manager Agreement

In connection with the offering of our senior common stock or Senior Common Stock we entered into

Dealer Manager Agreement dated March 25 2011 or the Dealer Manager Agreement with Gladstone

Securities LLC or the Dealer Manager pursuant to which the Dealer Manager agreed to act as our

exclusive dealer manager in connection with the offering The Dealer Manager is an affiliate of ours as its

parent company is controlled by Mr David Gladstone our chairman and chief executive officer Pursuant

to the terms of the Dealer Manager Agreement the Dealer Manager is entitled to receive sales

commission in the amount of 7.0% of the gross proceeds of the shares of Senior Common Stock sold plus

dealer manager fee in the amount of 3.0% of the gross proceeds of the shares of Senior Common Stock

sold In addition we have agreed to indemnify the Dealer Manager against various liabilities including

certain liabilities arising under the federal securities laws We made payments of approximately 173000

and S5000 of payments during the
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively to the Dealer

Manager pursuant to the Dealer Manager Agreement The offering of our senior common stock terminates

on March 28 2013 however we may extend the term of this program

Employees

We do not currently have any employees and do not expect to have any employees in the foreseeable

future Currently services necessary for our business are provided by individuals who are employees of

our Adviser and our Administrator pursuant to the terms of the Advisory Agreement and the

Administration Agreement respectively Each of our executive officers is an employee or officer or both

of our Adviser or our Administrator No employee of our Adviser or our Administrator will dedicate all of

his or her time to us However we expect that total of 15 to 20 full time employees of our Adviser and

our Administrator will spend substantial time on our matters during calendar year 2013 To the extent that

we acquire more investments we anticipate that the number of employees of our Adviser and our

Administrator who devote time to our matters will increase
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As of December 31 2012 our Adviser and Administrator collectively had 56 full-time employees

breakdown of these employees is summarized by functional area in the table below

Number of Individuals Functional Area

10 Executive Management

34 Investment Management Portfolio Management and Due Diligence

12 Administration Accounting Compliance Human Resources Legal and Treasury

Competition

We compete with number of other real estate companies and traditional mortgage lenders many of whom

have greater marketing and financial resources than we do Principal factors of competition in our primary

business of investing in and owning leased industrial commercial and retail real property are the quality of

properties leasing terms attractiveness and convenience of location Additionally our ability to compete

depends upon among other factors trends of the national and local economies investment alternatives

financial condition and operating results of current and prospective tenants and borrowers availability and

cost of capital taxes and governmental regulations

Available Information

Copies of our annual report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form l0-Q current reports on Form 8-K

proxy statements and amendments if any to those reports filed or furnished with the Securities and

Exchange Commission or SEC pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act are

available free of charge through our website at www.GladstoneCommercial.com request for any of

these reports may also be submitted to us by sending written request addressed to Investor Relations

Gladstone Commercial Corporation 1521 Westbranch Drive Suite 200 McLean VA 22102 or by calling

our toll-free investor relations line at 1-866-366-5745 The public may read and copy materials that we file

with the SEC at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100 Street NE Washington DC 20549

Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-

SEC-0330 The SEC also maintains website that contains reports proxy and information statements and

other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC at www.sec.gov
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Item IA Risk Factors

An investment in our securities involves number of signifIcant risks and other jactors relating to our

structure and investment objectives As result we cannot assure you that we will achieve our investment

objectives You should consider care lilly
the following information before making an investment in our

securities

Risks related to the economy

The recent turmoil in negotiations in the United States US Congress to increase taxes reduce spending

and raise the debt limit and the uncertainty of its impact to taxes and spending and the economic crisis in

Europe could negatively impact our liquidity Jinancial condition and earnings

Recent U.S budget deficit concerns together with continued signs of deteriorating sovereign debt

conditions in Europe have increased the possibility of additional credit-rating downgrades and economic

slowdowns Although U.S lawmakers passed legislation to increase taxes on income levels above certain

threshold in January 2013 they have delayed the decision to address spending cuts and the raising of the

federal debt ceiling until later in 2013 The U.S is currently on pace to reach its debt ceiling limit at the

end of February 2013 The uncertainty surrounding the outcome of these decisions and the ability of the

U.S government to raise the federal debt ceiling could cause the ratings agencies to lower the long-term

sovereign credit rating on the U.S again The sovereign credit rating was lowered from AAA to AA
in August 2011 The impact of this or any

further downgrades to the governments sovereign credit

rating or its perceived creditworthiness and the impact of the current crisis in Europe with respect to the

ability of certain European Union countries to continue to service their sovereign debt obligations is

inherently unpredictable and could adversely affect the U.S and global financial markets and economic

conditions There can be no assurance that governmental or other measures to aid economic
recovery

will

be effective These developments and the governments credit concerns in general could cause interest

rates and borrowing costs to rise which may negatively impact our ability to access the debt markets on

favorable terms in addition further decrease to the U.S credit rating could create broader financial

turmoil and uncertainty which may weigh heavily on our stock price Continued adverse economic

conditions could have material adverse effect on one or more of our tenants or our business financial

condition and results of operations

The current state of the economy and the capital markets increases the possibility of adverse effects on our

financial position results of operations and the market price of our securities

Over the last five years the U.S capital markets have experienced significant price volatility and liquidity

disruptions which have caused market prices of many stocks and debt securities to fluctuate substantially

and the spreads on prospective debt financings to widen considerably We believe that it will be few more

years
before the U.S fully recovers from the recession These circumstances have materially impacted

liquidity in the financial markets making terms for certain financings less attractive and in certain cases

have resulted in the lack of availability of certain types of financing Continued uncertainty in the stock and

credit markets may negatively impact our ability to access additional financing at reasonable terms which

may negatively affect our ability to make acquisitions These disruptions in the financial markets also may
have material adverse effect on the market value of our common and preferred stock and the lease rates

we can charge for our properties as well as other unknown adverse effects on us or the economy in general

In addition the continued challenging economic conditions could still materially and adversely impact the

financial condition of one or more of our tenants and therefore could increase the likelihood that tenant

may declare bankruptcy or default upon its payment obligations arising under related lease

Inflation may adversely qffect our financial condition and results of operations

Although inflation has not materially impacted our results of operations in the past increased inflation

could have more pronounced negative impact on our results of operations During times when inflation is

greater than increases in rent as provided for in our leases rent increases may not keep up with the rate of

inflation Likewise even though triple net leases reduce our exposure to rising property expenses
due to
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inflation substantial inflationary pressures
and increased costs may have an adverse impact on our tenants

if increases in their operating expenses exceed increases in revenue which may adversely affect the tenants

ability to pay rent

Risks related to our financing

Our Line of Credit contains various covenants which if not complied with could accelerate our repayment

obligations thereby materially and adversely affecting our liquidity financial condition results o/

operations and ability to pay distributions to stockholders

The agreement governing our Line of Credit requires us to comply with certain financial and operational

covenants These covenants require us to among other things maintain certain financial ratios including

fixed charge coverage debt service coverage and minimum net worth We are also required to limit our

distributions to stockholders to 95% of our FF0 and continued compliance with this covenant may require

us to limit our distributions to stockholders As of December 31 2012 we were in compliance with these

covenants However our continued compliance with these covenants depends on many factors and could

be impacted by current or future economic conditions and thus there are no assurances that we will

continue to comply with these covenants Failure to comply with these covenants would result in default

which if we were unable to obtain waiver from the lenders could accelerate our repayment obligations

under the Line of Credit and thereby have material adverse impact on our liquidity financial condition

results of operations and ability to pay distributions to stockholders

Our business strategy relies heavily on external financing which may expose us to risks associated with

leverage such as restrictions on additional borrowing and payment of distributions to stockholders risks

associated with balloon payments and risk of loss of our equity upon foreclosure

We use leverage so that we may make more investments than would otherwise be possible in order to

maximize potential returns to stockholders If the income generated by our properties and other assets fails

to cover our debt service we could be forced to reduce or eliminate distributions to our stockholders and

may experience losses

Our ability to achieve our investment objectives will be affected by our ability to borrow money in

sufficient amounts and on favorable terms We expect that we will borrow money that will be secured by

our properties and that these financing arrangements will contain customary covenants such as those that

limit our ability without the prior consent of the lender to further mortgage the applicable property or to

discontinue insurance coverage Accordingly we may be unable to obtain the degree of leverage we

believe to be optimal which may cause us to have less cash for distribution to stockholders than we would

have with an optimal amount of leverage Our use of leverage could also make us more vulnerable to

downturn in our business or the economy as it may become difficult to meet our debt service obligations if

our cash flows are reduced due to tenant defaults There is also risk that significant increase in the ratio

of our indebtedness to the measures of asset value used by financial analysts may have an adverse effect on

the market price of our securities

Some of our debt financing arrangements may require us to make lump-sum or balloon payments at

maturity Our ability to make balloon payment at maturity is uncertain and may depend upon our ability

to obtain additional financing or to sell the financed property At the time the balloon payment is due we

may not be able to refinance the balloon payment on terms as favorable as the original loan or sell the

property at price sufficient to make the balloon payment which could adversely affect the amount of

distributions to our stockholders

We intend to acquire additional properties by using our Line of Credit and by continuing to seek long-term

financing where we will borrow all or portion of the purchase price of potential acquisition and

securing the loan with mortgage on some or all of our existing real property The market for long-term

mortgages has been limited for some time however we have recently seen mid-to-long-term to 10 year

mortgages become more obtainable The CMBS market has made comeback over the past year but it is
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much more conservative than it was prior to the recession and the pricing in the market remains somewhat

volatile Consequently we are looking to regional banks insurance companies and other non-bank lenders

and to lesser extent the CMBS market to issue mortgages to finance our real estate activities As of

Iecember 31 2012 we had obtained approximately $359.2 million in long-term financing which we have

used to acquire additional properties If we are unable to make our debt payments as required lender

could foreclose on the property securing its loan This could cause us to lose part or all of our investment in

such property which in turn could cause the value of our securities or the amount of distributions to our

stockholders to be reduced

change in the value of our assets could cause us to experience cash shortt2ill be in defzult of our loan

covenants lose management control or incur charge/or the impairment of assets

We borrow on secured basis under the Line of Credit significant reduction in value of the assets

secured as collateral could require us to post additional assets or pay down the balance of the Line of

Credit Although we believe that we have significant excess collateral and capacity future asset values are

uncertain If we were unable to meet request to add collateral to the Line of Credit this inability could

have material adverse affect on our liquidity and our ability to meet our loan covenants We may
determine that the value of an individual asset or group of assets was impaired and that we may need to

record charge to write-down the value of the asset to reflect its current estimated value based upon its

intended use

Interest rate changes may adversely a/jct our results of operations

We may experience interest rate volatility in connection with mortgage loans on our properties or other

variable-rate debt that we may obtain from time to time Certain of our leases contain escalations based on

market interest rates and the interest rate on our existing Line of Credit is variable Although we seek to

mitigate this risk by structuring such provisions to contain minimum interest rate or escalation rate as

applicable these features do not eliminate this risk We are also exposed to the effects of interest rate

changes as result of holding cash and cash equivalents in short-term interest-bearing investments We
have not entered into any derivative contracts to attempt to further manage our exposure to interest rate

fluctuations significant change in interest rates could have an adverse impact on our results of

operations

Risks related to the real estate industry

We are subject to certain risks associated with real estate ownership and lending which could reduce the

value of our investments

our investments include net leased industrial commercial and retail property Our performance and the

value of our investments is subject to risks inherent to the ownership and operation of these types of

properties including

changes in the general economic climate

changes in local conditions such as an oversupply of space or reduction in demand for real estate

changes in interest rates and the availability of financing

competition from other available space and

changes in laws and governmental regulations including those governing real estate usage zoning and

taxes

The debt obligations of our tenants are dependent upon certain factors which neither we nor our tenants or

borrowers control such as national local and regional business and economic conditions government

economic policies and the level of interest rates As discussed in Risks related to the economy above the
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credit markets have tightened resulting in significant contraction in available liquidity Accordingly the

credit market constraints and recession may increase the operating expenses of our tenants and decrease

their ability to make lease payments and thereby adversely affect our liquidity financial condition results

of operations and ability to pay distributions to our stockholders

Competition/or the acquisition of real estate may impede our ability to make acquisitions or increase the

cost of these acquisitions

We compete with many other entities to acquire properties including financial institutions institutional

pension funds other REJTs other public and private real estate companies and private real estate investors

These competitors may prevent us from acquiring desirable properties or may cause an increase in the price

we must pay for real estate Our competitors may have greater resources than we do and may be willing to

pay more for certain assets or may have more compatible operating philosophy with our acquisition

targets In particular larger REITs may enjoy significant competitive advantages that result from among
other things lower cost of capital and enhanced operating efficiencies Our competitors may also adopt

transaction structures similar to ours which would decrease our competitive advantage in offering flexible

transaction terms In addition the number of entities and the amount of funds competing for suitable

investment properties may increase resulting in increased demand and increased prices paid for these

properties

Our ownership of properties through ground leases exposes us to risks which are dUjŁrent than those

resulting from our ownershij offtc title to other properties

We have acquired an interest in certain of our properties by acquiring leasehold interest in the land

underlying the property and we may acquire additional properties in the future that are subject to similar

ground leases In this situation we have no economic interest in the land underlying the property and do

not control this land We do not control the underlying land and this type of ownership interest
poses

potential risks for our business because if the ground lease terminates for any reason we will lose our

interest in the property including any investment that we made in the property ii if our tenant defaults

under the previously existing lease we will continue to be obligated to meet the terms and conditions of the

ground lease without the annual amount of ground lease payments reimbursable to us by the tenant and

iii if the third party owning the land under the ground lease disrupts our use either permanently or for

significant period of time then the value of our assets could be impaired and our results of operations could

be adversely affected

Risks related to our tenants borrowers and properties

Highly leveraged tenants and borrowers may be unable to pay rent or make mortgage payments which

could adversely affect our cash available to make distributions to our stockholders

Some of our tenants and borrowers may have recently been either restructured using leverage or acquired

in leveraged transaction Tenants and borrowers that are subject to significant debt obligations may he

unable to make their rent or mortgage payments if there are adverse changes to their businesses or because

of the impact of the recent recession discussed in Risks related to the economy Tenants that have

experienced leveraged restructurings or acquisitions will generally have substantially greater debt and

substantially lower net worth than they had prior to the leveraged transaction In addition the payment of

rent and debt service may reduce the working capital available to leveraged entities and
prevent them from

devoting the resources necessary to remain competitive in their industries

In situations where management of the tenant or bonower will change after transaction it may be

difficult for our Adviser to determine with reasonable certainty the likelihood of the tenants or borrowers

business success and of its ability to pay rent or make mortgage payments throughout the lease or loan

term These companies generally are more vulnerable to adverse economic and business conditions and

increases in interest rates

Leveraged tenants and borrowers are more susceptible to bankruptcy than unleveraged tenants Bankruptcy

of tenant or borrower could cause
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the loss of lease or mortgage payments to us

an increase in the costs we incur to carry the property occupied by such tenant

reduction in the value of our securities or

decrease in distributions to our stockholders

Under bankruptcy law tenant who is the subject of bankruptcy proceedings has the option of continuing

or terminating any unexpired lease If bankrupt tenant terminates lease with us any claim we might

have for breach of the lease excluding claim against collateral securing the claim will be treated as

general unsecured claim Our claim would likely be capped at the amount the tenant owed us for unpaid

rent prior to the bankruptcy unrelated to the termination plus the greater of one years lease payments or

15% of the remaining lease payments payable under the lease but no more than three years lease

payments In addition due to the long-term nature of our leases and terms providing for the repurchase of

property by the tenant bankruptcy court could re-characterize net lease transaction as secured

lending transaction If that were to occur we would not be treated as the owner of the property but might

have additional rights as secured creditor

Net leases may not result in/air market lease rates over time

We expect large portion of our rental income to come from net leases and net leases frequently provide

the tenant greater discretion in using the leased property than ordinary property leases such as the right to

sublease the property subject to our approval to make alterations in the leased premises and to terminate

the lease prior to its expiration under specified circumstances Further net leases are typically for longer

lease terms and thus there is an increased risk that contractual rental increases in future years will fail to

result in fair market rental rates during those years As result our income and distributions to our

stockholders could be lower than they would otherwise be if we did not engage in net leases

Many of our tenants are small and medium sized businesses which exposes us to additional risks unique to

these entities

Leasing real property or making mortgage loans to small and medium-sized businesses exposes us to

number of unique risks related to these entities including the following

Small and medium-sized businesses may have limited Jinancial resources and may no be able to make

their lease or mortgage payments on timely basis or at all small or medium-sized tenant or

borrower may be more likely to have difficulty making its lease or mortgage payments when it

experiences adverse events such as the failure to meet its business plan downturn in its industry or

negative economic conditions because its financial resources may be more limited In addition because

of the lack of available credit in the current marketplace for small and medium-sized businesses as

discussed in Risks related to the economy above our tenants might not be able to obtain the financing

necessary to fund their working capital which could hinder their ability to make their lease or mortgage

payment on timely basis or at all

Small and medium-sized businesses typically have narrower product lines and smaller market shares

than large businesses Because our target tenants and borrowers are typically smaller businesses that

may have narrower product lines and smaller market share they will tend to be more vulnerable to

competitors actions and market conditions as well as general economic downturns In addition our

target tenants and borrowers may face intense competition including competition from companies with

greater financial resources more extensive development manufacturing marketing and other capabilities

and larger number of qualified managerial and technical personnel
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There is generally little or no publicly available information about our target tenants and borrowers

Many of our tenants and borrowers are likely to be privately owned businesses about which there is

generally little or no publicly available operating and financial information As result we will rely on

our Adviser to perform due diligence investigations of these tenants and borrowers their operations and

their prospects We may not learn all of the material information we need to know regarding these

businesses through our investigations

Small and medium-sized businesses generally have less predictable operating results We expect that

many of our tenants and borrowers may experience significant fluctuations in their operating results may
from time to time be parties to litigation may be engaged in rapidly changing businesses with products

subject to substantial risk of obsolescence may require substantial additional capital to support their

operations to finance expansion or to maintain their competitive positions may otherwise have weak

financial position or may be adversely affected by changes in the business cycle Our tenants and

borrowers may not meet net income cash flow and other coverage tests typically imposed by their senior

lenders The failure of tenant or borrower to satisfy financial or operating covenants imposed by senior

lenders could lead to defaults and potentially foreclosure on credit facilities which could additionally

trigger cross-defaults in other agreements If this were to occur it is possible that the ability of the tenant

or borrower to make required payments to us would be jeopardized

Small and medium-sized businesses are more likely to be dependent on one or two persons Typically the

success of small or medium-sized business also depends on the management talents and efforts of one

or two persons or small group of persons The death disability or resignation of one or more of these

persons could have material adverse impact on our tenant or borrower and in turn on us

Small and medium-sized businesses may have limited operating histories While we intend to target as

tenants and borrowers stable companies with proven track records we may lease properties or lend

money to new companies that meet our other investment criteria Many of these new companies may be

small and medium-sized businesses Tenants or borrowers with limited operating histories will be

exposed to all of the operating risks that new businesses face and may be particularly susceptible to

among other risks market downturns competitive pressures and the departure of key executive officers

We may not have funding for future tenant improvements which may be required to secure tenants for

vacant space

When tenant at one of our properties does not renew its lease or otherwise vacates its space in one of our

buildings it is likely that in order to attract one or more new tenants we will be required to expend

substantial funds for tenant improvements and tenant refurbishments to re-lease the vacated space We

cannot assure you that we will have sufficient sources of funding available to us for such
purposes

in the

future and therefore may have difficulty in securing replacement tenant

Illiquidity qf real estate investments may make it dUjicult for us to sell properties in response to market

conditions and could harm our financial condition and ability to make distributions

To the extent the properties are not subject to triple-net leases some significant expenditures such as real

estate taxes and maintenance costs are generally not reduced when circumstances cause reduction in

income from the investment Should these events occur our income and funds available for distribution

could be adversely affected In addition as REIT we may be subject to 100% tax on net income derived

from the sale of property considered to be held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of our

business We may seek to avoid this tax by complying with certain safe harbor rules that generally limit the

number of properties we may sell in given year the aggregate expenditures made on such properties prior

to their disposition and how long we retain such properties before disposing of them However we can

provide no assurance that we will always be able to comply with these safe harbors If compliance is

possible the safe harbor rules may restrict our ability to sell assets in the future and achieve liquidity that

may be necessary to fund distributions
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Our real estate investmenls may include special use and single or multi-tenant properties that may be

difficult to sell or re-lease upon tenant detàults or early lease terminations

We focus our investments on commercial industrial and retail properties number of which include

manufacturing facilities special use storage or warehouse facilities and special use single or multi-tenant

properties These types of properties are relatively illiquid compared to other types of real estate and

financial assets This illiquidity will limit our ability to quickly change our portfolio in response to changes

in economic or other conditions With these properties if the current lease is terminated or not renewed or

in the case of mortgage loan if we take such property in foreclosure we may be required to renovate the

property or to make rent concessions in order to lease the property to another tenant or sell the property In

addition in the event we are forced to sell the property we may have difficulty selhng it to party other

than the tenant or borrower due to the special purpose
for which the property may have been designed

These and other limitations may affect our ability to sell or re-lease properties without adversely affecting

returns to our stockholders

Our real estate investments have limited number of tenants and are concentrated in limited number of

industries which subjects us to an increased risk of signicant loss if ani one of these tenants is unable to

pay or if particular industries experience downturns

As of December 2012 we owned 80 properties and had 65 tenants in these properties and our largest

tenants accounted for approximately 20.1% of our total rental income consequence of limited number

of tenants is that the aggregate returns we realize may be materially adversely affected by the unfavorable

performance of small number of tenants We do not have fixed guidelines for industry concentration and

our investments could potentially be concentrated in relatively few industries As of December 31 2012

14.4% of our total rental income was earned from tenants in the telecommunications industry 12.3% was

earned from tenants in the electronic industries and 10.3% was earned from tenants in the healthcare

industry As result downturn in an industry in which we have invested significant portion of our total

assets could have material adverse effect on us

The inability of tenant in single tenant property to pay rent will reduce our revenues and increase our

carrying costs of the building

Since most of our properties are occupied by single tenant the success of our investments will be

materially dependent on the financial stability of these tenants If tenant defaults our rental revenues

would be reduced and our expenses associated with carrying the property would increase as we would be

responsible for payments such as taxes and insurance Lease payment defaults by these tenants could

adversely affect our cash flows and cause us to reduce the amount of distributions to stockholders In the

event of default by tenant we may experience delays in enforcing our rights as landlord and may incur

substantial costs in protecting our investment and re-leasing our property If lease is terminated there is

no assurance that we will be able to lease the property for the rent previously received or sell the property

without incurring loss

We may he unable to renew leases lease vacant .space or release space as leases expire which could

adversely affect our business and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders

If we cannot renew leases we may be unable to re-lease our properties to other tenants at rates equal to or

above the current market rate Even if we can renew leases tenants may be able to negotiate lower rates as

result of market conditions Market conditions may also hinder our ability to lease vacant space in newly

developed or redeveloped properties In addition we may enter into or acquire leases for properties that are

specially suited to the needs of particular tenant Such properties may require renovations tenant

improvements or other concessions in order to lease them to other tenants if the initial leases terminate

Any of these factors could adversely impact our financial condition results of operations cash flow or our

ability to pay distributions to our stockholders
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Liability for uninsured losses could adversely aft ct our financial condition

Losses from disaster-type occurrences such as wars floods or earthquakes may be either uninsurable or

not insurable on economically viable terms Should such loss occur we could lose our capital investment

or anticipated profits and cash flow from one or more properties

We could incur significant costs related to government regulation and private litigation over environmental

matters

Under various environmental laws including the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation

and Liability Act or CERCLA current or previous owner or operator of real property may be liable for

contamination resulting from the release or threatened release of hazardous or toxic substances or

petroleum at that property and an entity that arranges for the disposal or treatment of hazardous or toxic

substance or petroleum at another property may be held jointly and severally liable for the cost to

investigate and clean up such property or other affected property Such parties are known as potentially

responsible parties or PRPs Environmental laws often impose liability without regard to whether the

owner or operator knew of or was responsible for the presence of the contaminants and the costs of any

required investigation or cleanup of these substances can be substantial PRPs are liable to the government

as well as to other PRPs who may have claims for contribution The liability is generally not limited under

such laws and could exceed the propertys value and the aggregate assets of the liable party The presence

of contamination or the failure to remediate contamination at our properties also may expose us to third-

party liability for personal injury or property damage or adversely affect our ability to sell lease or develop

the real property or to borrow using the real property as collateral

Environmental laws also impose ongoing compliance requirements on owners and operators of real

property Environmental laws potentially affecting us address wide variety of matters including but not

limited to asbestos-containing building materials storage tanks storm water and wastewater discharges

lead-based paint wetlands and hazardous wastes Failure to comply with these laws could result in fines

and penalties and/or expose us to third-party liability Some of our properties may have conditions that are

subject to these requirements and we could be liable for such fines or penalties and/or liable to third parties

for those conditions

We could he exposed to liability and remedial costs related to environmental matters

Certain of our properties may contain or may have contained asbestos-containing building materials or

ACBMs Environmental laws require that ACBMs be properly managed and maintained and may impose

fines and penalties on building owners and operators for failure to comply with these requirements Also

certain of our properties may contain or may have contained or are adjacent to or near other properties that

have contained or currently contain storage tanks for the storage of petroleum products or other hazardous

or toxic substances These operations create potential for the release of petroleum products or other

hazardous or toxic substances Certain of our properties may contain or may have contained elevated

radon levels Third parties may be permitted by law to seek
recovery

from owners or operators for property

damage and/or personal injury associated with exposure to contaminants including but not limited to

petroleum products hazardous or toxic substances and asbestos fibers Also certain of our properties may
contain regulated wetlands that can delay or impede development or require costs to be incurred to mitigate

the impact of any disturbance Absent appropriate permits we can be held responsible for restoring

wetlands and be required to pay fines and penalties

Certain of our properties may contain or may have contained microbial matter such as mold and mildew

The presence of microbial matter could adversely affect our results of operations En addition if any of our

property is not properly connected to water or sewer system or if the integrity of such systems are

breached or if water intrusion into our buildings otherwise occurs microbial matter or other contamination

can develop When excessive moisture accumulates in buildings or on building materials mold growth

may occur particularly if the moisture problem remains undiscovered or is not addressed over period of

time Some molds may produce airborne toxins or irritants If this were to occur we could incur significant

remedial costs and we may also be subject to material private damage claims and awards Concern about
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indoor exposure to mold has been increasing as exposure to mold may cause variety of adverse health

effects and symptoms including allergic or other reactions If we become subject to claims in this regard

it could materially and adversely affect us and our future insurability for such matters

Independent environmental consultants conduct Phase environmental site assessments on all of our

acquisitions Phase environmental site assessments are intended to evaluate information regarding the

environmental condition of the surveyed property and surrounding properties based generally on visual

observations interviews and certain publicly available databases These assessments do not typically take

into account all environmental issues including but not limited to testing of soil or groundwater or the

possible presence of asbestos lead-based paint radon wetlands or mold The results of these assessments

are addressed and could result in either cancellation of the purchase the requirement of the seller to

remediate issues or additional costs on our part to remediate the issue

None of the previous site assessments revealed any past or present environmental liability that we believe

would be material to us However the assessments may have failed to reveal all environmental conditions

liabilities or compliance concerns Material environmental conditions liabilities or compliance concerns

may have arisen after the assessments were conducted or may arise in the future and future laws

ordinances or regulations may impose material additional environmental liability We cannot assure you

that costs of future environmental compliance will not affect our ability to make distributions or that such

costs or other remedial measures will not be material to us

If sale-leaseback transaction is re-characterized in tenant hankrupty proceeding our financial

condition could be adversely affected

We may enter into sale-leaseback transactions whereby we would purchase property and then lease the

same property back to the person from whom we purchased it In the ent of the bankruptcy of tenant

transaction structured as sale-leaseback may be re-characterized as either financing or joint venture

either of which outcomes could adversely affect our business If the sale-leaseback were re-characterized as

financing we might not be considered the owner of the property and as result would have the status of

creditor in relation to the tenant In that event we would no longer have the right to sell or encumber our

ownership interest in the property Instead we would have claim against the tenant for the amounts owed

under the lease with the claim arguably secured by the property The tenant/debtor might have the ability

to propose plan restructuring the term interest rate and amortization schedule of its outstanding balance

If confirmed by the bankruptcy court we could be bound by the new terms and prevented from foreclosing

our lien on the property If the sale-leaseback were re-characterized as joint venture we could be treated

as co-venturer with our lessee with regard to the property As result we could be held liable under

some circumstances for debts incurred by the lessee relating to the property Either of these outcomes

could adversely affect our cash flow and our ability to pay distributions to stockholders

Our properties may be subject to impairment charges which could adversely affect our results of

operations

We are required to periodically evaluate our properties for impairment indicators propertys value is

considered impaired if managements estimate of the aggregate future cash flows undiscounted and

without interest charges to be generated by the property based upon its intended use is less than the

carrying value of the property These estimates of cash flows are based upon factors such as expected

future operating income trends and prospects as well as the effects of interest and capitalization rates

demand and occupancy competition and other factors Ongoing adverse market and economic conditions

and market volatility make it difficult to value our properties These factors may result in uncertainty in

valuation estimates and instability in the estimated value of our properties which in turn could result in

substantial decrease in the value of the properties and significant impairment charges

We continually assess our properties to determine if any impairments are necessary or appropriate No

assurance can be given that we will be able to recover the current carrying amount of our properties in the

future Our failure to do so would require us to recognize additional impairment charges for the period in
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which we reached that conclusion which could materially and adversely affect us and our results of

operations

If we invest in mortgage loans such investments may be affected by unfavorable real estate market

conditions including interest rate fluctuations which could decrease the value of those loans and our

results of operations

If we invest in mortgage loans we will be at risk of defaults by the borrowers on those mortgage loans as

well as interest rate risks To the extent we incur delays in liquidating such defaulted mortgage loans we

may not be able to obtain sufficient proceeds to repay all amounts due to us under the mortgage loans

Further we will not know whether the values of the properties securing the mortgage loans will remain at

the levels existing on the dates of origination of those mortgage loans If the values of the underlying

properties fall our risk will increase because of the lower value of the security associated with such loans

Risks related to our Adviser

We are dependent upon our key personnel who are employed by our Adviser for our future success

particularly David Gladstone Terry Lee Brubaker and Robert Cutlip

We are dependent on our senior management and other key management members to carry out our business

and investment strategies Our future success depends to significant extent on the continued service and

coordination of our senior management team particularly David Gladstone our chairman and chief

executive officer Terry Lee Brubaker our vice chairman and chief operating officer and Robert Cutlip

our president The departure of any of our executive officers or key personnel employed by our Adviser

could have material adverse effect on our ability to implement our business strategy and to achieve our

investment objectives

Our success depends on the performance of our Adviser and our Adviser makes inadvisable investment

or management decisions our operations could be materially adversely impacted

Our ability to achieve our investment objectives and to pay distributions to our stockholders is dependent

upon the performance of our Adviser in evaluating potential investments selecting and negotiating

property purchases and dispositions and mortgage loans selecting tenants and borrowers setting lease or

mortgage loan terms and determining financing arrangements Accomplishing these objectives on cost-

effective basis is largely function of our Advisers marketing capabilities management of the investment

process ability to provide competent attentive and efficient services and our access to financing sources on

acceptable terms Our stockholders have no opportunity to evaluate the terms of transactions or other

economic or financial data concerning our investments and must rely entirely on the analytical and

management abilities of our Adviser and the oversight of our Board of Directors If our Adviser or our

Board of Directors makes inadvisable investment or management decisions our operations could be

materially adversely impacted As we grow our Adviser may be required to hire train supervise and

manage new employees Our Advisers failure to effectively manage our future growth could have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

We may have conflicts of interest with our Adviser and other affiliates

Our Adviser manages our business and locates evaluates recommends and negotiates the acquisition of

our real estate investments At the same time our advisory agreement permits our Adviser to conduct other

commercial activities and provide management and advisory services to other entities including but not

limited to Gladstone Capital Corporation or Gladstone Capital Gladstone Investment Corporation or

Gladstone Investment and Gladstone Land Corporation or Gladstone Land Moreover with the exception

of our chief financial officer and treasurer and president all of our officers and directors are also officers

and directors of Gladstone Capital and Gladstone Investment which actively make loans to and invest in

small and medium-sized companies In addition with the exception of our president all of our officers and

eight of our nine directors are also officers and directors of Gladstone Land As result we may from time

to time have conflicts of interest with our Adviser in its management of our business and with Gladstone

Capital Gladstone Investment and Gladstone Land which may arise primarily from the involvement of our
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Adviser Gladstone Capital Gladstone Investment Gladstone Land and their affiliates in other activities

that may conflict with our business

Examples of these potential conflicts include

our Adviser may realize substantial compensation on account of its activities on our behalf and may

therefore be motivated to approve acquisitions solely on the basis of increasing compensation to itself

we may experience competition with our affiliates for financing transactions

our Adviser may earn fee income from our borrowers or tenants and

our Adviser and other affiliates such as Gladstone Capital Gladstone Investment and Gladstone Land

could compete for the time and services of our officers and directors

These and other conflicts of interest between us and our Adviser and other affiliates could have material

adverse effect on the operation of our business and the selection or management of our real estate

investments

Our Adviser is not obligated to provide waiver of the incentive fee which could negatively impact our

earnings and our ability to maintain our current level of or increase distributions to our stockholders

The Advisory Agreement contemplates quarterly incentive fee based on our funds from operations Our

Adviser has the ability to issue full or partial waiver of the incentive fee for current and future periods

however our Adviser is not required to issue any waiver Any waiver issued by our Adviser is an

unconditional and irrevocable waiver For the years
ended December 2012 2011 and 2010 an

unconditional and irrevocable voluntary waiver was issued by our Adviser for approximately $2.2 million

$2.1 million and $0.2 million respectively If our Adviser does not issue this waiver in future quarters it

could negatively impact our earnings and may compromise our ability to maintain our current level of or

increase distributions to our stockholders which could have material adverse impact on the market price

of our securities

We may be obligated to pay our Adviser incentive compensation even if we incur loss

The Advisory Agreement entitles our Adviser to incentive compensation based on our FF0 which rewards

the Adviser if our quarterly FF0 before giving effect to any incentive fee exceeds 1.75% 7% annualized

of our total stockholders equity less the recorded value of any preferred stock Our pre-incentive fee FF0

for incentive compensation purposes excludes the effect of any unrealized gains losses or other items that

do not affect realized net income that we may incur in the fiscal quarter even if such losses result in net

loss on our statement of operations for that quarter Thus we may be required to pay our Adviser incentive

compensation for fiscal
quarter even if we incur net loss for that quarter

Risks Related to Qualification and Operation as REIT

I/we fyil to qualify as REIT our operations and dividends to stockholders would he adversely impacted

We intend to continue to be organized and to operate so as to qualify as REIT under the Internal Revenue

Code of 1986 as amended or the Code REIT generally is not taxed at the corporate level on income it

currently distributes to its stockholders Qualification as REIT involves the application of highly technical

and complex rules for which there are only limited judicial or administrative interpretations The

determination of various factual matters and circumstances not entirely within our control may affect our

ability to continue to qualify as REIT In addition new legislation new regulations administrative

interpretations or court decisions could significantly change the tax laws possibly with retroactive effect

with respect to qualification as REIT or the federal income tax consequences of such qualification

If we were to fail to qualify as REIT in
any

taxable year
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we would not be allowed to deduct our distributions to stockholders when computing our taxable

income

we would be subject to federal income tax including any applicable alternative minimum tax on

our taxable income at regular corporate rates

we would be disqualified from being taxed as REIT for the four taxable years following the year

during which qualification was lost unless entitled to relief under certain statutory provisions

our cash available for dividends to stockholders would be reduced and

we may be required to borrow additional funds or sell some of our assets in order to pay corporate

tax obligations that we may incur as result of our disqualification

We may need to incur additional borrowings to meet the REIT minimum distribution requirement and to

avoid excise tax

In order to maintain our qualification as REIT we are required to distribute to our stockholders at least

90% of our annual real estate investment trust taxable income excluding any net capital gain and before

application of the dividends paid deduction To the extent that we satisfy this distribution requirement but

distribute less than 100% of our taxable income we will be subject to federal corporate income tax on our

undistributed taxable income In addition we are subject to 4% nondeductible excise tax on the amount

if any by which certain distributions paid by us with respect to any calendar year are less than the sum of

85/o of our ordinary income for that year ii 95% of our net capital gain for that year and iii 100% of

our undistributed taxable income from prior years In order to meet the 90% distribution requirement and

to avoid the 4% excise tax we may need to incur additional borrowings Although we intend to pay

dividends to our stockiiolders in manner that allows us to meet the 90% distribution requirement and

avoid this 4% excise tax we cannot assure you that we will always be able to do so

Complying with the REIT requirements may cause us to Jbrgo otherwise attractive opportunities or

liquidate otherwise attractive investments

To qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes we must continually satisfy tests concerning among
other things the nature and diversification of our assets the sources of our gross income the amounts we
distribute to our stockholders and the ownership of our capital stock In order to meet these tests we may
be required to forgo investments we might otherwise make Thus compliance with the REIT requirements

may hinder our performance

In particular we must ensure that at the end of each calendar quarter at least 75% of the value of our assets

consists of cash cash items government securities and qualified real estate assets The remainder of our

investment in securities other than government securities securities of taxable REIT subsidiaries each
taxable REIT subsidiary or TRS and qualified real estate assets generally cannot include more than 10%

of the outstanding voting securities of any one issuer or more than 10% of the total value of the outstanding

securities of any one issuer In addition in general no more than 5% of the value of our assets other than

government securities securities of TRSs and qualified real estate assets can consist of the securities of

any one issuer and no more than 25% of the value of our total assets can be represented by the securities of

one or more TRSs

We also must ensure that at least 75% of our gross income for each taxable year consists of certain types

of income that we derive directly or indirectly from investments relating to real property or mortgages on

real property or qualified temporary investment income and ii at least 95% of our gross income for each

taxable year consists of income that is qualifying income for purposes of the 75% gross income test other

types of interest and dividends gain from the sale or disposition of stock or securities or any combination

of these
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In addition we may be required to make distributions to our stockholders at disadvantageous times or when

we do not have funds readily available for distribution If we fail to comply with these requirements at the

end of any calendar quarter we must qualify for certain statutory relief provisions to avoid losing our REIT

qualification and suffering adverse tax consequences As result we may be required to liquidate

otherwise attractive investments and may be unable to pursue
investments that would otherwise be

advantageous to us in order to satisfy the asset and gross income requirements for qualifying as REIT

These actions could have the effect of reducing our income and the amounts available for distribution to

our stockholders Thus compliance with the REIT requirements may hinder our ability to make and in

certain cases maintain ownership of certain attractive investments

lYe may be subject to adverse legislative or regulatoiy tax changes that could reduce the market price of

our securities

At any time the federal income tax laws governing REITs or the administrative interpretations of those

laws may be amended We cannot predict when or if any new federal income tax law regulation or

administrative interpretation or any amendment to any existing federal income tax law regulation or

administrative interpretation will be adopted promulgated or become effective and any such law

regulation or interpretation may take effect retroactively We and our stockholders could be adversely

affected by any such change in or any new federal income tax law regulation or administrative

interpretation

Dividends payable by REITc do not qualfj for the reduced tax rates available Jbr some dividends

The maximum federal income tax rate applicable to income from qualified dividends payable to U.S

stockholders that are individuals trusts and estates was reduced by legislation to 15% or 20% for those

taxpayers who earn above certain income threshold Dividends payable by REITs however generally

are not eligible for the reduced rates Although this legislation does not adversely affect the taxation of

REITs or dividends payable by REITs the more favorable rates applicable to regular corporate qualified

dividends could cause investors who are individuals trusts and estates to perceive investments in REITs to

be relatively less attractive than investments in the stocks of non-REIT corporations that pay dividends

which could adversely affect the value of the shares of REITs including our stock

Complying with the REIT requirements may limit our ability to hedge effectively and may cause us to incur

tax liabilities

The REIT provisions of the Code substantially limit our ability to hedge our liabilities Any income from

hedging transaction that we enter into to manage risk of interest rate changes price changes or currency

fluctuations with respect to borrowings made or to be made to acquire or carry real estate assets does not

constitute gross income for
purposes

of the
gross

income requirements To the extent that we enter into

other types of hedging transactions the income from those transactions is likely to be treated as non-

qualifying income for
purposes

of both of the
gross

income tests As result of these rules we may need to

limit our use of advantageous hedging techniques or implement those hedges through TRSs This could

increase the cost of our hedging activities because any TRS would be subject to tax on gains or expose us

to greater risks associated with changes in interest rates than we would otherwise want to bear In addition

losses incurred by TRS generally will not provide any tax benefit except for being carried forward

against future taxable income earned by the TRS

To the extent thai our distributions represent return of capital for tax purposes you could recognize an

increased capital gain upon subsequent sale ofyour stock

Distributions in excess of our current and accumulated earnings and profits and not treated by us as

dividend will not be taxable to U.S stockholder to the extent such distributions do not exceed the

stockholders adjusted tax basis in its shares of our stock but instead will constitute return of capital and

will reduce the stockholders adjusted tax basis in its shares of our stock If our distributions result in

reduction of stockholders adjusted basis in its shares of our stock subsequent sales by such stockholder

of its shares of our stock potentially will result in recognition of an increased capital gain or reduced capital

loss due to the reduction in such stockholders adjusted basis in its shares of our stock
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If our Operating Partnership fails to maintain its status as disregarded entity or partnership Jbr federal

income tax purposes its income may be subject to taxation

As we hold all of the ownership interests in our Operating Partnership it is currently disregarded for

income tax purposes We intend that our Operating Partnership will qualify as partnership for income tax

purposes upon the admission of additional partners however if the IRS were to successfully challenge the

status of our Operating Partnership as partnership it would be taxable as corporation In such event this

would reduce the amount of distributions that our Operating Partnership could make to us This could also

result in our losing REIT status and becoming subject to corporate level tax on our income This would

substantially reduce our cash available to pay distributions and the return on your investment In addition if

any of the entities through which our Operating Partnership owns its properties in whole or in part loses

its characterization as disregarded entity or partnership for federal income tax purposes it would be

subject to taxation as corporation thereby reducing distributions to our Operating Partnership Such re

characterization of an underlying property owner could also threaten our ability to maintain REIT status

Other risks

We are subject to restrictions that may discourage change of control Certain provisions contained in our

articles of incorporation and Maryland law may prohibit or restrict change of control

Our articles of incorporation prohibit ownership of more than 9.8% of the outstanding shares of our

capital stock by one person This restriction may discourage change of control and may deter

individuals or entities from making tender offers for our capital stock which offers might otherwise he

financially attractive to our stockholders or which might cause change in our management

Our Board of Directors is divided into three classes with the term of the directors in each class expiring

every third year At each annual meeting of stockholders the successors to the class of directors whose

term expires at such meeting will be elected to hold office for term expiring at the annual meeting of

stockholders held in the third year following the year of their election After election director may only

be removed by our stockholders for cause Election of directors for staggered terms with limited rights to

remove directors makes it more difficult for hostile bidder to acquire control of us The existence of this

provision may negatively impact the price of our securities and may discourage third-party bids to

acquire our securities This provision may reduce any premiums paid to stockholders in change in

control transaction

Certain provisions of Maryland law applicable to us prohibit business combinations with

any person who beneficially owns 10% or more of the voting power of our common stock referred

to as an interested stockholder

an affiliate of ours who at any time within the two-year period prior to the date in question was an

interested stockholder or

an affiliate of an interested stockholder

These prohibitions last for five years after the most recent date on which the interested stockholder became

an interested stockholder Thereafter any business combination with the interested stockholder must be

recommended by our Board of Directors and approved by the affirmative vote of at least 80% of the votes

entitled to be cast by holders of our outstanding shares of common stock and two-thirds of the votes

entitled to be cast by holders of our common stock other than shares held by the interested stockholder

These requirements could have the effect of inhibiting change in control even if change in control were

in our stockholders interest These provisions of Maryland law do not apply however to business

combinations that are approved or exempted by our Board of Directors prior to the time that someone

becomes an interested stockholder
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Market conditions could adversely afjct the market price and trading volume of our securities

The market price of our common and preferred stock may be highly volatile and subject to wide

fluctuations and the trading volume in our common and preferred stock may fluctuate and cause significant

price variations to occur We cannot assure investors that the market price of our common and preferred

stock will not fluctuate or decline further in the future Some market conditions that could negatively affect

our share price or result in fluctuations in the price or trading volume of our securities include but are not

limited to

price and volume fluctuations in the stock market from time to time which are often unrelated to the

operating performance of particular companies

significant volatility in the market price and trading volume of shares of REITs real estate companies or

other companies in our sector which is not necessarily related to the performance of those companies

price and volume fluctuations in the stock market as result of terrorist attacks or speculation regarding

future terrorist attacks in the United States or abroad

actual or anticipated variations in our quarterly operating results or distributions to stockholders

changes in our funds from operations or earnings estimates or the publication of research reports
about us

or the real estate industry generally

actions by institutional stockholders

speculation in the press or investment community

changes in regulatory policies or tax guidelines particularly with respect to REITs and

investor confidence in the stock market

Shares of common stock elgihle for future sale may have adverse e/focts on our share price

We cannot predict the effect if any of future sales of common stock or the availability of shares for future

sales on the market price of our common stock Sales of substantial amounts of common stock including

shares of common stock issuable upon the conversion of units of our operating partnership that we may

issue from time to time or issuable upon conversion of our senior common stock or the perception that

these sales could occur may adversely affect prevailing market prices for our common stock

Legislative or regulatoiy action could adversey a/foci investors

In recent years numerous legislative judicial and administrative changes have been made in the provisions

of the federal and state income tax laws applicable to investments in stock of REITs Additional changes to

tax laws are likely to continue to occur in the future and we cannot assure you that any such changes will

not adversely affect the taxation of our stockholders Any such changes could have an adverse effect on an

investment in our shares or on the market value or the resale potential of our properties

Compliance or fiuilure to comply with laws requiring access to our properties by disabled
persons

could

result in substantial cost

The Americans with Disabilities Act or ADA and other federal stale and local laws generally require

public accommodations he made accessible to disabled persons Noncompliance could result in the

imposition of fines by the government or the award of damages to private litigants These laws may require

us to modify our existing properties These laws may also restrict renovations by requiring improved access

to such buildings by disabled persons or may require us to add other structural features which increase our

construction costs Legislation or regulations adopted in the future may impose further burdens or

restrictions on us with respect to improved access by disabled persons We may incur unanticipated

expenses that may be material to our financial condition or results of operations to comply with ADA and

other federal state and local laws or in connection with lawsuits brought by private litigants
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Our Board of Directors may change our investment policy without stockholders approval

Subject to our co-investment policy our Board of Directors will determine our investment and financing

policies growth strategy and our debt capitalization distribution acquisition disposition and operating

policies Our Board of Directors may revise or amend these strategies and policies at any time without

vote by stockholders Accordingly stockholders control over changes in our strategies and policies is

limited to the election of directors and changes made by our Board of Directors may not serve the interests

of stockholders and could adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations including our

ability to distribute cash to stockholders or qualify as REIT

Our fiuilure to redeem our Series Term Preterred Stock on its Mandatory Redemption Date could trigger

change oJ control in our Board of Directors

If we fail to redeem or call for redemption the Series Term Preferred Stock pursuant to the mandatory

redemption required on January 2017 the number of directors constituting our Board of Directors will

be increased by the minimum number of directors that when added to our Board of Directors will

constitute majority and the holders of our Series Term Preferred Stock will be entitled voting as

separate class to the exclusion of the holders of all other classes or series of our stock to elect such

number of additional directors Therefore change of control in our Board of Directors could occur

which could jeopardize the stability of our Company

Joint venture investments could he adversely affected by our lack of sole decision making authority our

reliance on co-venturers financial condition and disputes between our co-venturers and us

We may invest with third parties through partnerships joint ventures or other entities acquiring non-

controlling interests in or sharing responsibility for managing the affairs of property partnership joint

venture or other entity In such event we will not have sole decision-making authority regarding the

property partnership joint venture or other entity Investments in partnerships joint ventures or other

entities may under certain circumstances involve risks not present were third party not involved

including the possibility that partners or co-venturers may become bankrupt or fail to fund their share of

required capital contributions Partners or co-venturers also may have economic or other business interests

or goals that are inconsistent with our business interests or goals and may be in position to take actions

contrary to our preferences policies or objectives Such investments also will have the potential risk of our

reaching impasses with our partners or co-venturers on key decisions such as sale because neither we

nor the partner or co-venturer would have full control over the partnership or joint venture Disputes

between us and partners or co-venturers may result in litigation or arbitration that would increase our

expenses and prevent our management team from focusing its time and effort exclusively on our business

In addition we may in some circumstances be liable for the actions of our third-party partners or co
venturers

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to take action against our directors and o/jIcers are limited

Maryland law provides that director or officer has no liability in that capacity if he or she performs his or

her duties in good faith in manner he or she reasonably believes to be advisable and in our best interests

and with the care that an ordinarily prudent person in like position would use under similar

circumstances In addition our charter eliminates our directors and officers liability to us and our

stockholders for money damages except for liability resulting from actual receipt of an improper benefit in

money property or services or active and deliberate dishonesty established by final judgment and that is

material to the cause of action and ii requires us to indemnify directors and officers for liability resulting

from actions taken by them in those capacities to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law As

result our stockholders and we may have more limited rights against our directors and officers than might

otherwise exist under common law In addition we may be obligated to fund the defense costs incurred by

our directors and officers

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None
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Item Properties

The following table provides certain summary information about our 80 properties as of December

2012 dollars in thousands except per square foot information

Teral Rectal

Year ti
oral Rrnlal 1ttett fri

lraeoram per

Year Built Reelalrk Lease tIm year
rixled

losegr.id Square
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5700 lee Pied

Slapk- Ilepfla LIII 1974 II 21 2005 347219 lOW 2017 127 300 10167

097 12 77 2004 58026 1009 205 xl 1007 4014

594 302014 54018 0IP 204 338 526 2771

905 095 429 2004 0389 100% 2010 1027 220 7099

1904.1995 030 2004 64500 100% 2t 1075 k27 6574

900 2004 22800 lOOP 2024 60 2.53 3704

1991 2W4 201410 100% Id 53 21 5.575

955 52014 154100 lOOP 7tI 475 75 750

241 06 204 51.933 OWn 245 1445 058

905009 IS 284 723275 lOW 212 693 84 5044

1990 2005 65245 100% 2121 707 3.06 6.019

595 02O5 39100 lOW 219 308 7.90 2.613

20 4.15 2005 2011 100% 2029 147 006 5.521

700 10245 55757 95% 7117 544 62 7929

1060 752055 64.000 lOW 248 028 12.94 3949

090 030245 50894 000 218 208 447 1051

00 2007 30200 100 2024 018 777 440

1970 II 1005 183.000 lOP 2020 088 540 6658

1504 2001 2147 14 2147 22207 lOW 2020 1740 001 0812

0842 2017 14 2147 50350 100% 020 583 6.92 200%

197 05 2007 51.155 20 2947

1082 42 2000 0204 00 1021 127 244 565

1998 92 2000 70000 100% 2023 27 659

1586 2110 02.000 lOWs 1025 17 244 664

1904 17 2015 86.308 bOO 1117 89 52 6497

952 1031 2000 101142 100 1020 075 197 5183
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Item Properties Continued

1979 12/30/2005 23368 100%

1978 21 52006 50000 00%

1996 2/21/2116 2040 100%

1996 2/212006 40000 /10%

1996 2/21/2006 29.100 100%

2/21/2006 22902 00%

2/21/2006 399940 00%

9/10/2006 1/4110 101%

6/30/2006 129692 00%

7/12006 /200 101%

9/22/2006 932.869 /00%

9/29/2006 63%4 100%

9/292006 29472 /00%

9/29/2006 16279 00%

/iS/2007 60000 /00%

226/2007 /13.900 100%

3/ 2007 23630 100%

3/9/2007 132.337 00%

917/2007 102200 100%

71/2007 21.264 00%

9/62007 7/880 00%

9/29/2007 63239 00%

9/28/2007 95869 110%

/989 1213/2007 /6740 /00%

202 276

2114 292

2024 297

2024 494

2024 309

2024 292

207 2.326

205 1.235

206 796

703 254

20/6 l/67

206 27/

206 /26
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209 7/7
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2027 263
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20/4 09

5.279

10
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1233

9.25

082
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2%

4.24

0.63
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6.57
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9.33
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Maaar DII

25 Saath Bagoro Lawn

Ra6Io NO

III Wear /erhder

Taka OK

3725 Fact 016 Casts
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IS/S ArbrrelcartDrrvr 91/

Dnarha RapkIa MI
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BakWrraaL II
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/996

1964

1984

1996/200%

1997

1979/1989

/961/1981t

1962/1989

97%

2002

1994

2004

1956/1992

1985/198%

2007

2005

2001

2002

2.647

1032

3./99

2.000

1829

7.930

6902

200

4.445

532%

8.272

4700

4./41

610

203 492 2939
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Item Properties Continued
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Item Properties Continued

393 Uoroorsty osard

/Jopitor FL

Tolal RrnliI

Year of
Total Rental moon tar

I000mo por

Lease 101 year rrdrd rt s9ion

______________ ___________ ___________ Exp6awn Droronr 312012 Fool l-miathrawol

925 8.92 7.055

971 5/30/202 352860 00% 2023 408 94 4803

2007 652012 89000 100% 2023 776 1029 9.061

202 6/21/2012 32000 100% 2023 346 2150 4.712

961 629/2012 31293 100% 2022 166 1193 2979

2011 9126/2112 60000 00% 2023 362 22 87 111.717

141 10101 Borgrss Orb0

F0 Words IX 2/105 1182012 208234 100% 2023 240 62

565 Spoor rook Isooh Road

COhliiatia SI 211/0 111212012 46403 190% 2023 292 17.85 /910

Totals 8043792
______________________ ______________

Two tenants occupy this building each with separate leases ending in the sante year

Rental in ome per occupied square fool is annualized as if the building were held for allof 2012

Property subject too ground lease

Total rerala Income included in this table is straight-line rental income calculated in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States

Tenant hos the option to tenninate the lease in yeats 26-75

Tenant has the option to terminate the lease in years 19-62

The following table summarizes the lease

December 31 2012 dollars in thousands

expirations by year for our properties for leases in place as of

Rental Revenue for

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

12000

703887

896876

835022

531027

123894

302810

4544908

Leases

38

of Annualized Base

Rent

0.5%

5.1

13.4

6.2

10.2

2.2

5.1

57.3

100%

Our two vacant buildings total 93368 square
feet

Yrar huibo Rentable

Inproveirnots Date ufPanchase Square Fret Oucirarasy

44426 Atoaror P600

Aslrltiini YAI

4955 616 Star

Otturssa

780 SSAhor Parkaay

NOD ARes1 00

7201/ Nook lako Door

Coao6ios

3592 forpor tie 1050

oluobas 10

202 1/25/2012 9230 100% 2027

43

58915 358290

Year of Lease

Expiration Square Feet

Number of

Total

the
year

ended

December 31 2012

254

2565

6823

3177

5193

1096

2622

29185

509157950424 65
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The following table summarizes the geographic locations of our properties for leases in place as of

December 31 2012 dollars in thousands

Number of

State Leases

14

32

65

Rental Revenue for the year

ended December 31 2012

8.665

5373

4.788

3439

2693

25957

50915

The following table summarizes rental income by tenant industries for the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 dollars in thousands

Item Legal Proceedings

For he year ended December 31

20 2010

We are not currently subject to any material legal proceedings nor to our knowledge is any material legal

proceeding threatened against us

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

Ohio

Minnesota

North Carolina

Pennsylvania

Massachusetts

All Other States

Total

of Base Rent

17.0%

10.6

9.4

6.8

5.3

50.9

100%

2012

Pereentage of Percentage ol Percentage of

Industry Classtficatron Rental Incorm Rental Ineanm Rental Income Rental Income Rental Income Rental Income

Telceornmunicatrons 7.35 14.4% 6206 4% 5447 133%

Heetruntes 6109 2.3 61Db 13 hIM 15.11

Healtheare 5220 0.3 4.110 94 3707 9.2

Diversified Carrglatnerate Mannfaetartng 3.664 72 3664 04 2664 09

Chemicals Plastres Robber 3153 62 3.146 7.2 3131 7.6

Heserage
Fond Tnhaceo 2.644 5.6 2.27 5.2 2.109 53

Personal Non-Durable Consumer Products 2507 49 2316 53 1220

Porsanal Food Miscellaneous Setnrccs 2479 4.9 649 575 1.4

ontamers Packagrng Glass 2.344 4.6 2.339 54 233 57

Maehrnery 2.259 44 2.256 2.332

Iluildings and Real Estate 2144 4.2 2.121 49 2076 51

I.ducation 2.130 4.2 .775 175 4.3

Autrrnnthde 1944 36 1.160 27 1.160 20

Prrntmg Puhlishrng 1094 37 .979 45 2.100 5.3

hrs 1271 2.5 1.271 1263

IIrsersrfiedonglonnerate Servues 1.244 24 1301 3116 It

Bankrng 1149 2.3 264 05 01

Moore 503 .1 503 1.3 503 1.4

Home 011cc Furnishtngs 530 II 531 53 1.3

Insurance 10 422 1.0

50915 1011 43632 1000 41.110 tXCO7i

36



PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases

of Equity Securities

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market or NASDAQ under the symbol

GOOD The following table reflects the
range

of the high and low sale prices of our common stock on

NASDAQ and the distributions per common share for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Distributions to common stockholders are declared quarterly and paid monthly Amounts presented

represent the cumulative amount of the monthly common stock distributions declared during such quarter

Price Range

Distributions Per

High Low Common Share

2011

3/31/2011 19.54 17.42 0.375

6/30/2011 19.43 16.88 0.375

9/30/2011 17.92 15.00 0.375

12/31/2011 17.76 13.93 0.375

2012

3/31/2012 18.92 16.80 0.375

6/30/2012 17.66 15.56 0.375

9/30/2012 19.47 16.52 0.375

12/31/2012 18.93 16.15 0.375

Since inception in 2003 we have never reduced our per-share distributions nor have we missed payment of

scheduled distribution to our common stockholders Our Board of Directors regularly evaluates our per

share distribution payments as they monitor the capital markets and the impact that the economy has upon

us The decision as to whether to authorize and pay distributions on shares of our common stock in the

future as well as the timing amount and composition of any such future distributions will be at the sole

and absolute discretion of our Board of Directors in light of conditions then existing including our

earnings taxable income FF0 financial condition liquidity capital requirements debt maturities the

availability of capital contractual prohibitions or other restrictions applicable REIT and legal restrictions

and general overall economic conditions and other factors While the statements above concerning our

distribution policy represent our current expectations any actual distribution payable will be determined by

our Board of Directors based upon the circumstances at the time of declaration and the actual number of

common shares then outstanding and any common distribution payable may vary from such expected

amounts

To qualify as REIT we are required to make ordinary dividend distributions to our common stockholders

The amount of these distributions must equal at least

the sum of 90% of our REIT taxable income computed without regard to the dividends paid

deduction and capital gain and 90% of the net income after tax if any from foreclosure

property less

the sum of certain non-cash items

For federal income tax purposes our common distributions generally consist of ordinary income capital

gains nontaxable return of capital or combination of those items Distributions that exceed our current
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and accumulated earnings and profits calculated for tax purposes constitute return of capital rather than

dividend which reduces stockholders basis in its shares of stock and will not be taxable to the extent of

the stockholders basis in its shares of our stock To the extent distribution exceeds the stockholders

share of both our current and accumulated earnings and profits and the stockholders basis in its shares of

our stock that distribution will be treated as gain from the sale or exchange of that stockholders shares of

our stock Every year we notify stockholders of the taxability of distributions paid to stockholders during

the preceding year

As of February 2013 there were 10232 beneficial owners of our common stock

The Company pays distributions on shares of senior common stock in an amount equal to $1.05 per share

per annum declared daily and paid at the rate of $0.0S75 per share per month The Companys senior

common stock is not traded on any exchange or automated quotation system

As of February 2013 there were 96 beneficial owners of our senior common stock
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data for the fiscal years ended December 31 2012 2011 2010 2009 and

2008 is derived from our audited consolidated financial statements Certain amounts from prior years

financial statements have been reclassified to discontinued operations and these reclassifications had no

effect on previously reported net income or stockholders equity The data should be read in conjunction

with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this report and

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in

Item of this report

For ho ycarondod Dnconrbon

Dollara
in

Thorrardr F.ronnl Par Strom trantr

2012 2011 2010 2009 200

Operating tiara

Total
opnrrttra too oauo 51270 43970 41.920 42.609 40917

Fatal oporoana orcnrcr 24.895 21.270 23.44 2154 19300

Otlror orp0000 2264 16992 13586 17.600 16.57

tncoaac trout continuing oporrtiorrr 3761 574 4.92% 4.48 4973

Dsuotrurtttod tporattorts 203

Not rcota 3261 374 4920 413 4313

Dir idonata .tahrrrhtc to protonrod soak 4.0931 4914 404 4314 4194

lrdonda tohrahto to rorrrroorrnarr stock 131 62 20

Not trriocorac or oitahlo to crtaatotn aroclrhrtldora 445 1550 014 509 89

Share and Pen Share Data

Loors oantt ga porrrotgbtad avoragooornrruos rhoro boric diluter

orrnr.or.c lborrcorrurrrng opouritr

trot rodiu irtonotr ottnthutahto to prolbrrod rack 000 0.15 009

lOacontiarod oporrtiarrr 002 00

Not hiss norton an alaho to connrrrst atookltodors 000 0.15 019 000

Srhorotntort cuourgo oonrrnnor sharon arts toodorp-harc 01953325 06230859 8576303 8.563.200 851n5t49

Sr otghtod ovotogo oosttrtrnotr sharosoo tag rdtr g-ollttlod 095325 01.28821 8601153 8563204 8365149

or dtrtdndr ooolrtor pororarronslroro 1.511 .5 .5 ISO ISO

SupçementaI Data

Not toss ricotta orotahlo to coarse attokhrtatai 445 1.990 814 56 819

Rorrt carob toprociotin and rrraraotirr nctrdng dircrrrtinnod oporarnirna 16.831 14149 3.244 13.172 2715

I_car drcnrrrtot tort errata not nt tan_cr paid tInS

PortIa train
rpcrrtirnns ru

aiLthlO In ortttrtor rtntckholdons 6380 15.707 4278 13.521 3524

Balance Sheet Data

Ror ortoto ho lana
rocrrrrrt

rtod doprooiotitr 535253 44292 411017 391754 391562

Tint tiara 564779 453147 40109 46955 42909r

Morgogorntca poyrhto tonma limit tornr prolotrod stock anal honarortrgr umndor ho line

oioorlt 422685 314151 286395 285.502 200.011

Total atrck rIrlmra oqritty 122315 133314 11.325 119.451 1311495

lola ootamrrrnahntronootrtrrrrtnng 11953325 02145375 972463 8363204 8565149

FF0 was developed by The National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts or NAREIT as relative non-

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States or GAAP supplemental measure of operating

performance of an equity REIT in order to recognize that income-producing real estate historically has not depreciated

on the basis determined under GAAP FF0 as defined by NAREIT is net income loss computed in accordance with

GAAP excluding gains or losses from sales of property and excluding any impairment write-downs plus

depreciation and amortization of real estate assets and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint

ventures FF0 does not represent cash flows from operating activities in accordance with GAAP and should not he

considered an alternative to either net income loss as an indication of our performance or to cash flow from

operations as measure of liquidity or ability to make distributions to stockholders Comparison of FF0 to similarly

titled measures for other REITs may not necessarily be meaningful due to possible differences in the application of the

NAREIT definition used by such REITs

FF0 available to common stockholders is FF0 adjusted to subtract preferred share and senior common share

distributions We believe that net loss income available to common stockholders is the most directly comparable

GAAP measure to FF0 available to common stockholders

Basic funds from operations per share or Basic FF0 per share is calculated as FF0 available to common stockholders

divided by the weighted average common shares outstanding Diluted funds from operations per share or Diluted FF0

per share is calculated as FF0 available to common stockholders adjusted as applicable for the assumed issuance of

additional shares of our convertible senior common stock divided by the weighted average common shares outstanding

adjusted for additional shares of common stock related to our convertible senior common stock that would have been

outstanding if dilutive potential shares of common stock had been issued We believe that FF0 available to common

stockholders Basic FF0 per share and Diluted FF0 per share are useful to investors because they provide investors
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with further context for evaluating our FF0 results in the same manner that investors use net income and earnings per

share or EPS in evaluating net income available to common stockholders In addition since most REITs provide FF0

available to common stockholders Basic FF0 and Diluted FF0 per share information to the investment community we

believe these are useful supplemental measures for comparing us to other REITs We believe that net loss income is

the most directly comparable GAAP measure to FF0 Basic EPS is the most directly comparable GAAP measure to

Basic FF0 per share and that diluted EPS is the most directly comparable GAAP measure to Diluted FF0 per share

The following table provides reconciliation of our FF0 for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 2010 2009 and

2008 to the most directly comparable GAAP measure net loss income and computation of basic and diluted FF0

per weighted average common share

For the roars nded Ioccnthcr SI

isrllars ret ho srrds Jrt Per Share Axsrflsl

20 218

Net recoin

Less Dretnibutions atlnbutahlc to preferred and seroorcorrrrrierr sleek

Net liter rector as triable tsr cot curt stockholder

3.76 5714

4.206 4.156

143 1.558

4.420 4.605 4.913

4114 4194 ___________ 4.094

014 583 019

Add Real estate epreeratrori intl trnnOiraOon

Lcsnlkonren sale ofreal estate

FF11 readable toeermunstecklteldens

Vi cigltted or erage creature slrares stutetanding basic

tO ttglrted tseragecorrrrrurrr shares outs tarrdirp diluted

Haste FF1 par oesgnted at erago slraneo fconarutn stock

Dtleted FF0 per vvogttrd average share of ecttrrrurr stitek

Dsttihutrsttss declared porstareo eornrrxtn stock

19.264 15172 12715

_____________ __________ 160 _______
14170 15.321 3524

IS 153 lIeS ISO ISO

140 153 164 50 ISO

IS 151 IS ISO 1.51

2012 200

1414

16.390 15717

10.953.325
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l.23t.05O

l.200.7I1
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following analysis ofourJinancial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction

with our jlnancial statements and the notes thereto contained elsewhere in this Form 10-K

OVERVIEW

General

We are real estate investment trust or RUT that was incorporated under the General Corporation Law of

the State of Maryland on February 14 2003 primarily for the purpose of investing in and owning net

leased industrial commercial and retail real property and selectively making long-term industrial and

commercial mortgage loans Our portfolio of real estate is leased to wide cross section of tenants ranging

from small businesses to large public companies many of which are corporations that do not have publicly-

rated debt We have historically entered into and intend in the future to enter into purchase agreements for

real estate having triple net leases with terms of approximately 10 to 15 years
and built in rental rate

increases Under triple net lease the tenant is required to pay all operating maintenance and insurance

costs and real estate taxes with respect to the leased property We actively communicate with buyout

funds real estate brokers and other third parties to locate properties for potential acquisition or to provide

mortgage financing in an effort to build our portfolio We currently own 80 properties totaling 8.0 million

square feet which have total gross and net carrying value including intangible assets of $618.6 million

and $525.3 million respectively We do not currently have any mortgage loan receivables outstanding

Business Environment

The United States or U.S continues to feel the lingering impact of the recession that began in late 2007

The U.S is beginning to see long-term signs of recovery as the unemployment rate has decreased over the

last several months housing starts and building permits rose in September 2012 to the highest level in four

years and prices for single-family homes increased across 20 U.S cities because of dwindling surplus in

the housing market However the economic situation in Europe continues to be unpredictable and will

need to stabilize for the economy to fully recover and the U.S will need to come to long-term solution for

the debt crisis the country currently faces As result conditions within the U.S capital markets generally

and the U.S real estate capital markets particularly continue to experience certain levels of dislocation and

stress

These economic conditions could materially and adversely impact the financial condition of one or more of

our tenants and therefore could increase the likelihood that tenant may declare bankruptcy or default

upon its payment obligations arising under related lease We currently have two vacant buildings in our

portfolio one of the buildings is located in Hazelwood Missouri and the other building is located in

Richmond Virginia The leases on these two vacant buildings comprised 2.0% of our annualized rental

income as of December 31 2012 and the annual carlying costs are $0.3 million We are actively seeking

new tenants for both of these buildings All of our remaining properties are currently occupied and the

tenants are paying in accordance with their leases However in January 2013 we were notified by our

tenant in our Baytown Texas property that they would not be renewing the lease that expires in April 2013

We are aggressively pursuing new tenants for this building This tenant comprised less than 1.0% of our

annualized rental income as of December 31 2012

Moreover our ability to make new investments is highly dependent upon our ability to procure external

financing Our principal sources of external financing generally include the issuance of equity securities

long-term mortgage loans secured by properties and borrowings under our line of credit or the Line of

Credit The market for long-term mortgages was limited for the past several years however long-term

mortgages have become more obtainable The collateralized mortgage backed securities or CMBS market

has made comeback but it is more conservative and restrictive than it was prior to the recession
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Consequently we continue to look to regional banks insurance companies and other non-bank lenders in

addition to the CMBS market to issue mortgages to finance our real estate activities

In addition to leverage we were active in the equity markets during 2012 and we issued 138205 of

common shares for gross proceeds of $2.5 million and net proceeds of $2.4 million through our At the

Market or ATM program and $38.5 million of 7.125% Series Cumulative Term Preferred Stock or

Term Preferred Stock which is mandatorily redeemable five years
from issuance We also assumed or

issued $124.4 million in mortgages during 2012 to finance our new properties or re-finance existing

properties In addition we issued 129278 of common shares for gross proceeds of $2.4 million and net

proceeds of $2.3 million from the issuance of equity in January 2013 under our ATM program

Recent Developments

20/2 investment Activities

Ashhurn Virginia On January 25 2012 we acquired 52130 square foot office building located in

Ashburn Virginia for $10.8 million excluding related acquisition expenses of $0.1 million We funded

this acquisition using borrowings from our Line of Credit Independent Project Analysis Inc an energy

consultant is the tenant in this building and has leased the property for 15 years and has options to

renew the lease for additional periods of years each The lease provides for prescribed rent

escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of$l.0 million

Ottumwa Iowa On May 30 2012 we acquired 352860 square foot bottling plant located in

Ottumwa Iowa for $7.1 million excluding related acquisition expenses
of $0.1 million We funded this

acquisition through combination of cash on hand and the issuance of $5.0 million of mortgage debt on

the property The American Bottling Company the largest operating subsidiary of Dr Pepper Snapple

Group Inc is the tenant in this building and has leased the property for 12 years and has options to

renew the lease for additional periods of years each The lease provides for prescribed rent

escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of $0.68 million

New Albany Ohio On June 2012 we acquired an 89000 square foot office building located in New

Albany Ohio for $1 3.3 million excluding related acquisition expenses
of $0.2 million We funded this

acquisition with existing cash on hand Commercial Vehicle Group Inc global supplier of fully

integrated interiors system solutions for the global commercial vehicle market is the tenant in this

building and has leased the property
for 10.5 years

and has options to renew the lease for additional

periods of years each The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease

with annualized straight line rents of $1.36 million

Columbus Georgia On June 21 2012 we acquired 32000 square
foot office and classroom facility

located in Columbus Georgia for $7.3 million excluding related acquisition expenses of $0.1 million

We funded this acquisition through combination of cash on hand and the issuance of $4.8 million of

mortgage debt on the property University of Phoenix private education provider which has been in

the education business for more than 35 years is the tenant in this building and has leased the property

for 11.5 years
and has options to renew the lease for additional periods of years each The lease

provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of

$0.66 million

Columbus Ohio On June 28 2012 we acquired 31293 square foot office building located in

Columbus Ohio for $4.0 million excluding related acquisition expenses of $0.1 million We funded

this acquisition with existing cash on hand Nationwide Childrens Hospital one of the largest

childrens hospital systems in the U.S is the tenant in this building and has leased the
property

for 10

years The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized

straight line rents of $0.34 million
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Jupiter Florida On September 26 2012 we acquired 60000 square foot office building located in

Jupiter Florida for $15.5 million excluding related acquisition expenses of $0.1 million We funded

this acquisition with existing cash on hand and the assumption of$l0.8 million of mortgage debt on the

property G4S Secure Solutions USA Inc one of the largest operating subsidiaries of G4S and the

worlds largest provider of security solutions with operations in 125 countries is the tenant in this

building and has leased the property for 10.5 years and has options to renew the lease for additional

periods of
years

each The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease

with annualized straight line rents of$ 1.37 million

Fort Worth Texas On November 2012 we acquired 208234 square foot office building located in

Fort Worth Texas for $20.0 million excluding related acquisition expenses
of $0.1 million We funded

this acquisition with combination of borrowings from our Line of Credit and the assumption of $14.2

million of mortgage debt on the property The National Archives and Records Administration

Southwest Region Records Center is the tenant in this building and has leased the property for 14 years

The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line

rents of$1.63 million

Columbia South Carolina On November 21 2012 we acquired 146483 square
foot office building

located in Columbia South Carolina for $29.2 million excluding related acquisition expenses of $0.1

million We funded this acquisition through combination of cash on hand and the issuance of $19.0

million of mortgage debt on the property Verizon Wireless is the tenant in this building and has leased

the property for 10 years and has options to renew the lease for additional periods of years each

The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line

rents of $2.61 million

2012 Financing Activities

Line of Credit Expansion

On January 31 2012 we amended our Line of Credit to increase the current maximum availability of

credit thereunder from $50.0 million to $75.0 million The Line of Credit was arranged by Capital One
NA as administrative agent and Branch Banking and Trust Company as an additional lender Citizens

Bank of Pennsylvania also joined the Line of Credit as an additional lender All other terms of the

agreement remained the same

Fixed-Rate Long-Term Notes Payable

KeyBank On April 2012 through wholly-owned subsidiaries we borrowed $19.0 million pursuant

to long-term note payable from KeyBank National Association which is collateralized by security

interests in four of our properties The note accrues interest at fixed rate of 1% per year and we may
not repay this note prior to the last three months of the term or we would be subject to substantial

prepayment penalty The note has maturity date of May 2022 We used the proceeds from this

note for future acquisitions and working capital

City National Bank On May 16 2012 through wholly-owned subsidiary we borrowed $2.94 million

pursuant to long-term note payable from City National Bank which is collateralized by security

interest in one of our properties The note accrues interest at fixed rate of 4.3% per year
for the first

five years and resets at five year intervals thereafter We may repay this note after five years and would

not be subject to any prepayment penalty The note has maturity date of December 31 2026 We
used the proceeds from this note for future acquisitions and working capital

Modern Woodmen of America On May 30 2012 through wholly-owned subsidiary we borrowed

$5.0 million pursuant to long-term note payable from Modern Woodmen of America which is

collateralized by security interest in one of our properties The note accrues interest at fixed rate of

6.5% per year and we may not repay
this note prior to the last nine months of the term or we would be

43



subject to substantial prepayment penalty The note has maturity date of May 10 2027 We used the

proceeds from this note for future acquisitions and working capital

Citigroup On June 21 2012 through wholly-owned subsidiary we borrowed $4.75 million pursuant

to long-term note payable from Citigroup which is collateralized by security interest in one of our

properties The note accrues interest at rate of fixed 5.05% per year and we may not repay
this note

prior to the last two months of the term or we would be subject to substantial prepayment penalty

The note has maturity date of July 2022 We used the proceeds from this note to purchase the

property located in Columbus Georgia discussed above

American Equity Investment LUŁ Insurance Company On June 27 2012 through wholly-owned

subsidiary we borrowed $2.0 million pursuant to long-term note payable from American Equity

Investment Life Insurance Company which is collateralized by security interest in one of our

properties The note accrues interest at fixed rate of 5.1% per year and we may not repay this note

prior to the last five years of the term or we would be subject to substantial prepayment penalty The

note has maturity date of July 2029 We used the proceeds from this note for future acquisitions

and working capital

American National Insurance Company On July 24 2012 through wholly-owned subsidiary we

borrowed $9.8 million pursuant to long-term note payable from American National Insurance

Company which is collateralized by security interest in one of our properties The note accrues

interest at fixed rate of 5.6% per year and we may not repay this note during the first five years
of the

term however we may repay
the note during the last five years of the term although we would be

subject to prepayment penalty The note has maturity date of August 2022 We used the proceeds

from this note for both future acquisition and working capital

Farmers Citizens Bank On August 2012 through wholly-owned subsidiary we borrowed $3.0

million pursuant to long-term note payable from Farmers Citizens Bank which is collateralized by

security interest in one of our properties The note accrues interest at fixed rate of 5.0% per year and

we may repay
this note during the first five years of the term although we would be subject to

prepayment penalty however we may repay the note during the last five years of the term without

penalty The note has maturity date of July 31 2022 We used the proceeds from this note for

working capital

Midland National Life Insurance Company On September 26 2012 through wholly-owned

subsidiary we assumed $10.8 million pursuant to long-term note payable from Midland National Life

Insurance Company in connection with the acquisition of our property in Jupiter Florida on the same

date The note accrues interest at fixed rate of 5.75% per year
and we may not repay this note prior to

the last three months of the term or we would be subject to prepayment penalty The note has

maturity date of July 2018

KeyBank On October 2012 through certain of our wholly-owned subsidiaries we borrowed $34.0

million pursuant to long-term note payable from KeyBank National Association which is

collateralized by security interests in seven of our properties The note accrues interest at fixed rate of

4.86% per year and we may not repay
this note prior to the last three months of the term or we would

be subject to prepayment penalty The note has maturity date of October 2022 We used the

proceeds of this note along with existing cash on hand to repay our $45.2 million mortgage which

with extension options was due October 2013 We repaid the mortgage in full on October 2012

without incurring any exit fees

American United Life Insurance Company On November 2012 through wholly-owned subsidiary

we assumed $14.2 million pursuant to long-term note payable from American United Life Insurance

Company in connection with the acquisition of our property in Fort Worth Texas on the same date

The note accrues interest at fixed rate of 5.69% per year and we may not repay this note prior to the
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last two months of the term or we would be subject to prepayment penalty The note has maturity

date of February 2027

Cantor Commercial Real Estate On November 21 2012 through wholly-owned subsidiary we
borrowed $19.0 million pursuant to long-term note payable from Cantor Commercial Real Estate in

connection with the acquisition of our property in Columbia South Carolina on the same date The

note accrues interest at fixed rate of 4.04% per year and we may not repay this note prior to the last

three months of the term or we would be subject to prepayment penalty The note has maturity date

of December 2022

2012 Leasing Activities

San Antonio Texas On February 14 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our

property located in San Antonio Texas The lease covering this property was extended for an

additional eight-year period through November 2021 The lease was originally set to expire in

February 2014 The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with

annualized straight line rents of approximately $0.8 million Furthermore the lease grants the tenant

two options to extend the lease for period of five years each In connection with the extension of the

lease and the modification of certain terms under the lease we provided tenant allowance of $0.6

million payable over two years and paid $0.3 million in leasing commissions

Roseville Minnesota On February 27 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our

property located in Roseville Minnesota The new lease covers approximately one-third of this

property and was extended for an additional five year period through December 2017 The lease was

originally set to expire in December 2012 The tenant in this property paid rent on the entire building

through 2012 and we continue to search for new tenants to lease the remainder of the building The

new lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line

rents of $1.2 million Furthermore the lease grants the tenant one option to extend the lease for

period of five
years

In connection with the extension of the lease and the modification of certain terms

under the lease we provided tenant allowance of $0.4 million payable over two years and paid $0.8

million in leasing commissions

Hialeah Florida On June 29 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our property

located in Hialeah Florida The lease covering this property was extended for an additional five-year

period through March 2027 The lease was originally set to expire in March 2022 The lease provides

for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of

approximately $1.1 million In connection with the extension of the lease and the modification of

certain terms under the lease we provided tenant allowance of $0.3 million

Wichita Kansas On August 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our property

located in Wichita Kansas The lease covering this property was extended for an additional five-year

period through September 2017 The lease was originally set to expire in September 2012 The lease

provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of

approximately $0.8 million In connection with the extension of the lease and the modification of

certain terms under the lease we paid $0.2 million in leasing commissions

South Hadley Massachusetts On September 10 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying

our property located in South Hadley Massachusetts The lease covering this property was extended

for an additional one-year period through January 2014 The lease was originally set to expire in

February 2013 The lease provides for annual rents of approximately $0.3 million

Mason Ohio On September 11 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our property

located in Mason Ohio The lease covering this property was extended for an additional seven-year

period through June 2020 The lease was originally set to expire in January 2013 The lease provides

for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of

approximately $0.6 million In connection with the extension of the lease and the modification of
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certain terms under the lease we provided tenant allowance of $0.5 million and paid $0.3 million in

leasing commissions

Arlington Texas On September 27 2012 our tenant in our property located in Arlington Texas

exercised their right to extend the lease covering this property for an additional five-year period

through March 2018 The lease was originally set to expire in April 2013 The lease provides that the

option period rent be at fair market rent but not less than the current rental rate

Concord Township Ohio On October 2012 we modified and extended the lease with the tenant

occupying our property located in Concord Township Ohio The lease covering this property was

extended for an additional six-year period through August 2034 in exchange for reduction in rent

over the next two years The lease was originally set to expire in March 2028 The lease provides for

prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of approximately

$1.7 million In connection with the extension of the lease and the modification of certain terms under

the lease we provided tenant allowance of $0.2 million

Big Flats New York On November 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our

property
located in Big Flats New York The lease covering this property was extended for an

additional 10
years through September 2023 The lease was originally set to expire in September

2013 The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized

straight line rents of approximately $0.5 million In connection with the extension of the lease and the

modification of certain terms under the lease we paid $0.2 million in leasing commissions

2013 Leasing Activities

Champaign Illinois On January 14 2013 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our

property located in Champaign Illinois The lease covering this property was extended for an

additional 11
years through December 2024 The lease was originally set to expire in December 2013

The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line

rents of approximately $1 .4 million In connection with the extension of the lease and the modification

of certain terms under the lease we paid $0.4 million in leasing commissions

2012 Equity Activities

The equity issuances summarized below were issued under our effective shelf registration statement File

No 333-169290 on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission

Prerred Equity In February 2012 we completed public offering of 540000 shares of our Series

Term Preferred Stock at public offering price of $25.00 per share Gross proceeds of the offering

totaled $38.5 million and net proceeds after deducting underwriting discounts and offering expenses

borne by us were $36.7 million which were used to repay portion of outstanding borrowings under

our Line of Credit for acquistions of real estate and for working capital The shares are traded under the

ticker symbol GOODN on the NASDAQ Global Select Market or the NASDAQ The Term Preferred

Stock is not convertible into our common stock or any other security Generally we may not redeem

shares of the Term Preferred Stock prior to January 31 2016 except in limited circumstances to

preserve our status as Real Estate Investment Trust or REIT On or after January 31 2016 we may
redeem the shares at redemption price of $25.00 per share plus any accumulated and unpaid

dividends to and including the date of redemption The shares of the Term Preferred Stock have

mandatory redemption date of January 31 2017 In accordance with Accounting Standards

Codification or ASC 480 Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity mandatorily redeemable financial

instruments should be classified as liabilities in the balance sheet and therefore we recorded the Term

Preferred Stock as liability and the related dividend payments as component of interest expense in

the statement of operations

Common Equity During November and December 2012 we raised approximately $2.4 million in net

proceeds under our ATM program with Jefferies Company Inc or Jefferies Under this agreement
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we may from time to time offer to sell shares of our common stock with an aggregate sales price of up
to $25.0 million on the open market through Jefferies as agent or to Jefferies as principal based upon
our instructions including any price time or size limits or other customary parameters or conditions

that we may impose Sales of shares of our common stock through Jefferies will be executed by means

of ordinary brokers transactions on the NASDAQ or otherwise at market prices in privately negotiated

transactions crosses or block transactions as may be agreed between us and Jefferies including

combination of any of these transactions We will pay Jefferies commission equal to 2.0% of the gross

sales proceeds of any common stock sold through Jefferies as agent under the ATM program

Senior Common Equity During 2011 and 2012 we have sold 118738 shares of our senior common
stock at $15.00 per share in an ongoing best-efforts public offering and issued 1395 shares of our

senior common stock under the Dividend Reinvestment Program or DRIP program The net proceeds

after deducting the underwriting discount and commission were $1.6 million We can issue up to

3000000 shares of senior common stock and the offering will continue until the earlier of March 28
2013 or the date on which 3000000 shares of senior common stock are sold We have used the

proceeds of the offering for general corporate purposes

Diversity of Our Portfolio

Gladstone Management Corporation or our Adviser seeks to diversify our portfolio to avoid dependence

on any one particular tenant industry or geographic market By diversifying our portfolio our Adviser

intends to reduce the adverse effect on our portfolio of single under-performing investment or downturn

in any particular industry or geographic market The table below reflects the breakdown of our total rental

income by tenant industry classification for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively dollars in thousands

For the year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Percentage of Percentage of Percen age at

Industry Classification Rental tnconr Rental Incon Rental tncorntc Rental lnconuc Rental tneonm Rental Income

fern innications 7.351 14.41 6206 14.11 5447 l33

Electronics 6180 12.3 6046 39 6164 ISO

llealtticare 5228 10.3 4.108 94 3787 92

Diversified/Conglomerate Manaliietiiring 3664 7.2 3664 84 3664 09

Chennieals Plastics Robber 3153 6.2 3.146 7.2 3131 76

Beverage Food Tobacco 2844 56 2271 5.2 2.189 5.3

Personal Nan-Durable Consumer Pradacts 2.507 49 2316 5.3 .228 31

Personal Miscellaneous Services 2.479 4.9 649 1.5 575 1.4

antaroers Packaging Citass 2.344 4.6 2339 5.4 2.33t 5.7

Machinery 2.259 4.4 2256 52 2.332 5.7

Bnildings and Real Estate 2t44 4.2 2.120 49 2.076 51

Education 38 4.2 1.775 .775

Autanmbjla 1944 3.8 limO 27 l.t60 28

Printnng Pnbtishing 1.894 37 1979 45 2.108 53

Oil 64 .271 25 1271 2.9 1203 3.1

DnversifiedCangtannarate Services 1244 2.4 1.1101 2.3 308 17

Banking 1149 2.3 214 85 01

hildcare 583 1.1 583 583

Home OStee Farnistnings 530 .8 530 1.2 530

tnsnranee 1.0 01 422

50915 1l8.0 43.632 1011.01 41.180 t00A8

Our Adviser and Administrator

Our Adviser is led by management team which has extensive experience purchasing real estate and

originating mortgage loans Our Adviser is controlled by Mr David Gladstone our chairman and chief

executive officer Mr Gladstone is also the chairman and chief executive officer of our Adviser Terry Lee

Brubaker our vice chairman chief operating officer and director is member of the Board of Directors

of our Adviser as well as its vice chairman and chief operating officer Gladstone Administration LLC or
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our Administrator employs our chief financial officer and treasurer chief compliance officer internal

counsel and their respective staffs

Our Adviser and Administrator also provide investment advisory and administrative services respectively

to our affiliates including but not limited to Gladstone Capital Corporation and Gladstone Investment

Corporation both publicly-traded business development companies as well as Gladstone Land

Corporation publicly traded real estate company With the exception of Danielle Jones our chief

financial officer and treasurer and Robert Cutup our president all of our executive officers serve as either

directors or executive officers or both of Gladstone Capital Corporation and Gladstone Investment

Corporation In addition with the exception of our president all of our officers and eight of our nine

directors are also officers and directors of Gladstone Land In the future our Adviser may provide

investment advisory services to other funds both public and private

Advisory and Administration Agreements

We are externally managed pursuant to contractual arrangements with our Adviser and our Administrator

Our Adviser and Administrator employ all of our personnel and
pay

their payroll benefits and general

expenses directly We have an investment advisory agreement with our Adviser or the Advisory

Agreement and an administration agreement with our Administrator or the Administration Agreement

Under the terms of the Advisory Agreement we are responsible for all expenses incurred for our direct

benefit Examples of these expenses include legal accounting interest on short-term debt and mortgages

tax preparation directors and officers insurance stock transfer services stockholder-related fees

consulting and related fees In addition we are also responsible for all fees charged by third parties that are

directly related to our business which include real estate brokerage fees mortgage placement fees lease-up

fees and transaction structuring fees although we may be able to pass some or all of such fees on to our

tenants and borrowers

Management Services and Fees under the Advisory Agreement

The Advisory Agreement provides for an annual base management fee equal to 2.0% of our total

stockholders equity less the recorded value of any preferred stock or total common stockholders equity

and for an incentive fee based on funds from operations or FF0 Our Adviser does not charge acquisition

or disposition fees when we acquire or dispose of properties as is common with other externally-advised

REITs Furthermore there are no fees charged when our Adviser secures long or short term credit or

arranges mortgage loans on our properties however our Adviser may earn fee income from our borrowers

or tenants or other sources

For purposes of calculating the incentive fee FF0 includes any realized capital gains and capital losses

less any distributions paid on preferred stock and senior common stock but FF0 does not include any

unrealized capital gains or losses The incentive fee would reward our Adviser if our quarterly FF0 before

giving effect to any incentive fee or pre-incentive fee FF0 exceeds .75% or the hurdle rate of total

common stockholders equity We pay our Adviser an incentive fee with respect to our pre-incentive fee

FF0 quarterly as follows

no incentive fee in any calendar quarter in which our pre-incenlive fee FF0 does not exceed the

hurdle rate of .75% 7% annualized

100% of the amount of the pre-incentive fee FF0 that exceeds the hurdle rate but is less than

2.1875% in any calendar quarter 8.75% annualized and

20% of the amount of our pre-incentive fee FF0 that exceeds 2.1875% in any calendar quarter

8.75% annualized
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Quarterly Incentive Fee Based on FF0

Pre-incentive fee FF0

expressed as percentage of total common stockholders equity

175% 2.1875%

0% 100% 20%

Percentage of pre-incentive fee FF0 allocated to the incentive fee

The incentive fee may be reduced because of covenant which exists in our Line of Credit agreement
which limits distributions to our stockholders to 95% of FF0 with acquisition-related costs that are required

to be expensed under ASC 805 Business Combinations added back to FF0 In order to comply with this

covenant our Board of Directors accepted our Advisers offer to unconditionally irrevocably and

voluntarily waive on quarterly basis portion of the incentive fee for the years ended December 31 2012
2011 and 2010 which allowed us to maintain the current level of distributions to our stockholders These

waived fees may not be recouped by our Adviser in the future Our Adviser has indicated that it intends to

continue to waive all or portion of the incentive fee in order to support the current level of distributions to

our stockholders however our Adviser is not required to issue any such waiver either in whole or in part

din inisiration Agreement

Pursuant to the Administration Agreement we pay for our allocable portion of our Administrators

overhead expenses incurred while performing its obligations to us including but not limited to rent and

the salaries and benefits expenses of our personnel including our chief financial officer and treasurer chief

compliance officer internal counsel investor relations department and their respective staffs Our

allocable portion of expenses is generally derived by multiplying our Administrators total expenses by the

percentage of our total assets at the beginning of each quarter in comparison to the total assets of all

companies managed by our Adviser under similar agreements

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

in the United States or GAAP requires management to make judgments that are subjective in nature in

order to make certain estimates and assumptions Application of these accounting policies involves the

exercise of judgment regarding the use of assumptions as to future uncertainties and as result actual

results could materially differ from these estimates summary of all of our significant accounting

policies is provided in Note to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 0-

Below is summary of accounting polices involving estimates and assumptions that require complex

subjective or significant judgments in their application and that materially affect our results of operations

Allocation of Purchase Price

When we acquire real estate we allocate the purchase price to the acquired tangible assets and liabilities

consisting of land building tenant improvements and long-term debt and ii the identified intangible

assets and liabilities consisting of the value of above-market and below-market leases in-place leases

unamortized lease origination costs tenant relationships and capital lease obligations based in each case on

their fair values All expenses related to the acquisition are expensed as incurred rather than capitalized

into the cost of the acquisition as had been required by the previous accounting

Our Adviser estimates value using methods similar to those used by independent appraisers e.g
discounted cash flow analysis Factors considered by management in its analysis include an estimate of

carrying costs during hypothetical expected lease-up periods considering current market conditions and

costs to execute similar leases Our Adviser also consider information obtained about each property as
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result of our pre-acquisition due diligence marketing and leasing activities in estimating the fair value of

the tangible and intangible assets and liabilities acquired In estimating carrying costs management also

includes real estate taxes insurance and other operating expenses and estimates of lost rentals at market

rates during the hypothetical expected lease-up periods which primarily range from to 18 months

depending on specific local market conditions Our Adviser also estimates costs to execute similar leases

including leasing commissions legal and other related expenses to the extent that such costs are not already

incurred in connection with new lease origination as part of the transaction Our Adviser also considers

the nature and extent of our existing business relationships with the tenant growth prospects for developing

new business with the tenant the tenants credit quality and managements expectations of lease renewals

including those existing under the terms of the lease agreement among other factors change in any of

the assumptions above which are very subjective could have material impact on our results of

operations

The allocation of the purchase price directly affects the following in our consolidated financial statements

The amount of purchase price allocated to the various tangible and intangible assets on our

balance sheet

The amounts allocated to the value of above-market and below-market lease values are amortized

to rental income over the remaining non-cancelable terms of the respective leases The amounts

allocated to all other tangible and intangible assets are amortized to depreciation or amortization

expense Thus depending on the amounts allocated between land and other depreciable assets

changes in the purchase price allocation among our assets could have material impact on our

FF0 metric which is used by many REIT investors to evaluate our operating performance and

The period of time over which tangible and intangible assets are depreciated varies greatly and

thus changes in the amounts allocated to these assets will have direct impact on our results of

operations Intangible assets are generally amortized over the respective life of the leases which

normally range from 10 to 15
years Also we depreciate our buildings over 39 years but do not

depreciate our land These differences in timing could have material impact on our results of

operations

Asset Impairment Evaluation

We periodically review the canying value of each property to determine if circumstances that indicate

impairment in the carrying value of the investment exist or that depreciation periods should be modified In

determining if impairment exists our Adviser considers such factors as our tenants payment histories the

financial condition of our tenants including calculating the current leverage ratios of tenants the likelihood

of lease renewal business conditions in the industries in which our tenants operate and whether the

carrying value of our real estate has decreased If any of the factors above indicate the possibility of

impairment we prepare projection of the undiscounted future cash flows without interest charges of the

specific property and determine if the carrying amount of such property is recoverable In preparing the

projection of undiscounted future cash flows we estimate the holding periods of the properties and cap

rates using information that we obtain from market comparability studies and other comparable sources If

impairment were indicated the carrying value of the property would be written down to its estimated fair

value based on our best estimate of the propertys discounted future cash flows using assumptions from

market participants Any material changes to the estimates and assumptions used in this analysis could

have significant impact on our results of operations as the changes would impact our determination of

whether impairment is deemed to have occurred and the amount of impairment loss that we would

recognize

Using the methodology discussed above and in light of the current economic conditions discussed above in

Overview Business Environment we evaluated our entire portfolio as of December 31 2012 for any

impairment indicators and performed an impairment analysis on those select properties that had an

indication of impairment As result of this analysis we concluded that none of our properties were

impaired and we will continue to monitor our portfolio for any indicators of impairment

Results of Operations
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The weighted-average yield on our total portfolio was 9.3% as of December 31 2012 The weighted-

average yield on our portfolio is calculated by taking the annualized straight-line rents reflected as rental

income on our consolidated statements of operations of each acquisition as percentage of the acquisition

The weighted-average yield does not account for the interest expense incurred on the mortgages placed on

our properties

comparison of our operating results for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 is below dollars

in thousands

For the
year

ended December31

2012 2011 SChange %Change

Operating revenues

Rental incotrE 50915 43632 7283 17%

Tenant reCovery revenue 355 344 II

Total operating revenues 51270 43976 7294 ___________ 17%

Opcrating eenses

Depreciatiou and aitunrtiatttiou 16.831 14149 2682 19%

Propcrty operating expenses 1.588 986 602 61%

Due diligence expense 949 700 249 36%

Rase nsauagennt fee 1467 1629 162 -18%

lucrntise fee
3569 3398 171 5%

Administration be 1118 1.024 94 9%

burial and administrative .594 1497 97
______________

6%

Total operating expenses
before credit froiu Adviser 27116 23.383 3733 Iho

Credg to incentive fee 2221 213 108 5%

Total operating expenses 24895 21270 3625 17%

Other ineiirrw expense

Iittrrcst expense 20226 3150 175

Distributions attributable to nandatorily redeemable preferred stock 2515 2515 NM
Other incona 127 84 43 51%

Totalimtherexpeuse 22614 16992 15622
____________

33%

Net incommo 3761 5714 1953
_____________

.34%

Distributions attributable to preferred stock 4093 4.194 0%

Distributions attributable to seniut coetnnnin stock 113 62 51 82%

Net loss ineomna available to cotrnmn stockholders 445 1558 2003 -129%

Net loss incomna available to coumnnn stockholders per weighted average

share ofcnnntnnmn stock diluted 0.04 0.00 0.04 NM

FF0 avamloible to conrremn stockholders 16386 15707 679 475

Diluted FF0
per weighted average share ofcomntnn stock 1.48 153 0.05 -4V

NM Not nuianingful

Operating Revenues

Rental income increased for the year ended December 2012 as compared to the year ended December

31 2011 because of the eight properties acquired during 2012

Tenant recovery revenue increased for the
year

ended December31 2012 as compared to the year ended

December 2011 There was an increase in insurance premiums from 2011 resulting in increased

reimbursements from our tenants coupled with an increase in insurance reimbursements we received from

certain of our tenants at our properties acquired during 2012

Operating Expenses

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased for the
year

ended December 31 2012 as compared to

the year ended December 31 2011 because of the eight properties acquired during 2012
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Property operating expenses
consist of franchise taxes management fees insurance ground lease payments

and overhead expenses paid on behalf of certain of our properties Property operating expenses increased

fbr the year ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year ended December 31 2011 primarily

because of ground lease payments we are responsible for paying at two of our properties acquired in the

fburth quarter of 201 coupled with an increase in overhead expenses and franchise taxes paid at certain of

our vacant properties

Due diligence expense primarily consists of legal fees and fees incurred for third-party reports prepared in

connection with potential acquisitions and our due diligence analyses related thereto Due diligence

expense increased for the
year ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year ended December 31

2011 as result of costs incurred related to the eight properties acquired during 2012 coupled with costs

incurred for other potential acquisitions partially offset by an out of period adjustment of $250000

recorded during the year
ended December 31 2011 related to the acquisition of the property

in Orange

City Iowa in December2010

The base management fee decreased for the year ended December 2012 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2011 due to decrease in total common stockholders equity the main component of the

calculation The calculation of the base management fee is described in detail above under Advisory and

Administration Agreements

The incentive fee increased for the year ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year ended

December 2011 because of an increase in pre-incentive fee FF0 The increase in pre-incentive fee FF0

was due to an increase in rental revenues from the eight acquisitions made in 2012 which was partially

offset by an increase in property operating due diligence and interest expenses during the year ended

Dccembcr 31 2012 as compared to the year ended December 31 2011

The incentive fee credit increased slightly for the year ended December 2012 as compared to the year

ended December 31 2011 because of the increase in the amount of common dividends paid for 2012

which resulted in larger portion of the incentive fee which was credited The calculation of the incentive

fee is described in detail above within Advisoiy and Administration Agreements

The administration fee increased for the
year

ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year ended

December 2011 primarily as result of an increase in the amount of the total expenses our

Administrator incurred during 2012 The calculation of the administration fee is described in detail above

within Advisoiy and Administration Agreements

General and administrative
expenses

increased for the year ended December 31 2012 as compared to the

year
ended December 2011 primarily due to increase in legal fees incurred at certain of our properties

for various projects at those properties coupled with an increase in stockholder related expenses

Other Income and Expense

Interest expense increased for the year ended December 201 as compared to the year ended December

31 2011 This increase was primarily result of interest on the $124.4 million of mortgage debt assumed

and issued during 2012 partially offset by reduced interest expense on our long-term financings from

amortizing and balloon principal payments made during the last 12 months

Distributions on our mandatorily redeemable preferred stock for the year ended December 2012 are

from the public offering of 1540000 shares of our 7.125% Series Term Preferred Stock completed in

February 2012 Gross proceeds of the offering totaled $38.5 million arid net proceeds were $36.7 million

There were no distributions on our mandatorily redeemable preferred stock for the
year

ended December

2011 as there was none outstanding

Other income increased during the year ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2011 because of an easement payment and bankruptcy settlement from former tenant
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received in 2012 related to our property located in Sterling Heights Michigan This was partially offset by
lower interest income on employee loans during the year ended December 31 2012 as compared to the

year ended December 31 2011 due to principal repayments made by employees of our Adviser during

2012

Net Loss Income Available to Common Stockholders

Net loss income available to common stockholders decreased for the year ended December 31 2012 as

compared to the year ended December 31 2011 primarily because of increased interest expense and

increased distributions to our preferred stockholders from the issuance of our Term Preferred Stock

partially offset by an increase in rental income earned from the eight properties acquired in 2012
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comparison 0/Our operating results for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 is he/ow dollars

1n thousands

Operating reven Lies

Rental income

Interest income from mortgage note receis able

Tettatt recovery reveit Lie

Total
operating res en cx

or tie eai en rIce December 31

2011 2111 iaitge hattgc

IoIar ni lliiiusands

II 2452

121 421 00%

344 27 17

43.976 1126 2041 5%

Creel it to base inattagemeil fee

Credit to ni cent ive Ike

Total operating expenses

1414 13.264

P1

2.113

21271

42

.191

31

3.41

23.717

225

51
23.414

251

43 36

52

39 4o

_______
1.911 -56o

414 ____________

225

.955 2371

2.144
____________

Other Income expense

Interest eryense

Other income

oral other cxpeitse

7.07i

14

1992
_____________

1477

11351

13

3393 ______________

3.406 251

Nd incoitte ____________
5.714 925 756 16%

Dix trib Ut 6n attributable to preferred stock

Distrihutiotrs attributable to sen or cimnteit stock

4194

_______________
62

_______________
20 42 210%

Net itreonle Its tttlrtble to cottirtaitt stockltoklers 1551 744 91%

Iilatecl net tnconre per ueigltted as erage share olconiimtr IS HP 1.05 49%

10 as ailah Ic to comiaxtit stockholders iZ_ l4N 1629 2%

Diluted FF0 per ueiglttecl as erage
share ol coirtmon stock 13 64 1.11 7%

Operating Rekenues

Rental income increased for year ended December 2011 as compared to the year ended December 31

2010 because of the seven properties acquired during 2011 and the fuH year of income from our property

acquired in December 2010 partially offset by the lost rental income from two of our properties which

became vacant in 2010

Interest income from mortgage notes receivable decreased for the year ended December 2011 as

compared to the year ended December 2010 as our only mortgage loan was fully repaid in July 2010

Tenant recovery revenue increased slightly for the year ended December 2011 as compared to the year

ended December 31 2010 because ofan increase in insurance premiums from 2010 resulting in increased

reimbursements from our tenants

Operating Expenses

Depreciation and amortization expenses
increased for the year ended December 2011 as compared to

the year
ended December 31 2010 because we acquired seven properties in 2011 and full year of

depreciation was recorded from our property acquired in December 2010

43.632

Operating expenoes

Depreciation aitcl antorti/at ion

Property operating expetis es

Due diligence expense

Base itninagetrient
Ike

ineentis fee

Ad nm isiration fee

Oeneral and aclittiti straIts

oral operat titg expenses beline credit ioitt Ads 5cr

70

1.629

3.391

1324

_____________
.497

23 .3 83

885

IS
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Property operating expenses consist of franchise taxes management fees insurance ground lease payments

and overhead expenses paid on behalf of certain of our properties Property operating expenses
increased

during the year ended December 2011 as compared to the year ended December 2010 because of

overhead
expenses

for which we became responsible which were previously paid directly by our tenants

at our two vacant properties

Due diligence expense primarily consists of legal fees and fees incurred for third-party reports prepared in

connection with potential acquisitions and our due diligence analyses related thereto Due diligence

expense increased for the year ended December 2011 as compared to the year ended December

2010 as result of costs incurred related to the seven properties acquired during 2011 partially offset by

an out of period adjustment of $250000 recorded during 2011 related to the acquisition of the property in

Orange City Iowa in December 2010

The base management fee increased for the year ended December 2011 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2010 due to an increase in total common stockholders equity from the issuance of common
stock during 2011 the main component of the calculation There was no base management fee credit in

2011 as there was in 2010 and we currently do not anticipate having credits to the base management fee in

the future The calculation of the base management fee is described in detail above under Advisory and

Administration Agreements

The incentive fee decreased for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2010 due to the increase in common stockholders equity from the issuance of common

stock during 2011 resulting in higher hurdle rate to overcome which is the main component of the

calculation

The incentive fee credit increased for the year ended December 2011 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2010 because of the increase in the amount of common stock dividends paid in 2011 which

resulted in larger portion of the incentive fee which was credited The calculation of the incentive fee is

described in the detail above under Advisoiy and Administ ration Agreement

The administration fee decreased for the year ended December 2011 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2010 primarily as result of decrease in the amount of the total expenses allocated from

our Administrator during the periods partially offset by an increase in our allocable portion of the total

expenses The calculation of the administration fee is described in detail above under Advisoiy and

dminist ration Agreements

General and administrative expenses decreased for the
year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the

year ended December 31 2010 primarily due to the write-off of approximately $1.6 million of fees and

expenses incurred in relation to the termination of the private offering of unregistered senior common stock

in 2010

Other Income and Expense

Interest expense increased for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year ended December

31 2010 This increase was primarily result ofan increase in the rate on our $45.2 million mortgage loan

in October 2011 of 0.18% when the mortgage loan was renewed coupled with interest on the $31.7 million

of mortgage debt assumed and issued during 2011 This was partially offset by decrease of 2.3% in the

interest rate charged on our $45.2 million mortgage loan that was renewed in September 2010 and reduced

interest expense on our long-term financings from amortizing principal payments made during 2010 and

2011

Other income decreased during the year
ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2010 because of $3.3 million in additional income and prepayment fees we received in

connection with the early repayment of our mortgage loan in July 2010 coupled with decrease in interest

income from employee loans during the
year

ended December 31 2011 as compared to the
year ended
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December 31 2010 This decrease was result of loan payoffs made by employees of our Adviser during

2010 and 2011 coupled with other principal repayments made during the periods

ATet Income Available to Common Stockholders

Net income available to common stockholders increased for the year ended December 31 2011 as

compared to the year ended December 2010 primarily because of the write-off of $1.6 million of fees

related to the termination of the private offering of unregistered senior common stock in 2010 and income

earned from the seven properties acquired during 2011 partially offset by the $3.3 million in additional

income that was recognized during 2010 related to the early repayment of our mortgage loan

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Our sources of liquidity include cash flows from operations cash and cash equivalents borrowings under

our Line of Credit obtaining mortgages on our unencumbered properties and issuing additional equity

securities Our available liquidity at December 31 2012 was $10.8 million including $5.5 million in cash

and cash equivalents and an available borrowing capacity of $5.3 million under our Line of Credit

Future Capital Needs

We actively seek conservative investments that are likely to produce income to pay distributions to our

stockholders We intend to use the proceeds received from future equity raised and debt capital borrowed

to continue to invest in industrial commercial and retail real property make mortgage loans or pay down

outstanding borrowings under our Line of Credit Accordingly to ensure that we are able to effectively

execute our business strategy we routinely review our liquidity requirements and continually evaluate all

potential sources of liquidity Our short-term liquidity needs include proceeds necessary to fund our

distributions to stockholders pay the debt service costs on our existing long-term mortgages and fund our

current operating costs Our long-term liquidity needs include proceeds necessary to grow and maintain

our portfolio of investments

We believe that our available liquidity is sufficient to fund our distributions to stockholders pay the debt

service costs on our existing long-term mortgages and fund our current operating costs in the near term

We further believe that our cash flow from operations coupled with the financing capital available to us in

the future are sufficient to fund our long-term liquidity needs Additionally to satisfy either our short-term

or long-term obligations or both we may require credits to our management fees that are issued from our

Adviser although our Adviser is under no obligation to provide any such credits either in whole or in part

Equity Capital

During 2012 we raised $2.5 million of common equity under our ATM program or $2.4 million in net

proceeds at an average share price of $17.79 We also raised $1.6 million in net proceeds of senior

common equity Additionally we raised $36.7 million of mandatorily redeemable preferred equity net of

offering costs in February 2012 We used these proceeds to repay portion of the outstanding balance of

the Line of Credit to acquire additional properties and the remainder for general corporate and working

capital needs

We have also raised $2.4 million of additional common equity thus far in 2013 under our ATM program or

$2.3 million in net proceeds at an average share price of$ 18.49

As of December 31 2012 we have the ability to raise up to $214.2 million of additional equity capital

through the sale and issuance of securities that are registered under our universal shelf registration

statement on Form S-3 File No 333-169290 or the Universal Shelf in one or more future public

offerings Of the $214.2 million of available capacity under our Universal Shelf $18.9 million of common
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stock is reserved for additional sales under our ATM Program which we recently extended through

November 2014 and $50.7 million is reserved for sales of our senior common stock Our Universal Shelf

expires in September 2013 however we intend to file new registration statement in order to continue to

raise equity capital

Debt Capital

As of December 31 2012 we had 30 fixed-rate mortgage notes payable in the aggregate principal amount

of $358.3 million collateralized by total of 64 properties with terms at issuance ranging from years to

17 years The weighted-average interest rate on the mortgage notes payable as of December 31 2012 was

5.64%

The CMBS market has returned see the discussion in Overview Business Environnent above

Specifically we continue to see banks and other non-bank lenders willing to issue 10-year mortgages

Consequently we are focused on obtaining mortgages through regional banks non-bank lenders and

CMBS

We have mortgage debt in the aggregate principal amount of $15.6 million payable during 2013 and $24.4

million payable during 2014 The 2013 and 2014 principal amounts payable includes both amortizing

principal payments and balloon principal payments due in December of 2013 of $8.5 million and June of

2014 of $17.3 million however we are initiating conversations with these lenders in advance of these

maturities and anticipate being able to extend the maturity dates or refinance with new lenders We intend

to pay the 2013 and 2014 debt amortization payments from operating cash flow and borrowings under our

Line of Credit

Our Line of Credit matures in December 2013 We are currently in discussions with both our existing

lender and various other lenders to either renew our existing line or to implement new line of credit We
anticipate being able to extend or issue new line in advance of the maturity of our existing line in an

amount similar to our existing Line of Credit

If we cannot find replacement financing we would not have enough existing liquidity to continue our

existing operations If that were to happen management would pursue and expect to obtain an extension

from the current lender in order to provide additional time to obtain replacement financing In the unlikely

scenario that we are unable to find replacement financing management has reviewed its cash uses and

sources and has identified plans that could be implemented to continue operations despite the maturity of

the Line of Credit These steps could include suspension of capital spending cost reductions an equity

raise and possible asset disposals Additionally management has assessed that the remaining assets in the

portfolio would produce sufficient cash flows to fund operating cash needs and meet remaining debt service

requirements in the near term

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities during the year ended December 31 2012 was $23.4 million as

compared to net cash provided by operating activities of $19.7 million for the year ended December

2011 This increase was primarily result of rental income received from the eight properties acquired in

2012 partially offset by $1.7 million of leasing commissions paid for renewing existing leases The

majority of cash from operating activities is generated from the rental payments that we receive from our

tenants We utilize this cash to fund our property-level operating expenses and use the excess cash

primarily for debt and interest payments on our mortgage notes payable interest payments on our Line of

Credit distributions to our stockholders management fees to our Adviser and other entity-level expenses

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities during the year ended December 31 2012 was $92.0 million which

primarily consisted of the acquisition of eight properties during 2012 coupled with tenant improvements

performed at certain of our properties and net payments to our lenders for reserves as compared to net cash
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used in investing activities during the year ended December 31 2011 of $46.0 million which primarily

consisted of the acquisition of seven properties coupled with tenant improvements performed at certain of

our properties and net payments to our lenders for reserves

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities during the year ended December 31 2012 was $70.8 million

which primarily consisted of proceeds from the sale of our Term Preferred Stock common stock net

borrowings on our Line of Credit and proceeds from the issuance of mortgage notes payable partially

offset by distributions paid to our stockholders and principal repayments on mortgage notes payable Net

cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31 2011 was $22.6 million which

primarily consisted of proceeds from the sale of our common stock and proceeds from the issuance of

mortgage notes payable partially offset by distributions paid to our stockholders principal repayments on

mortgage notes payable and net repayments on our Line of Credit

Line of Credit

In December 2010 we procured $50.0 million Line of Credit maturing on December 28 2013 with

Capital One N.A serving as revolving lender letter of credit issuer and an administrative agent and

Branch Banking and Trust Company serving as revolving lender and letter of credit issuer The Line of

Credit originally provided for senior secured revolving credit facility of up to $50.0 million with

standby letter of credit sublimit of up to $20.0 million In January 2012 the Line of Credit was expanded to

$75.0 million and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania was added as revolving lender and letter of credit issuer

The interest rate per annum applicable to the Line of Credit is equal to the London Interbank Offered Rate

or LIBOR plus an applicable margin of up to 3.00% depending upon our leverage Our leverage ratio used

in determining the applicable margin for interest on the Line of Credit is recalculated quarterly We are

subject to an annual maintenance fee of 0.25%
per year Our ability to access this source of financing is

subject to our continued ability to meet customary lending requirements such as compliance with financial

and operating covenants and our meeting certain lending limits One such covenant requires us to limit

distributions to our stockholders to 95% of our FF0 with acquisition-related costs required to be expensed

under ASC 805 added back to FF0 for covenant purposes In addition the maximum amount that we may

draw under this agreement is based on percentage of the value of properties pledged as collateral to the

banks which must meet agreed upon eligibility standards Currently 14 of our properties are pledged as

collateral under our Line of Credit

When we are able to procure mortgages for these pledged properties the banks will release the properties

from the Line of Credit and reduce the availability under the Line of Credit by the advanced amount of the

released property Conversely as we purchase new properties meeting the eligibility standards we may

pledge these new properties to obtain additional advances under the Line of Credit Our availability under

the Line of Credit will also be reduced by letters of credit used in the ordinary course of business We may

use the advances under the Line of Credit for both general corporate purposes and the acquisition of new

investments

As of February 19 2013 there was $19.7 million outstanding under the Line of Credit at an interest rate of

approximately 3.0% and $6.1 million outstanding under letters of credit at weighted average interest rate

of 3.0% As of February 19 2013 the remaining borrowing capacity available under the Line of Credit

was $10.6 million Our ability to increase the availability under our Line of Credit is dependent upon our

pledging additional properties as collateral Traditionally we have pledged new properties to the Line of

Credit as we arrange for long-term mortgages for these pledged properties Currently only 16 of our

properties do not have long-term mortgages and 14 of those are pledged as collateral under our Line of

Credit Accordingly we have only properties which are unencumbered We were in compliance with all

covenants under the Line of Credit as of December 31 2012
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Contractual Obligations

The following table reflects our material contractual obligations as of December 31 2012 in thousands

Paynusnts
Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total Less than Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years More than Years

Debt Obligations 421790 40602 65572 183107 132509

Interest on Debt Obligations 120497 23777 41984 24803 29933

Operattng Lease Obligations 7400 413 826 829 5332

Total 549687 64792 108382 208739 167774

Debt thligattnns represent berrossings under our Ltne of Credit ssbich represents $25.0 million of the debt obligatton due in 2013 mortgage notes payabte that suere

outstanding as of December 2012 and amounts due to the holders of oar Term Preferred Stock

Interest on debt obltgations includes estimated interest on our txtrrosssngs under our Line of Credit mortgage notes payable and inlerest due to Ihe holders of our

Term Preferred Stock The balance and interest rate on our Line of Credit is sartuble thus the antount of interest calculated for purposes of this table suns based upon rat

andbalancesusof December 31 2012

Operating lease obligattons represettt the geound lease payments due on our Tulsa Oklahoma Dartmouth Massachusetts and Springfield Missouri
properties

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as of December 31 2012
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Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk includes risks that arise from changes in interest rates foreign currency exchange rates

commodity prices equity prices and other market changes that affect market sensitive instruments The

primary risk that we believe we are and will be exposed to is interest rate risk Four of our sixty-five leases

contain escalations based on market indices and the interest rate on our existing Line of Credit is variable

Although we seek to mitigate this risk by structuring such provisions of our loans and leases to contain

minimum interest rate or escalation rate as applicable these features do not eliminate this risk To date

we have not entered into any derivative contracts to attempt to further manage our exposure to interest rate

fluctuations

To illustrate the potential impact of changes in interest rates on our net income for the year
ended

December 31 2012 we have performed the following analysis which assumes that our balance sheet

remains constant and that no further actions beyond minimum interest rate or escalation rate are taken to

alter our existing interest rate sensitivity

The following table summarizes the impact of 1% 2% and 3% increase in the one month LIBOR for the

year
ended December 31 2012 As of December 31 2012 our effective

average
LIBOR was 0.21% thus

1% 2% or 3% decrease could not occur

Dollars in Thousands

Increase to Rental Increase to Interest Net Decrease to

Interest Rate Change Income Eqense Net Income

1% Increase to LIBOR 43 43
2% Increase to LIBOR 85 85
3% Increase to LIBOR 128 128

As of December 31 2012 the fair value of our fixed rate mortgage debt outstanding was $373.6 million

Interest rate fluctuations may affect the fair value of our fixed rate debt instruments If interest rates on our

fixed rate debt instruments using rates at December 31 2012 had been one percentage point higher or

lower the fair value of those debt instruments on that date would have decreased or increased by $29.4

million and $28.2 million respectively

In the future we may be exposed to additional effects of interest rate changes primarily as result of our

Line of Credit or long-term mortgage debt which we use to maintain liquidity and fund expansion of our

real estate investment portfolio and operations Our interest rate risk management objectives are to limit

the impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and to lower overall borrowing costs To

achieve these objectives we will borrow primarily at fixed rates or variable rates with the lowest margins

available and in some cases with the ability to convert variable rates to fixed rates We may also enter

into derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps and caps in order to mitigate the interest

rate risk on related financial instrument We will not enter into derivative or interest rate transactions for

speculative purposes

in addition to changes in interest rates the value of our real estate is subject to fluctuations based on

changes in local and regional economic conditions and changes in the creditworthiness of lessees and

borrowers all of which may affect our ability to refinance debt if necessary
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Report of Management on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as such term is defined in Rule 13a-l5f and l5d-15f under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 Our internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and include those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect our transactions

and the dispositions of our assets provide reasonable assurance that our transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with appropriate

authorizations and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of our assets that could have material effect on our financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Therefore even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable

assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management we assessed the effectiveness of our

internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations COSO Based on our assessment

management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December

2012

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 2012 has been audited

by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report

which is included herein

February 19 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Gladstone Commercial Corporation

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly in all

material
respects the financial position of Gladstone Commercial Corporation and its subsidiaries at

December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2012 in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America In addition in our opinion the financial statement

schedule listed in the accompanying index
presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth

therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements Also in our opinion
the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys
management is responsible for these financial statements and the financial statement schedule for

maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Report of Management on Internal

Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements

on the financial statement schedule and on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based

on our integrated audits We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our

audits of the financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal

control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial

reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included performing

such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that

in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company and iiiprovide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements
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Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk

that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

McLean VA

February 19 2013

64



Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Dollars in Thousands Except Share and Per Share Data

December31 2012 December31 2011

ASSETS

Real estate at cost 533753 442521

Less accumulated depreciation 65730 53784

Total real
estate net 468023 388737

Lease intangibles net 57254 37670

Cashandcashequivalents 5546 3329

Restricted cash 2935 2473

Funds held inescrow 7591 4086

Deferred rent receivable net 15124 12403

Deferred financing costs net 6569 3473

Other assets 1737 976

TOTAL ASSETS 564779 453147

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Mortgage notes payable 359185 285350

Borrowings under line of credit 25000 18700

Series mandatorily redeemable preferred stock par
value $0001 per share

$25
per

share liquidation preference 1700000 shares and no shares

authorized and 1540000 shares and no shares issued and outstanding at

December31 2012 and December31 2011 respectively 38500

Deferred rent liability net 5379 3851

Asset retirement obligation liability 3755 3289

Accounts payable and accrued
expenses

4715 1956

Due to Adviser and Administratortt 1175 1188

Other liabilities 4705 3499

TotalLiabilities 442414 317833

Commitments and contingencies

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Series and redeemable preferred stock par
value $0001 per share

$25 per share liquidation prefhrence 2300000 shares authorized and

2150000 shares issued arid outstanding at December 312012

and December 31 2011 respectively

Senior conimun stock par
value $0001 per share 7500000 shares authorized

and 179511 and 60290 shares issued and outstanding at December31 2012

and December 31 2011 respectively

Coniman stock par
value $0.00 per share 38500000 shares authorized and

11083584 and 10945379 shares issued and outstanding at December 31

2012 and December31 2011 respectively II II

Additionalpaidincapital
215470 211553

Notes receivable employees 410 422

Distributions in excess of accumulated earnings 92708 75830

Total Stockholders Equity 122365 135314

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY 564779 453147

Refer to Note Related-Party Transactions

Refer to Note Commitments and Contigencies

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements
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Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Dollars in Thousands Except Per Share Data

For the year ended December 31

202 20 2010

Operating revenues

Rental incortin 50915 43632 41180

Interest tncontr from
mortgage note receivable 421

Tenant recovery revenue 355 344 327

Total operating revenues
__________ 51271 43976

_______
41928

Operating expenses

Depreciatton and atnurtication 16831 14149 13264

Property operating expenses 1.588 986 971

Due diligence expense 949 700 42

Base nmnagenicnt fee 1.467 1629 1199

Incentive fee 3569 3.398 3480

Administration fee 1118 1024 1.063

Oeneral and administrative 1594 1497 3408

Total operating expenses before credits front Adviser 27.116
________

23.383 27797

Credit to base
tuanagetuent the 225

Credi1toinceniivefee 222 2113 158

Totaloperatingexpenses 24895 21.270 23414

Other inconn expense

Interest expetose 20226 17076 17163
Distributions attributable to naindalorily redeemable preferred stock 2515
Other inconin 127 84 3477

Totalothcrexpense 2264 16992 13586

Net incotric 3761 574 4928

Distttbutions attributable to preferred stock 4.193 4094 4094
Distributions attributable to senior common stock 113 62 201

Net loss inconin available to conttmjn stockholders 445 1558 814

Earnings per wetghted average
share ofcomtmn stock basic diluted

Loss laconic from continuing operations net oldividends attnhutable to preferred stock 0.04 0.15 0.09

Net loss inconic available to common stockholders 0.04 0.15 0.09

Weighted average shares ofcomnmn stock outstanding

Bask 10953325 10236.859 8576303

Diluted 10953325 10288711 8601153

Earnings per weighted average share of senior common stock .06 1.05 l.8

Weighted average shares of senior cotmnun stock outstanding basic 107 59 25

Refer to Note Related-Party Transactions

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements
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Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

Dollars and Shares in Thousands

Distributions tn

Cop ito in Notes Excess of Toto

5rrferred Senior Common Common Excess of Seceixobo Accnmuoted Stockholders

Stock Stock Stock Pm Volue from Emptoyees Eornings Equity

ltoonco ot December 2889 70623 2305 49878 8.45

Issoottce ot senior common

stock ond conimon stock net 3882 3.98

Ropoyment of principo on

employee totes receixoble .342 .34

Distributions declorod to

preforrod stockholders th954 16984

Forfeiture of common stock in

sotisfoction of employer note

recrioublo 244 24

Net income 4928 4.928

Bolonceot Docember3t20t0 74261 963 bt934 tt373

Issoonce of common stock net 37292 37.29

Ropoymeni ofprincipo on

emptoyec notes roceioobc 54 54

Distributions decoood to

common senior common ond

preferred stockholders t9btO ShIm

Not 500050 5714 5714

Botonce ci Decoinber 20 553 422 75830 35314

Issnonce ot senior common

stock ond conimon stock net 3917 3.9

Ropoyment ofprincipot on

employee notes roceisoble

Distributions declorod to

common senior common oud

preferred stockholders 20639 28638

Net incomo 376 376

Bolooce ot Decembeo3t 2012 215470 410 92708 22363

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements

Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Dollars in Thousands

For tim
year

endcd Drccinter 31

2012 2011 2010

37h1 5714 4928

82239

5.557

1.959

5463
2870

2543

46t
550

42601

1844

1911

3376
2205

2031

185

250

91984 4600t SObS

2217 3733 3972

3329 7062 3097

5546 3329 7069

21239 17076 17978
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Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Gladstone Commercial Corporation the Company we us our is real estate investment trust

REIT that was incorporated under the General Corporation Laws of the State of Maryland on February

14 2003 primarily for the purpose of investing in and owning net leased industrial commercial and retail

real property and selectively making long-term industrial and commercial mortgage loans Subject to

certain restrictions and limitations our business is managed by Gladstone Management Corporation

Delaware corporation the Adviser

Subsidiaries

We conduct substantially all of our operations through subsidiary Gladstone Commercial Limited

Partnership Delaware limited partnership the Operating Partnership As we currently own all of the

general and limited partnership interests of the Operating Partnership through GCLP Business Trust and

II the financial position and results of operations of the Operating Partnership are consolidated with those

of the Company

Gladstone Commercial Lending LLC Delaware limited liability company Gladstone Commercial

Lending and subsidiary of ours was created to conduct all operations related to real estate mortgage

loans of the Company As the Operating Partnership currently owns all of the membership interests of

Gladstone Commercial Lending the financial position and results of operations of Gladstone Commercial

Lending are consolidated with those of the Company

Gladstone Commercial Advisers Inc Delaware corporation Commercial Advisers and subsidiary

of the Company is taxable REIT subsidiary TRS which was created to collect any non-qualifying

income related to our real estate portfolio There has been no such income earned to date Since the

Company owns 100% of the voting securities of Commercial Advisers the financial position and results of

operations of Commercial Advisers are consolidated with those of the Company

GCLP Business Trust and GCLP Business Trust II each subsidiary and business trust of the Company

were formed under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts on December 28 2005 We
transferred our 99% limited partnership interest in the Operating Partnership to GCLP Business Trust in

exchange for 100 shares of the trust Gladstone Commercial Partners LLC transferred its 1% general

partnership interest in the Operating Partnership to GCLP Business Trust II in exchange for 100 trust

shares

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets

and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses

during the reporting periods Actual results could materially differ from those estimates
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Rec/assfications

Certain line items on the consolidated statements of operations and consolidated statements of cash flows

from prior years financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation

These reclassifications had no effect on previously reported net income

Real Estate and Lease Intangibles

We record investments in real estate at cost and capitalize improvements and replacements when they

extend the useful life or improve the efficiency of the asset We expense costs of repairs and maintenance

as such costs are incurred We compute depreciation using the straight-line method over the estimated

useful life or 39 years for buildings and improvements to years for equipment and fixtures and the

shorter of the useful life or the remaining lease term for tenant improvements and leasehold interests

We account for our acquisitions of real estate in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification

ASC 805 Business Combinations which requires that the purchase price of real estate be recorded at

fair value and allocated to the acquired tangible assets and liabilities consisting of land building tenant

improvements long-term debt capital lease obligations and identified intangible assets and liabilities

consisting of above-market and below-market leases in-place leases lease origination costs and tenant

relationships based in each case on their fair values ASC 805 also requires that all expenses related to the

acquisition be expensed as incurred rather than capitalized into the cost of the acquisition

Managements estimates of fair value are made using methods similar to those used by independent

appraisers e.g discounted cash flow analysis Factors considered by management in its analysis include

an estimate of carrying costs during hypothetical expected lease-up periods considering current market

conditions and costs to execute similar leases We also consider information obtained about each property

as result of our pre-acquisition due diligence marketing and leasing activities in estimating the fair value

of the tangible and intangible assets and liabilities acquired In estimating carrying costs management also

includes real estate taxes insurance and other operating expenses and estimates of lost rentals at market

rates during the hypothetical expected lease-up periods which primarily range from nine to eighteen

months depending on specific local market conditions Management also estimates costs to execute similar

leases including leasing commissions legal and other related expenses to the extent that such costs are not

already incurred in connection with new lease origination as part of the transaction

We allocate purchase price to the fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property by valuing the

property as if it were vacant The as-if-vacant value is allocated to land building and tenant

improvements based on managements determination of the relative fair values of these assets Real estate

depreciation expense on these tangible assets was $11.9 million $10.1 million and $9.5 million for the

years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Above-market and below-market in-place lease fair values for owned properties are recorded based on the

present value using an interest rate which reflects the risks associated with the leases acquired of the

difference between the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the in-place leases and ii

managements estimate of fair market lease rates for the corresponding in-place leases measured over

period equal to the remaining non-cancelable term of the lease When determining the non-cancelable term

of the lease we evaluate if fixed-rate renewal options if any should he included The capitalized above-

market lease values included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as part of deferred rent

receivable are amortized as reduction of rental income over the remaining non-cancelable terms of the

respective leases Total amortization related to above-market lease values was $0.3 million for each of the

years ended December 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The capitalized below-market lease values

included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as part of deferred rent liability are amortized as

an increase to rental income over the remaining non-cancelable terms of the respective leases Total

amortization related to below-market lease values was $1.1 million $1 .0 million and $0.9 million for the

years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively
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The total amount of the remaining intangible assets acquired which consists of in-place lease values

unamortized lease origination costs and customer relationship intangible values are allocated based on

managements evaluation of the specific characteristics of each tenants lease and our overall relationship

with that respective tenant Characteristics to be considered by management in determining these values

include the nature and extent of our existing business relationships with the tenant growth prospects fur

developing new business with the tenant the tenants credit quality and our expectations of lease renewals

including those existing under the terms of the lease agreement among other factors

The value of in-place leases and lease origination costs are amortized to expense over the remaining term of

the respective leases which generally range from 10 to 15 years The value of customer relationship

intangibles which is the benefit to us resulting from the likelihood of an existing tenant renewing its lease

are amortized to expense over the remaining term and any anticipated renewal periods in the respective

leases but in no event does the amortization period for intangible assets exceed the remaining depreciable

life of the building Should tenant terminate its lease the unamortized portion of the above-market and

below-market lease values in-place lease values lease origination costs and customer relationship

intangibles will be immediately charged to the related income or expense Total amortization expense

related to these intangible assets was $4.9 million $4.0 million and $3.7 million for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Impairment

We account for the impairment of real estate including intangible assets in accordance with ASC 360-I 0-

35 Property Plant and Equipment which requires us to periodically review the carrying value of each

property to determine if circumstances indicate impairment of the carrying value of the investment exists or

that depreciation periods should be modified If circumstances indicate the possibility of impairment ve

prepare projection of the undiscounted future cash flows without interest charges of the specific property

and determine if the carrying value of the investment in such property is recoverable In performing the

analysis we consider such factors as the tenants payment history and financial condition the likelihood of

lease renewal business conditions in the industry in which the tenants operate and whether there are

indications that the fair value of the real estate has decreased If the carrying amount is less than the

aggregate undiscounted future cash flows we would recognize an impairment loss to the extent the

carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair value of the property

We evaluate our entire property portfolio each quarter for any impairment indicators and perform an

impairment analysis on those select properties that have an indication of impairment We concluded that

none of our properties were impaired as of December 31 2012 and will continue to monitor our portfolio

for any indicators of impairment There have been no impairments recognized on our real estate assets

since inception

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider cash equivalents to be all short-term highly-liquid investments that are both readily

convertible to cash and have maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase except that any such

investments purchased with funds held in escrow or similar accounts are classified as restricted cash Items

classified as cash equivalents include money-market deposit accounts Our cash and cash equivalents at

December 31 2012 were primarily held in the custody of two financial institutions and our balance at

times may exceed federally insurable limits

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of security deposits and receipts from tenants for reserves These funds will be

released to the tenants upon completion of agreed upon tasks as specified in the lease agreements mainly

consisting of maintenance and repairs on the buildings and upon receipt by us of evidence of insurance and

tax payments For purposes
of the consolidated statements of cash flows changes in restricted cash caused

by changes in reserves held for tenants are shown as investing activities Changes in restricted cash caused

by changes in security deposits are reflected in cash from financing activities
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Funds Held in Escrow

Funds held in escrow consist of funds held by certain of our lenders for properties held as collateral by

these lenders These funds will be released to us upon completion of agreed upon tasks as specified in the

mortgage agreements mainly consisting of maintenance and repairs on the buildings and when evidence of

insurance and tax payments has been submitted to the lenders

DefŁrred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs consist of costs incurred to obtain financing including legal fees origination fees

and administrative fees The costs are deferred and amortized using the straight-line method which

approximates the effective interest method over the term of the secured financing We made payments of

$4.6 million $1.1 million and $1.2 million for deferred financing costs during the years ended December

31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The payments incurred during the year ended December 31 2012

were primarily related to the issuance of our 7.l25/o Series Cumulative Term Preferred Stock the

Term Preferred Stock discussed in further detail in Note Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Stock

Total amortization expense related to deferred financing costs is included in interest expense and was $1.5

million $1 .0 million and $1.0 million for the
years

ended December 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Revenue Recognition

Rental revenue includes rents that each tenant pays in accordance with the terms of its respective lease

reported evenly over the non-cancelable term of the lease Most of our leases contain rental increases at

specified intervals We recognize such revenues on straight-line basis Deferred rent receivable in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheet includes the cumulative diflºrence between rental revenue as

recorded on straight-line basis and rents received from the tenants in accordance with the lease terms

along with the capitalized above-market in-place lease values of certain acquired properties Accordingly

we determine in our judgment to what extent the deferred rent receivable applicable to each specific

tenant is collectable We review deferred rent receivable as it relates to straight line rents on quarterly

basis and take into consideration the tenants payment history the financial condition of the tenant

business conditions in the industry in which the tenant operates and economic conditions in the geographic

area in which the property is located In the event that the collectability of deferred rent with respect to any

given tenant is in doubt we record an allowance for uncollectable accounts or record direct write-off of

the specific rent receivable No such reserves or direct write-offs have been recorded to date

Tenant recovery revenue includes payments from tenants as reimbursements for franchise taxes

management fees insurance and ground lease payments We recognize tenant recovery revenue in the

same periods that we incur the related expenses

Income Taxes

We have operated and intend to continue to operate in manner that will allow us to qualify as REIT

under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended and accordingly will not be subject to federal

income taxes on amounts distributed to stockholders except income from foreclosure property provided

that we distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income to our stockholders and meet certain other

conditions To the extent that we satisfy the distribution requirement but distribute less than 100% of our

taxable income we will be subject to federal corporate income tax on our undistributed income

Commercial Advisers is wholly-owned TRS that is subject to federal and state income taxes Though

Commercial Advisers has had no activity to date we would account for any future income taxes in

accordance with the provisions of ASC 740 Income Taxes Under ASC 740-10-25 we account for

income taxes using the asset and liability method under which deferred tax assets and liabilities are

recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement

carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases
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We may recognize tax benefit from an uncertain tax position when it is more-likely-than-not defined as

likelihood of more than 50% that the position will be sustained upon examination including resolutions of

any related appeals or litigation processes based on the technical merits If tax position does not meet the

more-likely-than-not recognition threshold despite our belief that the filing position is supportable the

benefit of that tax position is not recognized in the statements of operations We recognize interest and

penalties as applicable related to unrecognized tax benefits as component of income tax expense We

recognize unrecognized tax benefits in the period that the uncertainty is eliminated by either affirmative

agreement of the uncertain tax position by the applicable taxing authority or by expiration of the applicable

statute of limitation For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 we did not record any
uncertain tax positions

Asset Retirement Obligations

ASC 410 Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligation requires an entity to recognize liability for

conditional asset retirement obligation when incurred if the liability can be reasonably estimated ASC
410-20-20 clarifies that the term Conditional Asset Retirement Obligation refers to legal obligation

pursuant to existing laws or by contract to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and/or

method of settlement are conditional on future event that may or may not be within the control of the

entity ASC 10-20-25-6 clarifies when an entity would have sufficient information to reasonably estimate

the fair value of an asset retirement obligation We have accrued liability and corresponding increase to

the cost of the related properties for disposal related to all properties constructed prior to 1985 that have or

may have asbestos present in the building The liabilities are accreted over the life of the leases for the

respective properties We accrued $0.3 million $0.1 million and $0.6 million in liabilities in connection

with acquisitions for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively We also recorded

expenses of $0.2 million $0.2 million and $0.1 million during the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011

and 2010 respectively Costs of future expenditures for obligations are discounted to their present value

The aggregate undiscounted obligation on all properties is $9.2 million and the discount rates used in the

calculations ranges from 2.5% to 7.6% We do not expect to make any payments in conjunction with these

obligations in each of the next five years

Stock Issuance Costs

We account for stock issuance costs in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin SAB Topic 5.A
which states that incremental costs directly attributable to proposed or actual offering of securities may
properly be deferred and charged against the gross proceeds of the offering Accordingly we record costs

incurred related to our ongoing equity offerings to other assets on our consolidated balance sheet and

ratably apply these amounts to the cost of equity as stock is issued If an equity offering is subsequently

terminated and there are amounts remaining in other assets that have not been allocated to the cost of the

offering the remaining amounts are recorded as general and administrative expense on our consolidated

statements of operations

Other Income

We record non-operating and unusual or infrequently earned income as other income on our consolidated

statements of operations Accordingly on April 15 2005 we originated mortgage loan in the amount of

$10.0 million that was collateralized by an office building located in McLean Virginia in which our

Adviser and Administrator are subtenants The mortgage loan was originally scheduled to mature in May
2017 but in July 2010 this mortgage was fully repaid We received $3.3 million of additional income and

prepayment fees in connection with the early payment which was recorded as other income in the

consolidated statement of operations

Real Estate Jleldfor Sale and Discontinued Operations

ASC 360-10 Property Plant and Equipment requires that the results of operations of any properties

which have been sold or are held for sale be presented as discontinued operations in our consolidated

financial statements in both current and prior periods presented Income items related to held for sale
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properties are listed separately on our consolidated income statement as discontinued operations Real

estate assets held for sale are measured at the lower of the carrying amount or the fair value less the cost to

sell and are listed separately on our consolidated balance sheet Once properties are listed as held for sale

no further depreciation is recorded We currently do not own any properties that are classified as

discontinued operations

Comprehensive Income

For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 comprehensive income equaled net income

therefore separate statement of comprehensive income is not included in the accompanying consolidated

financial statements

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

May 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board or FASB issued Accounting Standards Update

or ASU 2011-04 which results in consistent definition of fair value and common requirements for

measurement of and disclosure about fair value between GAAP and Intemational Financial Reporting

Standards or IFRS ASU 2011-04 is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15

201 and as such we have increased our disclosures related to Level fair value measurements of our

mortgage notes payable in addition to other required disclosures There were no related impacts on our

financial position results of operations or cash flows

RelatedParty Transactions

We are externally managed pursuant to contractual arrangements with our Adviser and Gladstone

Administration LLC the Administrator which collectively employ all of our personnel and pay their

salaries benefits and general expenses directly We have an advisory agreement with our Adviser the

Advisory Agreement and an administration agreement with our Administrator the Administration

Agreement The management and administrative services and fees under the Advisory and

Administration Agreements are described below As of both December 31 2012 and December 31 2011

$1.2 million was due to our Adviser and Administrator

Advisoiy Agreement

The Advisory Agreement provides for an annual base management fee equal to 2% of our total

stockholders equity less the recorded value of any preferred stock common stockholders equity and

an incentive fee based on funds from operations FF0 For the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011

and 2010 we recorded abase management fee of $1.5 million $1.6 million and $1.2 million respectively

Our Advisors Board of Directors voted to give us voluntary and irrevocable credit to the base

management fee for the year ended December 31 2010 of $0.2 million This credit may not be recouped by

our Adviser in the future

For purposes of calculating the incentive fee FF0 includes any realized capital gains and capital losses

less any distributions paid on preferred stock and senior common stock but FF0 does not include any

unrealized capital gains or losses The incentive fee rewards the Adviser if our quarterly FF0 before

giving effect to any incentive fee pre-incentive fee FF0 exceeds .75% or 7% annualized the hurdle

rate of total common stockholders equity The Adviser receives 100% of the amount of the pre

incentive fee FF0 that exceeds the hurdle rate but is less than 2.1875% of our common stockholders

equity The Adviser also receives an incentive fee of 20% of the amount of our pre-incentive fee FF0 that

exceeds 2.1875% of common stockholders equity

For the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 we recorded an incentive fee of $3.6 million $3.4

million and $3.5 million respectively offset by credits related to unconditional voluntary and irrevocable

waivers issued by the Adviser of $2.2 million $2.1 million and $0.2 million respectively resulting in net

incentive fee for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 of $1.4 million $1.3 million and $3.3
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million respectively Our Board of Directors accepted the Advisers offer to waive on quarterly basis

portion of the incentive fee for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 in order to support the

current level of distributions to our stockholders This waiver may not be recouped by the Adviser in the

future

Administration Agreement

Pursuant to the Administration Agreement we pay for our allocable portion of the Administrators

overhead expenses in performing its obligations to us including but not limited to rent and the salaries

and benefits of its personnel including our chief financial officer and treasurer chief compliance officer

internal counsel and their respective staffs Our allocable portion of expenses is derived by multiplying the

Administrators total allocable expenses by the percentage of our total assets at the beginning of each

quarter in comparison to the total assets of all companies managed by the Adviser under similar

agreements For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 we recorded an administration fee of

$1.1 million $1.0 million and $1.1 million respectively

Dealer Manager Agreement

In connection with the offering of our senior common stock see Note Stockholders Equity for

further details we entered into Dealer Manager Agreement dated March 25 2011 the Dealer Manager

Agreement with Gladstone Securities LLC the Dealer Manager pursuant to which the Dealer

Manager agreed to act as our exclusive dealer manager in connection with the offering The Dealer

Manager is an affiliate of ours as its parent company is controlled by Mr David Gladstone our chairman

and chief executive officer Pursuant to the terms of the Dealer Manager Agreement the Dealer Manager is

entitled to receive sales commission in the amount of 7.0% of the gross proceeds of the shares of senior

common stock sold plus dealer manager fee in the amount of 3.0% of the gross proceeds of the shares of

senior common stock sold The Dealer Manager in its sole and absolute discretion may re-allocate all of

its selling commissions attributable to participating broker-dealer and may also re-allocate portion of its

Dealer Manager fee earned in
respect

of the proceeds generated by the participating broker-dealer to any

participating broker-dealer as non-accountable marketing allowance In addition we have agreed to

indenmify the Dealer Manager against various liabilities including certain liabilities arising under the

federal securities laws We made approximately $173000 and $5000 of payments during the
years

ended

December 2012 and 2011 respectively to the Dealer Manager pursuant to this agreement There were

no payments made during the year ended December 31 2010

Earnings Loss per Share of Common Stock

The following tables set forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings loss per share of common
stock lbr the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 We computed basic earnings per share fir

the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 using the weighted average number of shares

outstanding during the periods Diluted earnings loss per share for the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 reflects additional shares of common stock related to our convertible senior common

stock that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential shares of common stock had been issued as

well as an adjustment to net loss income available to common stockholders as applicable to common

stockholders that would result from their assumed issuance in thousands
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Foi the year ended December 31

2012 20 2010

Calculation of basic earnings per share of common stock

Net loss incofl available to coimxin stockholders

Denominator for basic
weighted average shares of comnain stock

Basic loss earnings per share of coinntwn stock

Calculation of diluted earnings per share of common stock

Net loss incons available to coirerran stockholders

Add lncon
impact

ofassuitmd conversion of senior comnam stock

Net loss incono available to comiusit stockholders plus assuinmd conversions

Denominator for basic weighted average shares ofconaumn stock

Eflct of convertible senior comitran stock

Denominator tbrdiluted weighted aserage shares ofcoinnram stock

Dilated loss earnings per share ofcoisnrein stock

Convertible senior common stock was excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31

2012 because it was anti-dilutive Had the convertible senior common stock been included in the calculation 121891 additional

shares would have been included in the diluted weighted average shares of common stock

Real Estate and Intangible Assets

Rea/ Estate

The following table sets forth the components of our investments in real estate as of December 31 2012

and 2011 in thousands

Real estate

Land

Building and improvements

Tenant improvements

Accumulated depreciation

Real estate net

December 31 2012

69126

442451

22176

65730

468023

December 312011

60602

367605

14314

53784

388737

445 1114

10953.325 10236859

004 0.15

445 1.558

445 1620

10.953.325 11236859

51852

10953.325 10280.711

0.04 0.15

0576.303

0.09

814

20

534

0576303

24850

5601153

0.09
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New Real Estate Activ liv

During the
year ended December 31 2012 we acquired eight properties which are summarized below

dollars in thousands

Total

Lease Purchase Acquistion Annualized StraIght Debt Issued

Location Acqursitnn Date Square Footage Ferm Renewal Options Price Esperuses Line Rent Assun90d

Ashharn VA 1/25.2012 52130 IS
years years each 11.775 02 989 N/A

Ottuntwa IA 530/202 352861 11.5
years years each 7100 49 684 5000

Nen Arany OH 6/5/2012 89.00 10.5 years 25 years each 3333 196 1.361 N/A

Cokinihocs GA 6/21/2112 32.1100 11.5 years 25 years each 7320 71 656 4750
Cohnttbus OH h1202012 31.293 years N.A 4.037 66 342 N/A

Jupber FL 9/26/202 60000 105 years years each 15.50 61 1372 10758

Fort Worth 1X 102012 208234 14 years N/A 19950 120 1628 14168

Cohumblu SC 1/21/2112 146463 loyeacs 35 yearseach 29150 lOS 2614 19000

Total 972.000 107165 770 9646 53676

Debt asunrd as part srfacqrusilntr

In accordance with ASC 805 we determined the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities assumed related

to the properties acquired during the year ended December 31 2012 as follows in thousands

Dscurl

uurnr 5ho Mrnkc/ 00k Mar00 /Prc000 rn
11031 Purahaac

I.ird lOok/are k/aaaaa co/ira a0a k/ioy7Ir larnas Lero.s.saod lob Ircc

AohhorosA 7//I 19 191/7 5/14
95/1/ 499 1477/

llrrra IA 4749 .129
941/ 404 499 /7/ 191

soaaAIhaas II Is/s 5I 1235 1122 557 91/9 47 /999/

1375 1894 425 574 473 371 7729

olorhaa II 342 .050 597 39 2/3 325 13 403
0711cr I-I 111 .249 743 .009 701 91/1 /507 /3.50/

ton 0/cOb 1/ 903 3317 /41 .579 2.///7 917 /599/ 9990
olir4ai 51 .09 17705 2553 2.454 1.490 9/9 734

29.151/

9.524 091/70 71/02 4.457 7.79 3940 594 107/ 1.730 107.107

Below is summary of the total revenue and net income recognized on the properties acquired during the

year ended December 31 2012 in thousands

Location

Acquisition

Date

For the Year Ended December31

2012 2012

Rental Revenue Net Income

Ashburn VA

Ottumwa IA

New Albany OH

Columbus GA

Columbus OH

Jupiter FL

Fort Worth TX

Columbia SC

5/30/2012

6/5/2012

6/21/2012

6/28/2012

9/26/2012

11/8/2012

11/21/2012

1/25/2012 925 555

408 200

776 445

346 186

168 65

362 191

240 118

282 123

3507 1883

Does not include interest expense oracquisition related costs that are required to

be expensed under ASC 805
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We acquired eight properties during the year ended December 31 2012 seven properties during the year

ended December 31 2011 and one property during the year ended December 31 2010 The following

table reflects pro-forma consolidated statements of operations as if the properties were acquired as of the

beginning of the previous period The pro-forma earnings for the year ended December 31 2012 were

adjusted to exclude 50.8 million of acquisition-related costs incurred in 2012 and the pro-forma earnings

related to the eight properties acquired The pro-forma earnings for the year ended December 31 2012

were adjusted to include these charges dollars in thousands

For the year ended December 31

212 2011 2010

Un audited

Operating Data

Total operating revenue 55.849 56414 47968

Total operating cpenses 27.571 29182 27.566

Other eense 25040 21709 15465

Net income 3.238 5523 4937

Dividends attributable to preferred
and seniorconimon stock 4206 4156 4.114

Net loss income available to common stockholders 968 1367 823

Share and Per Share Data

Basic diltued loss earnings per share of conlinon stock 009 0.13 0.10

Weighted average shares outstanding-basic in thousands 10.953.325 10.236859 8576303

Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted in thousands l093325 10.288.711 8601153

The weighted average
amortization period for the intangible assets acqutrcd and liabilities assumed during

the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively were as follows

Intangible Assets Liabilities 2012 2011

In-place leases 11.2 16.4

Leasing costs 11.2 16.4

Customcrrelationships 14.6 19.2

Above niarket leases 10.1 8.8

Below market leases 11.3 20.9

All intangible assets liabilities 12.1 17.1

Future operating lease payments from tenants under non-cancelable leases excluding tenant reimbursement

of expenses for each of the five succeeding fiscal years and thereafter is as follows

Tenant

Year Lease Paymants

2013 50534

2014 49719

2015 46431

2016 42240

2017 40239

Thereafter 266545

In accordance with the lease terms substantially all operating expenses are requtred to be paid by the

tenant however we would be required to pay property taxes on the respective properties in the event the

tenants fail to pay them The total annual property taxes for all properties owned by us at December 31

2012 were $8.9 million

78



Existing Real Estate Activity

On February 14 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our property located in San

Antonio Texas The lease covering this
property was extended for an additional seven-year period

through November 2021 The lease was originally set to expire in February 2014 The lease provides for

prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of approximately

$0.8 million Furthermore the lease grants the tenant two options to extend the lease for period of five

years each In connection with the extension of the lease and the modification of certain terms under the

lease we provided tenant allowance of $0.6 million payable over two years and paid $0.3 million in

leasing commissions

On February 27 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our property located in Roseville

Minnesota The new lease covers approximately one-third of this property and was extended for an

additional five-year period through December 201 The lease was originally set to expire in December

2012 The tenant in this property paid rent on the entire building through the end of 2012 and we continue

to search for new tenants to lease the remainder of the building The new lease provides for prescribed rent

escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of $2.9 million for the remainder of

2012 and annualized straight line rents beginning in 2013 of$1.2 million Furthermore the lease grants the

tenant one option to extend the lease for period of five years In connection with the extension of the

lease and the modification of certain terms under the lease we provided tenant allowance of $0.4 million

payable over two years and paid $0.8 million in leasing commissions

On June 29 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our property located in Hialeah

Florida The lease covering this property was extended for an additional five-year period through March

2027 The lease was originally set to expire in March 2022 The lease provides for prescribed rent

escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of approximately $1 million In

connection with the extension of the lease and the modification of certain terms under the lease we

provided tenant allowance of $0.3 million

On August 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our property located in Wichita

Kansas The lease covering this property was extended for an additional five-year period through

September 2017 The lease was originally set to expire in September 2012 The lease provides for

prescribed rent escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of approximately

$0.8 million In connection with the extension of the lease and the modification of certain terms under the

lease we paid $0.2 million in leasing commissions

On September 10 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our property located in South

Hadley Massachusetts The lease covering this property was extended for an additional one-year period

through January 2014 The lease was originally set to expire in February 2013 The lease provides for

annual rents of approximately $0.3 million

On September 11 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our property located in Mason
Ohio The lease covering this property was extended for almost an additional seven-year period through

June 2020 The lease was originally set to expire in January 2013 The lease provides for prescribed rent

escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of approximately $0.6 million In

connection with the extension of the lease and the modification of certain terms under the lease we

provided tenant allowance of $0.5 million and paid $0.3 million in leasing commissions

On September 27 2012 our tenant occupying our property located in Arlington Texas exercised its option

to extend the lease covering this property for an additional five-year period through March 2018 The

lease was originally set to expire in April 2013 The lease provides that the option period rent be at fair

market rent but not less than the current rental rate

On October 2012 we modified and extended the lease with the tenant occupying our property located in

Concord Township Ohio The lease covering this property was extended for an additional six-year period
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through August 2034 in exchange for reduction in rent payable over the next two years
The lease was

originally set to expire in March 2028 The lease provides for prescribed rent escalations over the life of

the lease with annualized straight line rents of approximately $1 .7 million In connection with the

extension of the lease and the modification of certain terms under the lease we provided tenant allowance

cf $0.2 million

On November 2012 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our property located in Big Flats

New York The lease covering this property was extended for an additional 10 years through September

2023 The lease was originally set to expire in September 2013 The Lease provides for prescribed rent

escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of approximately $0.5 million In

connection with the extension of the lease and the modification of certain terms under the lease we paid

$0.2 million in leasing commissions

Intangible Assets

The following table summarizes the carrying value of intangible assets and the accumulated amortization

for each intangible asset class in thousands

December3l2012 December3l2011

In-place leases 34085 12125 24620 10181

Leasing costs 24071 7103 15013 5663

Customer relationships 26671 8345 20725 6844

84827 27573 60358 22688

The estimated aggregate amortization expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal years and thereafter is

as follows in thousands

Estimated

____________
Amortization Expense

7545

6282

5854

Thereafter 2731

Accumulated

Lease Intangibles An1ort1z2tion

Accumulated

Lease Intangibles Amurtization

Year

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

5223

5039
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Mortgage Notes Payable and Line of Credit

Our mortgage notes payable and line of credit the Line of Credit as of December 31 2012 and

December 31 2011 are summarized below in thousands

Principal Balance Outstanding

Date of

Issuance
Principal

Stated Interest Rate at

Assumption Maturity Date December 31 2012 December 31 2012 December 31 2011

02/21/06 12/01/13 5.91% 8658 8845

02/21/06 06/30/14 5.20% 17930 18345

08/25/05 09/01/15 5.33% 20074 20431

09/12/05 09/01/15 5.21% 11821 12019

09/06/07 12/11/15 5.81% 4141 4219

12/21/05 01/08/16 5.71% 18155 18448

03/29/06 04/01/16 5.92% 16669 16871

04/27/06 05/05/16 6.58% 13080 13409

08/29/08 06/01/16 6.80% 5866 6019

06/20/11 06/30/16 6.08% 11341 11505

11/22/06 12/01/16 5.76% 13558 13761

12/22/06 01/01/17 5.79% 20731 21037

02/08/07 03/01/17 6.00% 13775 13775

06/05/07 06/08/17 6.11% 14163 14240

10/15/07 11/08/17 6.63% 15072 15278

09/26/12 07/01/18 5.75% 10707

11/18/11 11/01/18 4.50% 4256 4352

12/06/11 12/06/19 6.00% 8272 8500

10/28/11 11/01/21 6.00% 7068 7190

04/05/12 05/01/22 6.10% 18821

06/21/12 07/06/22 5.05% 4712

08/03/12 07/31/22 5.00% 2979

07/24/12 08/01/22 5.60% 9661

10/01/12 10/01/22 4.86% 33888

11/21/12 12/06/22 4.04% 19000

12/15/10 12/10/26 6.63% 9983 10402

05/16/12 12/31/26 4.30% 2897

11/08/12 02/01/27 5.69% 14145

05/30/12 05/10/27 6.50% 4883

06/27/12 07/01/29 5.10% 1984

09/15/08 10/01/12 4.76% 45233

03/16/05 04/01/30 6.33% 2314

ContractualFixed-RateMortgageNotesPayable 358290 286193

lremiums and Discounts net 895 843

Total Fixed-Rate Mortgage Notes Payable 359185 285350

Variable-Rate Line ofCredit

12/28/10 12/28/13 LIBOR2.75% 25000 18700

Total Mortgage Notes Payable and Line ofCredit 384185 304050

The sneighted average interest rate on all debt outstanding at December 312012 ssus approsiosately 5.46%
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Mortgage Notes Payable

As of December 31 2012 we had 30 fixed-rate mortgage notes payable collateralized by total of 64

properties Gladstone Commercial Corporation has limited recourse liabilities that could result from any

one or more of the following circumstances borrower voluntarily filing for bankruptcy improper

conveyance of property fraud or material misrepresentation misapplication or misappropriation of rents

security deposits insurance proceeds or condemnation proceeds or physical waste or damage to the

property resulting from borrowers gross negligence or willful misconduct We will also indemnify

lenders against claims resulting from the presence of hazardous substances or activity involving hazardous

substances in violation of environmental laws on property The weighted-average interest rate on the

mortgage notes payable as of December 31 2012 was 5.64%

Repavnients

On February 2012 we repaid in full the mortgage on our property located in Canton North Carolina in

the amount of $2.3 million We did not incur any prepayment penalties associated with the early

repayment The original maturity date of this mortgage was April 2030

On October 2012 we repaid our $45.2 million mortgage in full which with extension options was due

October 2013 without incurring any exit fees We used proceeds from $34.0 million mortgage

borrowed through certain of our wholly-owned subsidiaries pursuant to long-term note payable from

KeyBank National Association which is collateralized by security interests in seven of our properties

coupled with existing cash on hand to repay
the mortgage

During the year ended December 2012 we issued or assumed 11 long-term mortgages which are

summarized below in thousands

Date of Issuance Assumption Issuing Bank Bonowings Interest Rate Matunty Date

KeyBank National

4/5/2012 Association 9000 6.10% 5/1/2022

5/16/2012 City National Bank 2940 4.30% 2/31/2026

Modem Woodman

5/30/2012 ofAnierica 3000 6.50% 510/2027

6/21/2012 Citigroup 4.750 5.05% 7/6/2022

American Equity

6/27/2012 Investment Life Co 2000 5.10% 7/1/2029

American National

7/24/2012 Insurance Co 9750 5.60% 8/1/2022

8/3/2012 Fanirs Citizens Bank 3.000 5.00% 7/31/2022

Midland National

9/26/2012 Investment Life Co 10758 5.75% 7/1/2018

KeyBank National

10/1/2012 Association 34.000 4.86% 10/1/2022

American United

11/8/2012 Life Insurance Co 4.168 5.69% 2/1/2027

Cantor Commercial

11/21/2012 Real Estate 19000 4.04% 12/6/2022

124366
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The fair value of all fixed-rate mortgage notes payable outstanding as of December 31 2012 was $373.6

million as compared to the carrying value stated above of $358.3 million The fair value is calculated

based on discounted cash flow analysis using interest rates based on managements estimate of market

interest rates on long-term debt with comparable terms The fair value was calculated using Level inputs

of the hierarchy established by ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Scheduled principal payments of mortgage notes payable for each of the five succeeding fiscal years and

thereafter are as follows in thousands

Year

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Thereafter

Scheduled Principal

Payments

15602

24377

41195

79219

65386

132511

358290

Line of Credit

In December 2010 we procured $50.0 million Line of Credit with Capital One N.A serving as

revolving lender letter of credit issuer and an administrative agent and Branch Banking and Trust

Company serving as an additional revolving lender and letter of credit issuer which matures on December

28 2013 The Line of Credit originally provided for senior secured revolving credit facility of up to

$50.0 million with standby letter of credit sublimit of up to $20.0 million On January 31 2012 the Line

of Credit was expanded to $75.0 million and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania was added as revolving

lender and letter of credit issuer Currently 14 of our properties are pledged as collateral under our Line of

Credit The interest rate per annum applicable to the Line of Credit is equal to the London Interbank

Offered Rate or LIBOR plus an applicable margin of up to 3.00% depending upon our leverage The

leverage ratio used in determining the applicable margin for interest on the Line of Credit is recalculated

quarterly We are subject to an annual maintenance fee of 0.25% per year Our ability to access this source

of financing is subject to our continued ability to meet customary lending requirements such as compliance

with financial and operating covenants and our meeting certain lending limits One such covenant requires

us to limit distributions to our stockholders to 95% of our FF0 with acquisition-related costs required to be

expensed under ASC 805 added back to FF0 In addition the maximum amount we may draw under this

agreement is based on percentage of the value of properties pledged as collateral to the banks which must

meet agreed upon eligibility standards

If and when long-term mortgages are arranged for these pledged properties the banks will release the

properties from the Line of Credit and reduce the availability under the Line of Credit by the advanced

amount of the released property Conversely as we purchase new properties meeting the eligibility

standards we may pledge these new properties to obtain additional availability under the Line of Credit

The availability under the Line of Credit is also reduced by letters of credit used in the ordinary course of

business We may use the advances under the Line of Credit for both general corporate purposes
and the

acquisition of new investments

At December 31 2012 there was $25.0 million outstanding under the Line of Credit at an interest rate of

approximately 3.0% and $6.1 million outstanding under letters of credit at weighted average interest rate

of 3.0% At December 31 2012 the maximum additional amount we could draw was $5.3 million We
were in compliance with all covenants under the Line of Credit as of December 31 2012 The amount
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outstanding on the Line of Credit as of December 2012 approximates fair value because the debt is

short-term

Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Stock

In February 2012 we completed public offering of 1540000 shares of 7.125% Series Cumulative

Term Preferred Stock par value $0.00 per share Term Preferred Stock at public offering price of

$25.00 per share Gross proceeds of the offering totaled $38.5 million and net proceeds after deducting

offering expenses borne by us were $36.7 million and were used to repay portion of outstanding

borrowings under our Line of Credit for acquistions of real estate and for working capital The Term

Preferred Stock is traded under the ticker symbol GOODN on the NASDAQ Global Select Market or the

NASDAQ The Term Preferred Stock is not convertible into our common stock or any
other security of

ours Generally we may not redeem shares of the Term Preferred Stock prior to January 31 2016 except

in limited circumstances to preserve our status as REIT On or after January 31 2016 we may redeem

the shares at redemption price of $25.00 per share plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends to and

including the date of redemption The shares of the Term Preferred Stock have mandatory redemption

date of January 31 2017 We incurred $1.8 million in total offering costs related to these transactions

which have been recorded as deferred financing fees on the consolidated balance sheet and will be

amortized over the redemption period ending January 31 2017

The Terni Preferred Stock is recorded as liability in accordance with ASC 480 Distinguishing Liabilities

from Equity which states that mandatorily redeemable financial instruments should be classified as

liabilities and therefore the related dividend payments are treated as component of interest expense in the

statement of operations

The fair value of our Term Preferred Stock as of December 31 2012 was $39.5 million as compared to the

carrying value stated above of $38.5 million The fair value is calculated based on the closing share price

as of December 31 2012 of $25.64 The fair value was calculated using Level inputs of the hierarchy

established by ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Commitments and Contingencies

Ground Leases

We are obligated as lessee under three ground leases Future minimum rental payments due under the terms

of these leases as of December 31 2012 are as follows in thousands

For the year crtded December 21

Locattt Lease OttO Date 20 21114 20 2016 21 2010 Thcreatcr

Iuia.OK Apr.21
153 153 153 153 153 153 301

Dartrrmath MA May-38 74 174 174 74 174 174 3470

Springfickl MA Feb-30 86 86 86 86 89 91 1.064

413 413 413 413 46 417 495

kxpenses recorded tr connection to rental
expense

incurred Err the
properties

listed above during the year ended December 202 2011 and 2010 were S426 5191 and $140

rcspecttvely Rental expenses arc reflected in
property aperatmg expenses on tIle consolidated statements of operations
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Stockholders Equity

Distributions

Our Board of Directors declared the following distributions per share for the years ended December 31

2012 2011 and 2010

For the year ended December31

2012 2011 2010

Common Stock 1.50 1.50 1.50

Senior Conmion Stock 1.05 1.05 0.7875

Series Preferred Stock 1.9374996 1.9374996 1.9374996

Series Preferred Stock 1.8750 1.8750 1.8750

Series Preferred Stock 1.6328 N/A N/A

There was no Series Preferred Stock outstanding during the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

For federal income tax purposes distributions paid to stockholders may be characterized as ordinary

income capital gains return of capital or combination of the foregoing There were no capital gains

during the last three years The characterization of distributions during each of the last three
years is

reflected in the table below

Ordinary Income Return of Capital

Common Stock

For the year ended December31 2010 15.76540% 84.23460%

For the year ended December31 2011 16.62560% 83.37440%

For the year ended December 312012 0.00000% 100.00000%

Senior Common Stock

For the year ended December31 2010 100.00000% 0.00000%

For the year ended December 312011 100.00000% 0.00000%

Forthe year ended December31 2012 0.00000% 100.00000%

Series Preferred Stock

For the year ended December 31 2010 100.00000% 0.00000%

For the year ended December31 2011 100.00000% 0.00000%

For the year ended December 312012 91.70830% 8.29170%

Series Preferred Stock

For the year ended December 31 2010 100.00000% 0.00000%

For the year ended December 31 20t 100.00000% 0.00000%

For the year ended December 31 2012 91.70830% 8.29170%

Series Preferred Stock

Forthe yearended December31 2010 N/A N/A

For the year ended December 31 2011 N/A N/A

For the year ended December 31 2012 91.70830% 8.29170%

There was no Series Preferred Stock outstanding during the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010
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Ongoing Activity

\Ve have an open market sale agreement or the Open Market Sale Agreement with Jefferies Company

Inc or Jefferies under which we may from time to time offer to sell shares of our common stock with an

aggregate sales price of up to $25.0 million on the open market through Jefferies as agent or to Jefferies

as principal As of December 31 2012 we had sold 330570 shares with
gross proceeds of $6.1 million

and have remaining capacity to sell up to $18.9 million of common stock under the Open Market Sale

Agreement with Jefferies

In March 2011 we commenced an offering of an aggregate of 3500000 shares of our senior common

stock par
value $0001 per share at price to the public of$l5.00 per share of which 3000000 shares are

intended to be offered pursuant to the primary offering and 500000 shares are intended to be offered

pursuant to our senior common distribution reinvestment plan or the DRIP We however reserve the right

to reallocate the number of shares being offered between the primary offering arid the DRIP As of

December 31 2012 we have sold 118738 shares of senior common stock in this ongoing offering for

gross proceeds of $1.8 million and issued an additional 1395 shares of senior common stock under the

DRIP program

iVotes to EnpIoyees

The following table is summary of all outstanding notes issued to employees of the Adviser for the

exercise of stock options dollars in thousands

Number of Strike Once Anujunt of Outstanding Balance Outstanding Balance

Options ofOptions Promissoty Note ofEntployec Lsarts at of Emp kvce Loans at Maturity Date Interest Rate

Date Issued Exercised Exercised Issued to Employees
December 2012 December 31 2111 ofNote on Note

Sep 2004 25 500 375 II Sep 2013 5.10%

Apr2000 161 193 Apr 2015 7.77%

May 2006 6.10 32 32 May 2016 770

Nov 2006 25 15.00 375 375 375 Nov 2015 8.15%

64 975 40 422

In accordance with ASC 50510-45-2 Equity receivables from employees for the issuance of capital

stock to employees prior to the receipt of cash payment should be reflected in the balance sheet as

reduction to stockholders equity Therefore these notes were recorded as full recourse loans to employees

and are included in the equity section of the accompanying consolidated balance sheets As of December

31 2012 each loan maintained its full recourse status
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Quarterly Financial Information unaudited

The following table reflects the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 2012 and

2011 dollars in thousands

Quarter ended

Net loss income available to coninan stockholders basic diluted

Net loss income available to common stockholders -basic diluted

10 Subsequent Events

0.04

0.01

001 0.02

Quarter ended

0.06 0.03

0.02

0.15

On January 2013 our Board of Directors declared the following monthly distributions

Common Stock

Record Date Payment Date Distributions per Share

Series Preferred Senes Preferred Series Preferred

Distnbutions
per

Share Distributions per Share Distributions per Share

January 1820t3 January31 2013 0.t25

February 15 2013 February 28 2013 0.125

March 152013 March 28.20t3 0.125

Total

0.1614583 0.15625

01614583 0.15625

0.1614583 0.15625

0.375 0.4843749 0.46875

0.t484375

0.1484375

0.14843 75

0.4453 ItS

Payable to the

Holders or Record

Senior Common Stock Distributions

During the Month of

January

February

March

Total

Payment Date

February 72013

March 72013

April 52013

Distnbution per Share

0.0875

0.0875

0.0875

0.2625

December31 2012 September 30 2012 June 30 2012 March 312012

Operating revenues 13790 12.970 12410 12100

Opemtirtg expenses 6971 6101 6027 5.797

Otherespense 6205 5878 5529 5002
Net income 614 992 854 1301

Dividends attributable to preferred and seniorcommon stock 1.065 1053 1046 1042
Net loss income available to common stockholders 451 61 192 259

10976992 10.945.379 10.945379 10.945379

10976992 10945.379 11.945.379 1006597

Weightnd average shares outstanding basic

Weightcd average
shares outstanding diluted

December3l.2011 September30 2011 June 302011 March 312011

Operatitigrevenues 11.468 11173 10.816 10519

Operatitig expenses 5.895 5183 5.255 4.937

Otherexpense 4457 4.242 4191 4132
Net income 1116 1748 1370 1450

Dividends attributable to preferred atid seniorcommon stock 1040 1039 1039 1038
Net income available to comnann stockholders 76 709 331 412

Weighted average shares outstanding basic 10945379 10935922 9782368 9.258018

Weighted average
shares outstanding diluted 10997231 10.987601 9834047 930967
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on January 14 2013 we extended the lease with the tenant occupying our property located in Champaign
Illinois The lease covering this property was extended for an additional 11 years through December

2024 The lease was originally set to expire in December 2013 The lease provides for prescribed rent

escalations over the life of the lease with annualized straight line rents of approximately $1.4 million In

connection with the extension of the lease and the modification of certain terms under the lease we paid

$0.4 million in leasing commissions

January 2013 we issued 129278 common shares for gross proceeds of $2.4 million from the

issuance of equity under our ATM program

On January 22 2013 our tenant in our property
located in Baytown Texas notified us that they would not

be renewing their lease The current lease on the property expires on April 30 2013
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Location of Properts

Raieii Noilh Carolina

Office Building

Canton Ohio

Ottice Warnhoa Buildin

Akro Ohio

0181cc Laboraloo Bailding

CharloBo North Carolina

Office Building

Canton North Caro ma

Commercial anufaci ring Building

hnydet Town hip nn luania

Commercial arrliouse Ba Iding

Leningion North Catolin

Commercial Sharchouse Build nc

Austin Tenas

Ollicc Building

Mi Pocone Penn vlaania

Commercial Manulaciuring Ba ding

han Anionia Tena

Fleniblc Ofhco Building

olumbus lhie

tndu trial Building

Big Plots Ncu York

Indu Inal Bai dink

ihichila Kan as

016cr Building

Arlinrton Trnau

Warehouse Bakery Building

Oaytan Ohio

Ollicr Bnildirk

Patontown New ey

OBicc Building

Frankling Township New rues

Olhce arrhoo Building

Ouncan Seuth Carolina

Ollice arehouse Boildng

Ouncai South ate na

it anulacianing Buildirg

tlaaeliuoed Missouri

Ollice Sharrlmou Baildin

Initmat Cost

GLADSTONE COMMERCIAL CORPORATION
SCHEDULE III REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

DECEMBER 31 2012 Dollars in Thonsandsi

Improsement

Costs Capitatized

Bnitdings bubsequent to

Encumbrances land Improvements Acquisition

Totat Cost

960 44B1 9441 1499

land

Bnitdings

Improvements Total It

ccumntotnd

Drpreciatinn Net Brat tiatate

Year

Construction

Improsemcnts

Date

Acquired

4914 9hh 4481 5942 99 52083

186 rOSS 186 1085 69 785 1484 1994 130 004

099 95 6771 93 7056 909 1054 74 1988 999 49l304

6574 40 84S hI 46 8404 94 18 7348 984 1995 6302004

94 5090 ISO 5090 5200 1090 4102 1998 62004

100 6574 169 lOg 45 6843 457 5406 1991 012004

911 820 107 19 8O l6 946 460 486 1986 65004

6508 008 6296 66 000 6162 362 387 99 2001 162804

044 350 819 18 5837 618 24 4940 1995 1999 10152884

68 843 514 625 843 8159 898 1949 035 1999 2182005

1615 410 238 410 389 795 487 388 199 l0009

920 649 34 175 6495 6.68 .190 478 081 41 2005

919 1929 03 19S 9.7 11299 015 9200 2000 5102085

3949 636 5695 416 656 411 4747 84 969 1968 9262005

191 IS 10 199 849 873 196 630B09

4491 391 5520 93 5l 40 9403 83 46O 199 009

6698 631 6OO çof 691 6OO 83 194 6658 1978
II 2009

0800 783 tO 90 61 83 I409 19188 2339 10041 1984 2001 00 714OOS

700 19 60 49 19 9101 396 89 711 1984 001 007 14009

3d 63 909 69 91411 488 8500
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Laeation oProperts Fncnitibranoes

Nngola Indiana

Indu trial Building

Angola Indiana

Indusinial Building 991

Ruck Fall lllinuis

Indu trial Building 359

Nowburs port Massachu ntis

Induninial Building 649

Iuuoiiii9i NO ufliii

Inda trial Manufacturing Building 3183

Map In Ilnighls Ohio

Induninial Building 18 16

Rirhnrund Vingnia

Indusinial Building
279

Tulodo Ilhiu

Indnnlnial Building 84

South Hadlny auiachunrlls

Indusinial Building

Chnnipaign Illinois

Juice Building 632

hanipaigo Illinois

1118cc Bnilding 199

hainpaiini Illuous

lIlfic Building 08

hunipaioi Illinois

Ollicn Buildino 829

Ru ci illo NI mon oia

Illlico Buililin

Bin Ic Nliiin

III LL Boil Iii II 99

NI mi 000cL Fall NO inn ii

Ii do rIB uldin

Ba 000 Toia

111 cc Iluildo 88

rimnino lend NI ii Oman

Ii du il Buildim

Bmmnimnpliini Nlahania

Indu irial Build op

NI ooioomm ns Nlahain

Ii di iii ulclmmig

GLADSTONE COMMERCIAL CORPORATION
SCHEDULE Ill REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Continued

DECEMBER 31 2012 Dollars in Thousands

Initial Font total Font

land

Batldingn

tmpronements

lmpronrmeat

Costs Capitalized

Sabseqnnat to

Acqnisition land

Baildiags

tmprnnementn Total

Accamatated

Dnprnniatiao Not Real Estate

Near

Coostrantioo

tmproseineols

Date

Anqnircd

66 079 49 66 l_4 90 05 985 199 991

59 II 181 311 318 99 198 92005

39 II 50 35 163 198 109 1889 1982 92999

9S 994 847 6O 8311 8980 1437 643 1994 01 OOu

55 17 471 89 3880 1992 1031 005

1609 10069 1194 1609 11219 1288 417 10411 194 12I 2005

56 336 56 736 1371 108 04 1894 1972 12302001

63 7812 390 265 320 5465 978 288 199 ISOOOS

471 769 10 4I 546 488 1978 112006

687 2056 68 058 272 395 2555 1996 2I 008

1547 599 1547 1996 345 70 4S 1996 12086

94 49 94 497 59 481 1996 l006

91 93 503 441 396 006

99 OO 95 40 194 I11116

II 94 III II 943 IS 0_SI 194 111116

691 91i6 81 041 1996 308 3100

44 il 44 14 lOli 199 II 006

$ild
ciii ii quum 9959 Oil006

ni 01 9i9 1961 1990 99 006

944 944 119 59 96 199 006
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GLADSTONE COMMERCIAL CORPORATION
SCHEDULE Ill REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Continued

DECEMBER 31 2012 Dollars in Thousands

Initiat Cost total Cust

Improsemeut

Accumulated

Lucation of Peoperts
________________ _____________ ________________ _________________

Total Depreciation Net Peat Estate

nluinb ssourl

Industrial Building

Mason Ohio

010cc Buildni

Raloigdi North arolina

Indu trial Baildiro

Tulsa Ohlahoma

anufaciosin Build
ng

tlialrah Florda

Irdustrial Building

Trssk huts Mo sichu ott

tndu toal tduddirg

Mason Ohio

RcIaiI Buddino

corn Noss Yosh

Industrial Building

Grand Rapid Michigtn

Ohico Buildir

Boltinghrooh Ill nni 59

Industritl Build no

Dccainr Licor

Otlico Buildin

Dccainr Licoroa 59

Ollicc Buildi

caIn Iioorga 191

Otfico Buildin

Lass roncos ills Goorua 131

lltlicc Buildino

Snollsi to Cicsroi Ill

Ollicc aIds

Los insion Lonrgia 11

Illico Buildin

uinnsino iooroi

llttico Bui dino

onyors iooroia

Lllico tildino

Roaslni Pci Is
ri

Indu Iria Bs ldn

Fridlcs SI inns ota

Ofliso Building

Costs Capitalized

Baildings butiseqoeut to

Encumbrances Laud Improvements Acquisition

Buildings

laud tmprosemeuts

Construction nate

Improsemeuts Acqoired

40 540 701 1901 5900 OOh

dd4i 990 090 91 lI 09i9 1001 19llo

918 090 915 501 hoh Il h_h 1994 lh007

h7 540 1409 40 400 11991 2004 911007

02 hh 149 1000 094 979 19 h1992 391007

099 50 1395 989 80 989 h99 198 1909 99

47110 1111 49h1 01 49hl hlh
15555 75119

141 199 5019 199 019 50 08 4099 200 90 007

0100 h9 10900 1019 544 90 5004 2001 910 00

117 009 9003 02 719 9990 00 919100

704 94 84 24 409 44 1989 lI 100

09 040 099 990 1909 191007

1004 5004 1921 14 114 5989 l200

809 1009 409 10 9100 1909 19907

19 19 909 904 5909 ll

191 59 50 1999 5159 007

9109 90 II 98 00 0904 1005 909 99

ls 197 10 ID 1999 119100

4110 491 491 110 00 70 908 01 1911510

90 1994 004 999 04 0444 90_ 99 0490 90 000 000
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GLADSTONE COMMERCIAL CORPORA ION

SCHEDULE III REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Continued

DECEMBER 31 2012 Dollars in Thousands

6958

1134

749

868

256

984

2897

755

66

472

299

0.707

14 145

9000

38 298

Buildings

Improvements

II 164

502%

4O

5061

1163 6605

.700 2038

449 3.010

1.696

4236

2275

3205

7.858

746

521

2453

11994

15647

20648

03

otat Cost

Buildiugs

Land Improvements

88 II 154

669 034

09 029 686

190 49 660

258 586

163 6605

700 12030

449 5010

696

236

22

28 05

706 7858

5350

1658 46

378 4520

II 542 464

161 11994

963 15.647

905 20648

8l 46462

12 942

703

645

7859

19

onstruetton Date

Improvements acquired

2008

2008

29 2008

2008

2010

Initial Cost

Improvement

Costs Capitalized

Sulequent to

AcquisitionEncumbrances Laud

1796

669

5910 829

866 249

983 258

ear

Accumulated

Total Depreciatiou riml Real Estate

1458 1483 1957 2008

35 562% 1985

752 6893 199 200

86 699 1987

376 5745 199

Location of Properto

Concord Township Ohio

Indoslrral Building

Pines rIle Niirih Carolina

Industrial Building

arierla Ohio

tndoslrial Building

hallonr Pennsylvania

Industriul Building

Orangie ily Iowa

Office and Warehoose Building

Hickory Norih Carolina

Office Buddmg

Springfield Missouri

Office Building

Bo Ion Herils Ohio

Office Building

Paesrppaos Ness Jersey

Office Building

Durlnioulh Massachusetts

Retail Location

Springfield Missouri

Rerail Locaiton

Pittsburr Peonsylsania

Office Boildrng

Ashbnm Virginia

Office Building

Olluinwa Iowa

Industrial

New Albany Ohio

Industrial

Columbus Orurgia

Office

olumbus Ohio

Office

Jopitee Floisda

Office

Fort North Tosao

Office

Colombia South aeolina

Office

281

706

1.658

.378

542

1160

963

1905

6918

760 525 7243 2008 442011

13738 555 13185 2006 602011

3459 160 399 20 10202011

8773 314 849 1984 111272011

4256 152 404 2011 11182011

75 06 289 2005 12 13 2011

3488 lOS 338 1968 12282011

8564 241 823 2082 2520

571 115 5498 1970 530201

10404 188 l0l6 2007 6520

5898 98 800 0l2 62 202

5116 2949 1901 620202

13154 96 13.058 20 928 202

16610 16548 2005 1182012

225

505501

98

A0lf

2455

46%055

010 12202

132
___________ _____________ ____________

The aegsie cosl for land and building irnprosemenls oi federal income ran purposes is the same the roial
gross cost of land and building improvements

Depreciable life of all buildings is
39 years Depreciable life

of all improvements is
ihe shorter of the useful life of the assets or the life of ihe respective lea es on each building which ranpe from 20 years

These properties were pledped as borrowing base asseis under he line ol credit
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The following table reconciles the change in the balance of real estate during the years ended December

2012 2011 and 2010 respectively in thousands

Deductions

Dispositions during period

Purchase price adjustments

Balance at end of period

2012

442521

85462

5770

533753

401017 390754

43735 8901

1164 1362

442521 401017

Adjustment to Orange City Iowa property acquired in December 2010 property purchase price Refer to Note

out of period adjustment

The following table reconciles the change in the balance of accumulated depreciation during the years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively in thousands

Balance at beginning of period

Additions during period

Dispositions during period

Balance at end of period

2012

53784

1946

65730

2011

43659

10125

53784

2010

34112

9547

43659

Balance at beginning of period

Additions

Acquisitions during period

Impro vements

2011 2010

3395
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Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of December 31 2012 our management including our chief executive officer and chief financial

officer evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures

Based on that evaluation management including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer

concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31 2012 in providing

reasonable level of assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit

under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified

in applicable SEC rules and forms including providing reasonable level of assurance that information

required to be disclosed by us in such reports is accumulated and communicated to our management

including our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer as appropriate to allow timely

decisions regarding required disclosure However in evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures

management recognized that any controls and procedures no matter how well designed and operated can

provide only reasonable assurance of necessarily achieving the desired control objectives and management

was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and

procedures

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Refer to Managements Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting located in Item of this Form

10-K

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm

Refer to the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm located in Item of this Form 10-K

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter

ended December 31 2012 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our

internal control over financial reporting

item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

We will file definitive Proxy Statement for our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders the 2013 Proxy

Statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than

120 days after December 31 2012 Accordingly certain information required by Part III has been omitted

under General Instruction G3 to Form 10-K Only those sections of the 2013 Proxy Statement that

specifically address the items set forth herein are incorporated by reference

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by Item 10 is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2013 Proxy Statement

under the captions Election of Directors to Class of 2016 Information Regarding the Board of Directors

and Corporate Governance Compensation Committee Report and Section 16a Beneficial Ownership

Reporting Compliance and sub-caption Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2013 Proxy Statement

under the captions Executive Compensation and Director Compensation

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Stockholder Matters

The information required by Item 12 is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2013 Proxy Statement

under the caption Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2013 Proxy Statement

under the captions Transactions with Related Persons and Information Regarding the Board of Directors

and Corporate Governance

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The inthrmation required by Item 14 is hereby incorporated by reference from our 2013 Proxy Statemeni

under the sub-captions Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees and Pre-Approval Policy

and Procedures under the caption Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting

Firm
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

DOCUMENTS FILED AS PART OF THIS REPORT

The following financial statements are filed herewith

Report of Management on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and

2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Notes to Financial Statements

Financial statement schedules

Schedule III Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation is filed herewith

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or because the required information is

included in the financial statements or notes thereto

Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of this report or hereby incorporated by reference to exhibits

previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description

3.1 Articles of Restatement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Form l0-Q File

No 00 1-33097 filed April 30 2012

3.2 Bylaws of the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration

Statement on Form S-il File No 333-106024 filed June 112003

3.3 First Amendment to Bylaws of the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of

the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 00 1-33097 filed July 10 2007

4.1 Form of Certificate for Common Stock of the Registrant incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-li File No 333-106024
filed August 2003

4.2 Form of Certificate for 7.75% Series Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock of the

Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrants Form 8-Al 2G File

No 000-50363 filed January 19 2006

4.3 Form of Certificate for 7.50% Series Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock of the

Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Registrants Form 8-AI2B File

No 001-33097 filed October 19 2006

4.4 Form of Certificate for 7.125% Series Cumulative Term Preferred Stock of the

Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-A12B File No 001-33097 filed January 31 2012

10 First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Gladstone Commercia

Limited Partnership incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on

Form 8-K filed February 2006

10.2 Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership Schedule 4.2a2 to First Amended and

Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership Designation of 7.50% Series Cumulative

Redeemable Preferred Units incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the Current

Report on Form 8-K filed October 25 2006

10.3 Amended and Restated investment Advisory Agreement between the Registrant and

Gladstone Management Corporation dated January 2007 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 99.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 00 1-33097 filed January

2007 renewed on July 12 2011

10.4 Administration Agreement between the Registrant and Gladstone Administration LLC

dated January 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 of the Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 001-33097 filed January 32007 renewed on July 12 201

10.5 Open Market Sale Agreement by and among the Registrant Gladstone Commercial

Limited Partnership and Jefferies Company Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit

1.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 001-33097 filed November 2009

10.6 Amendment to First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of

Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
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the Current Report on Form S-K File No 001-33097 filed April 29 2010

10.7 Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership Schedule 4.2a3 to First Amended and

Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership Designation of Senior Common Units

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 001-

33097 filed April 29 2010

10.8 Credit Agreement dated as of December 28 2010 by and among Gladstone Commercial

Limited Partnership the Registrant and each of the financial institutions initially signatory

thereto together with their successors and assignees under Section 12.6 thereof and Capital

One N.A incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 00 1-33097 filed December 30 2010

10.9 Form of Second Amendment to Credit Agreement and Omnibus Amendment of Loan

Documents incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 of the Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 001-33097 filed January 31 2012

10.10 Second Amendment to First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of

Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 00 1-33097 filed February 2012

10.11 Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership Schedule 4.2a4 to First Amended and

Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership Designation of 7.125% Series Cumulative

Term Preferred Units incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 001-33097 filed February 2012

10.12 Loan Agreement between NHIO CUMMING GA LLC DOS MARIETTA OH LLC MPIO6

MASON OH LLC SRFFO8 READING PA L.P RPTO8 PINEVILLE NC LP IPAI2

ASHBURN VA SPE LLC and FTCHIO7 GRAND RAPIDS Mt LLC and KeyBank

National Association incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 001-33097 filed October 2012

10.13 Promissory Note in favor of KeyBank National Association dated as of October 12012

File No 001-33097 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on

Forni 8-K File No 001-33097 filed October 2012

10.14 Guaranty Agreement dated as of October 2012 between the Registrant and KeyBank

National Association File No 001-33097 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Current Report on Form 8-K File No 00 1-33097 filed October 2012

10.15 Amendment No to Open Market Sale Agreement by and among the Registrant

Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership and Jefferics Company Inc incorporated by

reference to Exhibit No 1.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 00 1-33097 filed

November 12012

11 Computation of Per Share Earnings from Operations included in the notes to the audited

financial statements contained in this Report

12 Statements re computation of ratios

21 List of Subsidiaries of the Registrant filed herewith

23 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP filed herewith

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
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of 2002 filed herewith

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002 filed herewith

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002 furnished herewith

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002 furnished herewith

l0l.INS XBRL Instance Document

l0l.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101 .CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101 .PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

101.DEF XBRL Definition Linkbase

The following financial information of the Registrant is included for the year
ended December 31

2012 formatted in XBRL eXtensible Business Reporting Language Consolidated Balance Sheets ii

Consolidated Statements of Operations iii Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity iv
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T the Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deemed not

filed or part of registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act

of 1933 as amended are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act of

1934 as amended and otherwise are not subject to liability under those sections
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Date February 19 2013 By /s/ Danielle Jones

Danielle Jones

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Date February 19 2013 By Is David Gladstone

David Gladstone

Chief Executive Officer and

Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Date February 19 2013 By /s/ David Gladstone

David Gladstone

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors

principal executive officer

Date February 19 2013 By Is Terry Lee Brubaker

Terry Lee Brubaker

Vice Chairman Chief Operating Officer and Director

Date February 19 2013 By Is Danielle Jones

Danielle Jones

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

principal financial and accounting officer

Date February 19 2013 By Is David AR Dullum

David A.R Dullum

Director

Date February 19 2013 By Is Anthony Parker

Anthony Parker

Director

Date February 19 2013 By Is Michela English

Michela English

Director

Date February 19 2013 By Is Paul Adeigren

Paul Adeigren

Director

Date February 19 2013 By Is John Outland

John Outland

Director

Date February 19 2013 By Is John Reilly

John Reilly

Director

Date February 19 2013 By Is Terry Earhart

Terry Earhart

Director



Exhibit 12

Statements re computation of ratios

Dollars in Thousands Except Ratios

For the year coded Deceaioer

Dollars Thoasaads Eacept Pee Share Atsasaats

2012 2lStt 2010 2009 2008

Net as000at hose eerttaatag operatiaas 3761 5714 4928 4400 4873

Add flood charges aed preferred aad sealor0000sxsa dsstnbatioas 26962 21247 2119 2211 20964

Less preferred aed 500lereoeeaxsa distobatioas 4206 4156 4114 4094 4094

Earosogs 26517 22805 22105 22307 21743

hoed charges aad preferred aed seaiorcesaoarrr distehatsoas

taterest eqsease 21239 16158 16031 6399 15575

Assosrrizatae afdeferred fasaacseg fees 1502 916 1031 1496 1284

Fstosarted closest
coseçroaeas of soot 15 IS 12 II

Preferred sod seaar000saaaso dotnbatssaos 4206 4156 4114 4094 41194

Total faced charges aed preferred aed seoiorcooaorro disldhotosos 26962 21.247 21191 22001 20.964

Ratio of
easssiogs to eooshsoed food charges aad preferred doteibattoos 10

ccc

.0 10 10

Iotcseesl ooaoo ioclodes dsvideods paid oo oar sseodatosity redeeasabte teats preferred staeh

Note for Iso year coded Deceashee 31 2012 earaiogs as defloed wore iosoffleeet to easer faced charges by 5445

The calculation of the ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred distributions is above Earnings

consist of net income from continuing operations before fixed charges Fixed charges consist of interest expense

amortization of deferred financing fees and the portion of operating lease expense that represents interest The portion

of operatIng lease expense that represents interest is calculated by dividing the amount of rent expense allocated to us

by our Adviser as part of the administration fee payable under the Advisory Agreement by three



Exhibit 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF GLADSTONE COMMERCIAL CORPORATION

Delaware

2525 Woodlawn Vstrm Wichita KS LLC
260 Springside Drive Akron OH LLC

ABC 12 Ottumwa IA LLC
ACIO6 Champaign IL LLC

ACO7 Lawrenceville GA LLC

AFLO5 Duncan SC LLC

AFLO5 Duncan SC Member LLC
AFR1 Parsippany NJ LLC

APMLO7 Hialeah FL LLC

CBP1 Green Tree PA GP LLC
CBPI Green Tree PA L.P

C08 Fridley MN LLC
CDLCIO7 Mason OH LLC

C105 Clintonville WI LLC

CMJO4 Canton NC LLC
CMSO6-3 LLC

COCOO4 Austin TX L.P

COCOO4 Austin TX GP LLC

Coming Big Flats LLC

CVG12 New Albany OH LLC
D08 Marietta OH LLC

DBP 107 Bolingbrook IL LLC
Dorval Property Trust

EE 208 South Rogers Lane Raleigh NC LLC
EEO7 Raleigh NC L.P

EEO7 Raleigh NC GP LLC
E107 Tewksbury MA LLC
ELFO8 Florida LLC

First Park Ten COCO San Antonio L.P

First Park Ten COCO San Antonio GP LLC

FMCTO8 Chalfont PA GP LLC

FMCTO8 Chalfont PA LP

FS 11 Hickory NC GP LLC

FS1 Hickory NC LP

FTCH 107 Grand Rapids MI LLC

GBIO7 Syracuse NY LLC
GCC Acquisition Holdings LLC
GCC Dorval LLC

GCC Granby LLC
GCO12 Jupiter FL LLC

Gladstone Commercial Advisers Inc

Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Gladstone Commercial Limited Partnership

Gladstone Commercial Partners LLC

Gladstone Commercial Lending LLC

GSM LLC

Granby Property Trust

HMBFO5 Newburyport MA LLC

IPAI2 Ashbum VA LLC

IPA12 Ashbum VA SPE LLC
LittleArch04 Charlotte NC Member LLC

Little Arch Charlotte NC LLC



MPIO6 Mason OH LLC
MSIO5-3 LLC

NARAI2 Fort Worth TX L.P

NARAI2 Fort Worth TX GP LLC
NCHI2 Columbus OH LLC
NHIO Cumming GA LLC
NJTO6 Sterling Heights MI LLC
NWO5 Richmond VA L1C
OB Crenshaw GCC L.P

OB Crenshaw SPE GP LLC
OB Midway NC Gladstone Commercial LLC
OSO8 Winchester VA LLC
PNA1 Boston Heights OH LLC
Pocono PA GCC GP LLC
Pocono PA GCC L.P

PZO5 Maple Heights OH LLC
RBO8 Concord OH LLC

RCO6 Menomonee Falls WI LLC
RCOGO7 Georgia LLC
RPTO8 Pineville NC GP LLC
RPTO8 Pineville NC LP

SCC1O Orange City IA LLC
SJMHO6 Baytown TX GP LLC
SJMHO6 Baytown TX L.P

SLEE Grand Prairie L.P

SRFFO8 Reading PA GP LLC

SRFFO8 Reading PA LP

STIO5 Franklin NJ LLC
SVMMCO5 Toledo OH LLC

TCIO6 Burnsville MN LLC
TMC1 Springfield MO LLC

TUP12 Columbus GA LLC
UC06 Roseville MN LLC
VWI2 Columbia SC LLC
WC 11 Springfield MO LLC
WECI Dartmouth MA 1LC
WMIO5 Columbus OH LLC
WMIO5 Hazeiwood MO LLC
WPIO7 Tulsa OK LLC
YCCO6 South Hadley MA LLC
YorkTCO5 Eatontown NJ LLC

Ohio

Hemingway at Boston Heights LLC

Massachusetts

GCLP Business Trust

GCLP Business Trust II

Nova Scotia

3094174 Nova Scotia Company

3094175 Nova Scotia Company



Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-3 No 333-

169290 of Gladstone Commercial Corporation of our report dated February 19 2013 relating to the

financial statements financial statement schedule and the effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting which appears in this Form 10-K

Is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

McLean VA
February 19 2013



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

David Gladstone certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10K of Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3al 5f and 5dl 5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is

being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report

that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial

reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize

and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 19 2013

Is David Gladstone

David Gladstone

Chief Executive Officer and

Chairman of the Board of Directors



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Danielle Jones certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Gladstone Commercial Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circufllstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible fbr establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and Sd-I 5e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules l3a--15f and 15d 15t for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is

being prepared

Designed such internal control over tinancial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report

that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial

reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize

and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 19 2013

/s/ Danielle Jones

Danielle Jones

Chicf Financial Officer and

Treasurer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned the Chief Executive Officer of Gladstone Commercial Corporation the Company
hereby certifies on the date hereof pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350a as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31
2012 Form 10-K filed concurrently herewith by the Company fully complies with the requirements of

Section 13a or Section 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and that the

information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and

will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff

upon request

Dated February 19 2013

Is David Gladstone

David Gladstone

Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned the Chief Financial Officer of Gladstone Commercial Corporation the Company
hereby certifies on the date hereof pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350a as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

2012 Form 10-K filed concurrently herewith by the Company fully complies with the requirements of

Section 13a or Section 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and that the

information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and

will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff

upon request

Dated February 19 2013

is Danielle Jones

Danielle Jones

Chief Financial Officer



GLADSTONE COMMERCIAL

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors and Gladstone Management Stock Exchange Listing

Executive Officers Team Members Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ

Global Select Market under the symbol GOOD
David Gladstone Michael Beckett

Our preferred stocks trade on the NASDAQ
Chairman

of
the Board and Director

Global Select Market under the symbols
Chief Executive

Officer

Greg Bowie GOODN GOODO and GOODP

Terry Lee Brubaker Director

Vice Chairman
qf

the Board and

Arthur Buzz Cooper Transfer Agent
Chief Operating Officer

Managing Director Computershare

Bob Cutlip
Chris Daniel

Shareowner Services

President P.O Box 43006

Managing Director

Paul Adelgren
Providence RI 02940

Director and Pastor
of Missionary Alliance Church

John Freal

Managing Director
Stockholder Inquiries

David A.R Dullum
Blair Gertmenian Website www.computershare.com/investor

Director and President
pf

Gladstone Investment

Director Toll Free Dedicated Number
Corps ration

1-866-214-7543
Laura Gladstone

Terry Earhart
Managing Director

Foreign Stockholders

Director Executive Vice President
of Strategic 1-201-680-6578

Global Services Net ivor Erika Highland TDD Hearing Impaired
Director

Michela English
1-800-231-5469

Director President and Lud Kimbrough TDD Foreign Stockholders

Chipf
Executive

Officer of Fight for
Children

Managing Director 1-201-680-6610

John Outland Kipp Kranbuhl

Director and Private lnestvr
Director

Financial Information

Stockholders may receive copy of our Annual

Anthony Parker
Kyle Largent

Report on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on

Director Founder and
Director

Chairman
p1

Parker Tid Corp

Form 10-Q by contacting us or going to our

Chris Lee website at www.gladstonecommercial.com the

Jack Reilly Direct or SECs website at www.SEC.gov or by visiting

Director and President
Of the SEC at 100 Street NE Washington

Reilly Invest nient Corporation
David Meier

DC 20549
Managing Director

Other Executive Officers Robert Pierce
Independent Registered Public

Managing Director

Danielle Jones Accounting Firm

Chief Financial Off icer md Treasurer John Sateri
PricewaterhouseCoopcrs LLP

Managing Director

Jennifer Simpson Legal Counsel

Managing Director Bass Berry Sims PLC

Die kstein Shapiro LLP
Matt Tucker

Director

Company Website

www.gladstonecommercial.com

This 2012 Annual Report contains forward-

looking
statements Such

forward-looking
statements

can generally
be

identified by our use of forward-

looking terminology such as may will

expect intend anticipate estimate

believe continue or other similar ivords
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Readers of

this 2012 Annual Report should be

aware that there are various
factors

that could

ffiu mascot and cause actual results to
differ materially from any

otlicial treeter at forward-looking statements made in this report

the McLean VA Factors that could cause or contribute to such

differences include but are not limited to changes

in general economic and business conditions

_____________
industry trends changes in government rules and

regulations including changes in tax laws andMlxi
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only as of
the date

of
this 2012 Annual Report
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